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Our driving ambition

is to enrich the lives of our
customers so that they can
experience retirement
living to the fulll
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The Loureates,
inghorm

Strategic and
Operational Highlights

40 years

40 years since the opening of the first McCarthy
& Stone retirement development at Waverley
House, New Milton, in October 1977

75 sites added
to the land bank

75 high-guality development sites added to
the land bank {FY16: 65 sites). Total land bank
of 9,967 plots (FY16: 10,186 plots), equivalent
to 4.3 years' supply (FY16. 4.4 years’ supply)

Access to
the growing
rental market

New strategic relationship with PfP Capital
allowing access the growing rental market

Workflow on track

Workflow on track to support growth strategy
and deliver ¢.80 new sales releases in FY18
(FY17: 52 sales releases)

Graphic removed

1 PP Capiol s 0 fund monagement business of Places for People

2 McCarthy % Stone plc

Five Star rating

Awarded full Five Star rating for customer
satisfactior: by the Home Builders Federation
(HBF) for the twelfth consecutive year - the
only UK housebuilder of any size or type to
achieve this accolade

3,000 units
medium-term

Sufficent land under control and operational
platform now fully in place to deliver strategic
objective of building and selling mare than
3,000 units per annum over the medium-term

15 Quality Awards

15 Quality Awards (FY16: 10 awards), 7 Seals

of Excellence (FY16: 2 Seals of Excellence) and

1 Regicnal Winner at the 2017 National House
Building Council (NHBC) Pride in the Job awards
underpinning exceptional build quality



REVENUE

PROFIT

RETURNS

Financial
Highlights
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Revenue Legal completions’ Average selling price?

Unrits
£660.9m 2,302 £273k
Y17 Fr17 17 I 7
Fri6 e
FY15 FY15 244
Fri4 FYi4 232

Gross profit Qperating profit Underlying profit before tax?®
£m £m
£130.7m £94.2m £94.1m
Fr16 1364 s 95 FY16 105.0
eis NN Ps £7 ¢ Fis [T
e I + T s =

Yangibie net asset value?

Return on capital employed?
%

Year-end net cash/(debt)?

£676.4m

FY17

FY16
F¥15

460 ]

)

1 Excluding commercial units
Z See page 738 for glossary of terms

16%

£30.7m

i

Y15 20

|

3 Underlying profit before tax has been reconcited within note 6 (o the Consolidated financiol Stotements

—
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Our Business

Retirement living to the full

Graphic removed

We are the sector leader with
more than a 70%’ share of the
owner-occupied retirement
housing market

1 Bosed on 4,778 registrations of cross-tenure properties specificaily ; i
designed for the efderly with the NHBC during 18 manth period ended moge:
30 June Z2G17, of which 3,684 were registered by McCarthy & Stone 1 Bowes Lyon Lourt, Poundbury
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STRATEGIC REPORT

We place our custormers’ and homeowners’
needs at the heart of everything we do and have
an unparalleled understanding of our market

as the only listed national housebuilder to focus
exclusively on the needs of older people

Our model

Our model is based on buying land,
securing detailed planning consent and
then building and selling high-quality
retirement developments. Importantly,
we then take on the management of our
developments and provide a range of
property maintenance, support and care
services to help enrich the fives of our
homeowners.

Our customers

Qur customers are locking to maintain
their independence with private home
ewnership but also want ccmpanionship,
a little more assistance with everyday
tasks and the knowledge that support

is on hand should it be needed. By
providing well-designed and well-located
housing with on-site support services,
we are able to cater for a wide range of
needs and help cur customers live
healthier and happier lives.

-

o

Graphic removed
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Customer satisfaction

In March 2017, we again received

the full Five Star award for customer
satisfaction for cur products and
services in the independent survey

by the HBF and NHBC. We are the only
housebuilder of any size or type to
have achieved this accolade for twelve
consecutive years. The HBF's yearly
questionnaire is one of the largest
customer surveys, totalling 52,290
purchasers of a new home in 2016.
More than 90% of the 1,433 customers
who completed the survey were happy
to recommend us.

We are pleased that almost nine out
of ten of our customers also feel that
moving to one of our developments
has impraved their quality of iife

As well as the general lifestyle we
provide, this is testament to our sales
approach and management services
offering that ensures homecwners and
their families are supported and guided
through the purchasing process and
receive all the support they need while

fliving with us.

Graphicremoved
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Our Business continued

Our 40th year

-

-
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2017 marks 40 years since the opening of
McCarthy & Stone’s first retirement devetopment
at Waverley House, New Milton, in October 1977.
We are proud of cur subsequent record of
achievements and success, which gives us
unrivalled expertise in this secter.

McCarthy & Stone pioneered the retirement
housing sector for homeowners after seeing a
gap in the market, and we have since enriched
the lives of tens of thousands of older people
and their families. We have built and sold over

54,000 apartments across ¢.1,200 developments.

tar more wnformation on qur partnership with RVS and how te donate

McCarthy & Stone plec

J to the campamign, please visit www.mecarthyandstone co.ukfrvs

Graphicremoved

To celebrate our 40th anniversary, we have
partnered with the Royal Voluntary Service {RvS')
for 2017, which also has a long history of
supporting older people. Our staff have raised
more than £200,000 for this worthy cause during
2017 via 2 wide range of activities from dragon boat
races and charity balls to parachute jumps in Dubar.
We intend to continue this fundraising into FY18.

We would like to thank our dedicated employees,
as well as our homeowners and cur suppliers who
have helped us reach this milestene.

DID YOU
KNOW?

54,000

We have built and sold over
54,000 apartments across more
than ¢.1,200 developments
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Our awards

Our position as the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder and our
ambition to enrich the lives of our
customers and homeowners are further
evidenced by the awards that we have won

-

Graphic removed
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The only housebuilder to receive the
r _I full Five Star rating from the HBF for .

Graphic removed 12 consecutive years G|:Phl¢ relled
[ B HBF/Housebuilder awards - Best [ ]
Graphic removed Retirement Scheme for Ramsay Grange Graphicremoved

and Lyle Courtin Edinburgh, and Best I_- .___l
|_ J Customer Satisfaction Initiative
[ ] Pride in the Job - 15 site managers won |—_ _|
Graphic removed the coveted Pride in the Job Award from
L ] the NHBC, a 50% increase on last year. Graphic removed
In addition, 7 site managers won Seals I_ J
of Excellence and 1 Regional Winner
';aphic removed
L -]
frmages.

1 Qak Grange, Hartford

2 Housebintder Awards L-R- Dawid Bridges, Group Markeiing & Customer
Experience Director with the South Egst regional team recendng the
Housebuilder Award Jrom actor Jomes Nesbitt

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts
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2016 Management Today - Featured
in the list of Britain's Most Admired
Companies

2017 ARMA ACE awards - Highly
Commended for On-Site House
Manager of the Year

Building Safety Group (BSG') awards
- Three naticnal awards, including the
Innovation Award

WhatHouse? awards - Bronze in the
Best Retirement Scheme category
for Constance Place, Knebworth



Chairman’s Statement

On track to deliver our
medium-term growth objective

’_ —_l Revenue

£660.9m

(FY16: £635.9m)

Graphic removed

Dividend, pence per share

5.4 pence

(FY16: 4.5 pence)

L |

John White, Group Non-Executive Chairman | am pleased to present our second set
of full year results since re-joining the
London Stock Exchange in November
2015. The Group delivered a solid
performance this year notwithstanding
the headwinds experienced as a result
of increased political and economic
uncertainty. Revenue increased to 2
record £661m (FY16: £636m) and the
Group continued to capitalise on the
attractive demographic opportunity
and structural shortage of supply
of retirement housing in the UK. As
previously announced, trading in the
first six months of FY17 was censtrained
by the lower forward order bock
brought into the year impacted by the
market uncertainty following the EU
Referendum. Trading in the second half
of FY17 saw an improvement due to
an increased weighting of completions
from newer higher margin sites,
reflecting the quality and location
of the developments McCarthy &
Stone 1s now bringing to market.

Profit Before Tax reduced from £93m in
FY16 to £92m 1n FY17 with Underlying
Profit Before Tax reducing from £105m
in FY16 to £94min FY17. This reduction
in prefitability was mainly driven by the
age and mix cf units sold, increased

10 McCarthy & Stone plc



incentive costs, build cost increases
offset by pricing improvernents, some
additional land renegotiation costs as we
repositioned ouwr land bank in the face
of more challenging market conditions
and our continued investrment in
regional operational infrastructure

to support our growth strategy.

The Group remains the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder with a greater
than 70% share of the cwner-occupied
market. Our strength of brand and
continual striving for operational
excellence ensures that we can continue
to deliver solid resuits in a challenging
market without any support from the
Government Help To Buy scheme,

We have a strong and experienced
management team that is focused

on delivering the Group's strategic
objectives, a high-quality land bank, a
robust balance sheet and the necessary
operational expertise and infrastructure
in place to deliver our medium-term
growth strategy of building and selling
maore than 3,000 units per annum.

We continue to lead the housebuilding
sector on customer satisfaction. We
are the only housebuilder of any size

ar type to have received the full Five
Star rating in the Home Builders
Federation customer satisfaction
survey for twelve consecutive years, in
which mare than 90% of our customers
would recommend us to a friend.

Outlook

The improvement of forward sales
experienced throughout the year has
continued into FY18 with total forward
sales including legal completions since
1 September 2017 standing at £277m
at 10 November 2017 (FY17: £250m).

Economic and

political environment

The underlying housing market
continues to be supported by low
interest rates, good mortgage availability
and low levels of unemployment.

The market for retirement housing
also remains highly attractive,
underpinned by strong demand, albeit
the secondary market was impacted
by political and economic uncertainty.
Research by the Department for
Communities and Local Government
('DCLGY recognises that around 74% of
household growth in the UK to 2039

is expected to come from those aged
65 and over' and McCarthy & Stone
remains uniguely placed to capitalise
on this unprecedented demographic
opportunity in which demand continues
to dramatically exceed supply.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Dividend

The Group's solid performance this year
has enabled the Directors to propose

a final dividend of 3.6 pence per share.
This follows the interim dividend of 1.8
pence per share, giving a total dividend
for the year of 5.4 pence per share
{FY16: 4.5 pence per share pro-rated for
period since fisting), which represents
20% growth on the FY16 dividend and

i in line with our progressive dividend
policy as stated at the time of our Initial
Fublic Offering (1PO".

Board changes
There were a number of Board changes
during the year.

Qn 6 January 2017, we were pleased

1o announce the appointment of
Rowan Baker as the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer. Rowan was previously
Group Financial Controller and has
worked for the Group since January
2012. She tock over the role from

Nick Maddock whose resignation

was announced cn 11 October 2016.

On 1 June 2017, we announced the
appointment of John Tankiss as the
Group's Chief Operating Officer. This
role has been created to help drive
the Group's growth strategy. A key
partof the role will be overseeing the
continued development of the Group's
nine regional operations across the
UK. John joined McCarthy & Stone in
2014 and was previously the Group’s
National Operations Director.

In addition to this, John Carter jcined
the Board on 1 Cctober 2017, Jchn

is currently Chief Executive of Travis
Perkins plc, which owns many of the
building industry’s most popular
brands and spans the trade, hame
improvement and DIY markets. john
joined Travis Perkins in 1978 and held
a number of senior strategic roles
within the business before being
appointed as Chief Executive in 2014.

Finally, on 9 November 2017 we were
pleased to announce the appointment
Paul Lester CBE as a Non-Executive
Director and Chairman Designate.

He will join the Board on 3 January
2018 and, subject ta his election by
shareholders, will take over from me

as Chairman at the conclusion of the
Company's next Annual General Meeting
(AGMY 1N January 2018, Paul 1s currently
Chairman of Essentra plc and Forterra
plc and was formerly a director of
Invensys plc. Previcusly, he was Group
Managing Director of Balfour Beatty plc
pefore becoming Chief Executive

1 The Department for Communities and { ocal Gavermment

fDCLGY housenold projections: England (fuly 2016)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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DID YOU
KNOw?

3,000

Our medium-term strategic
target is to build and sell
3,000 umits per annum

image. 1 Birch Court, Morriston

of suppart services company VT Gratp
plcin 2002 Paul was also Chairman of
John Laing Infrastructure Fund until
September this year.

We are very pleased that Paul will be
joining the McCarthy & Stone Board
and succeeding me as Chairman.
McCarthy & Stone is a great business
and | am proud to have served on the
Board during a transformational period
for the Company, culminating in its
successful IPO in 2015 While market
uncertainty following recent political
avents has acted as a stern test for
our business medel, j am pleased that
our high-guality preduct and excellent
team led by Clive Fenton have proved
McCarthy & Stone's resilience.

The Company remains uniquely-placed
to capitalise on the substantial growth
opportunity in retirement housing,
driven by a rapidly ageing population,
and the team can look te the future with
confidence. The Group has made solid
progress towards achieving its strategic
objectives this year and my thanks go to
all employees, the management team
and my fellow Board members for the
significant centribution they have made.

John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman
13 November 2017

AN
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Qur Market

Attractive demographic opportunity

Graphic removed

There is a structural shortage of

suitable housing options for older

people and more retirement

housing is needed for the UK’s |_ _|
rapidly ageing population

Graphic removed

images.

1 Chestnut Court, Bridhington
2 Homeowners gt £lm Tree Court, Huntingdan
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Our market

The UK population stands at its highest
ever at 65.6m' and continues tc get older.
There are currently 11.8m’ people aged
65 or over, rising to 17.3m? by 2037 - 3
47% increase. For those aged 85 or over,
the increase will be larger, from 1.6m'

to 3.0m? by 2037, anincrease of 88%”.
This will place increasing pressure on
the housing system ana care providers.
The DCLG estimates that 74% of all
household grawth ro 2039 wil come
from purchases made by older people?.

Structural shortage of supply

There also remains a structural shortage
in the supply of specialist housing for
clder people. just 4,778* registrations of
retirement properties were made with
the NHBC during the 18 month period
ended 30 June 2017, and there have only
ever been c157,000° units of owner-
occupied retirement housing built in the
UK to date. Property consultancy Knight
Frank estimates that the UK is building
just 5,500 units of retirement housing
across all tenures each year, and yet the
sector has the capacity to grow (o
¢.30,000 units per annume,

This undersupply is in part due to the
very high barriers to entry in this sector,
meaning few providers aperate at scale.
As a result, we continue to maintain our
€.70% share of the owner-accupied
retirement housing markets.

This is set against the backdrop of

a wider housing shortage. In total,
153,370’ new homes were started in
England during 2016 (2 5% increase
year-on-year), although estimates
suggest that up to 360,000 new homes
are needed per year?, creating a
yearly shortfall of half this amaount.

Downsizing

There are also a significant number

of alder people looking to downsize.
Research by YouGov for McCarthy

& Stone in 2017 found that 38% of
older people are looking to move to

a smaller property, and an additicnal
10% would be encouraged to move
with a stamp duty exemption, equalling
48% - a rise of 4% from the prior year®.

T Office for Notional Stahstics (ONS), Overview of
the UK popuiation (uly 201 /)

2 ONS, 2017 (2016 based) population projechons.

3 Department for Commumties end Local
Gevernment (DCLG), 2074-based household
profections. Engiana, 2014-2039

4 Bosed on 4,778 registrations of tross-tenure
properties specifically designed for the elderiy
with the NHBC during 18 manth period ended
30 june 2017, of which 3,684 were registered
to McCarthy & Stane

STRATEGIC REPORT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Demand driven by strong fundamentals

UK population:
65.6m peaple’

ofwhich 11.8m

are 65 years old or over’

Of which 29%, or 3.4M
have equity of £250k-£500k"°

h 4

Of which 38%, or

<1.3m

are considering downsizing®
- our target demographic!

Compares with just

<157k

owner occupied retirement
properties built in the UK3

With a 47% predicted increase
in those aged 65 or over by 20372

5 EAC data bosed on owner-occupied retirement
housing (2017)

& Krught Frank, Retirerment Housing, 2016
DCLG, 2017, Housing starts it 9-year high

8 The House af Loras Econamic Affairs selecr
committee 2016, England needs to build
300.000 homes a year

9 YouGov, 2017, research provided by YouGov
for McCarthy and Stone

10 ONS, tatal housing weaith by region and gge
group (2013)

11 Our target dermographic group is discussed further
in 'Qur Products ond Our Lifestyfe’ on poges 16-25

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Reportand Accounts 13
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Government support

Positively, the Government continues to seek ways to longer and reduces costs to the health and social care system.
encourage the retirement housing sector The Housing It also notes that helping older peopte to move at the right time
White Paper, ‘Fixing our broken housing market,’ published in and in the right way improves their quality of life and frees up
February 2017, recognises that offering older people a better more homes for other buyers including those much needed

choice of accommodation helps them to live independently for  for families.

Housing White Paper in summary

The White Paper contained a number r —|
of positive proposals for our business:

= Ageneral commitment to explore ways to stimulate
the market to deliver new homes for older people -
recoghising that this sector is worth supporting

= A new statutory duty on the DCLG Secretary of State
to produce planning guidance for local authorities on
meeting the housing needs of older people
Graphic removed
» For the first time, it is now official Government
olicy to look at incentives to help older
omeowners move

Other positive measures included:
= Clear drive to support housebuilding
w Strengthening the presumption in favour of developing
brownfield land
= Greater support for small ‘windfall’ sites
s Support for higher density development in urban
locations well served by public transport
=w More pressure on local authorities to meet their [_ _I
housing targets
Image
Chief Executive Officer, Chve Fenton and Secretary of State

Jor the Department of Commumities ond Loce! Government, the
Rt Hon Sapd jovid MP with homeowners ot Biberry Plgee, Bromsgrove

DID YOU
KNOW?

160,000

Since the 1970s, there have been an
average of 160,000 new homes built
each year in England. We need to build
€.225,000 to ¢.275,000 or more homes
per year to keep up with population
growth and start to tackle years of
under supply'

1 ‘Foang our broken housing market, Department for
Commuristres and Local Government, 7 February 2017

McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts 15



Our Products

Graphic removed

Three unique housing options,
catering exclusively for older people

We offer well-designed apartments

in stunning locations, where every

detail has been carefully thought Graphic removed
through with our customers’

needs in mind, from access to local

amenities to internal layouts and

fixtures and fittings, and combined

with just the right level of service

L

images
1 Dorroch Gate, Blairgowrie
2 Bowes Lyans Court, Poundbury

16 McCarthy & Stone plc



PRODUCTS

O UR
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Retirement Living

For more info see pages 18-19

In
a

dependence with peace of mind

Minimum age 60

Typical number of apartments per site: 30-50

FY17 completions: 1,722 (75% of total completions in the year),
{FY16: 1,511, 66%)

Land bank: 5,684 units (57% of total land bank at the year end),
(FY16: 6,303 units, 62%)

House manager and shared facillties, including hcmegwners' lounge
and guest suite

Retirement Living Plus
(previously Assisted Living)

For more info see pages 20-21

A retirement apartment you own with flexible care and support

Minimum age 7C

Typical number of apartments per site: 50-70

FY17 completions: 479 (21% of total completions in the year),

(FY16: 697, 30%)

Land bank: 3,598 units (36% of total land bank at the year end),

(FY16: 3,094 units, 30%)

Similar services to Retirernent Living, but also includes full estate
management team, restaurant or bistro, domestic support and flexible
care packages, among other facilities and services

Lifestyle Living
(previously Ortus Homes)

For more info see pages 22-23

-

Downsize for your leisure years

Mirmsmnurm age 55

Typical number of apartments per site: 20-40

FY17 completions: 101 (4% of total completions in the year),
{FY16: 88, 4%)

Land bank: 685 units (7% of total land bank at the year end),
(FY16: 789 units, 8%)

Visiting house manager

Graphicremoved

_
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Our Products

Retirement Living

Independence
with peace
of mind

Graphic removed
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Our Retirement Living developments
provide high-quality apartments for
homeowners aged 60 and over

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Key features
M For those aged 60+

# On-site house manager

B Homeowners’ lounge

B Guest suite

B Extensive landscaped grounds
W Lifetime Homes Standard’

B Typically 30-30 apartments

Apartments feature one or two
bedrooms, spacious lounges, fitted
kitchens, lifts to all floors, level access,
extra storage, en-suite bathrooms
and, typically, private outside space

in the form of balconies, terraces or
patios. Every aspect is specificaily
designed with our customers in mind,
from the slip-resistant flooring in the
bathrooms, and the lever taps for
easier operation, to the electric plug
sockets at waist height.

In addition, the developments have
camera-door entry and a 24-hour
emergency call system with pendant
alarms. They also feature a large
amount of communal space to help
build companionship, including a
shared lounge, guest suite to
accommodate visiting family and
friends, and landscaped grounds.

Our site-based house managers
provide help and assistance for
homeowners and are responsible
for the day-to-day running of
each development.

tmage:
1. Ehm Tree Cowrt, Huringdion

Graphic removed

The Lifetime Homes Standard is

a serfes of sixteen design criteria
ntended 10 moke homes more easily
adaptable for hifetime use ot minimal cost

36

New Retirement Living
developments sales
released in FY17 {FY16; 49)

1,722

Units sold in FY17 {FY16: 1,511)

c.57%

Of land bank (FY1&: 62%)

Mr and Mrs Towers
Churcmmeaa Court, Hinck

McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts
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Our Products

Retirement Living Plus

Aretirement
apartment you
own with flexible
care and support

Graphic remaoved
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Our Retirement Living Plus developments
(previously Assisted Living) are designed
exclusively for customers aged 70 and over

Key features

For those aged 70+

Estate manager and on-site team
Homeowners' lounge
Restaurant/bistro, well-being suite
Wheelchair Accessibility Standards
CQC registered, 24-hour support
Typically 50-70 apartments

Our Retirement Living Plus developments
offer a retirement apartment with
management services, domestic
assistance and personal care. It isan
attractive alternative for people seeking
additional support whilst maintaining
their independence.

Developments are similar to Retirement
Living but have a number of additional
features, including a full table-service 1 See page 158 for glossary of terms

Graphic removed

Case study

restaurant or bistro with meals freshly
prepared on-site, a function rcom,
laundry, and secure mobility scooter

store room,
There is also a dedicated estate

management team on-site 24 hours New Retirement Living Pius
a day, 365 days a year, which is led developments sales released
by the estate manager. They provide in FY17 (F¥16: 10)

extra support if and when it is needed, ’
whether it is shopping, cleaning or

more care services. Tailored and
flexible care and support packages

mean homeowners only pay for the
additional help they use.

Units sold in FY17 (FY16: 697)

Rowena Hampton
5 ran Court, Poundbuny

C.36%

1 Sydney Court, Sidcup Of land bank {FY16: 30%)

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 21



Our Products

Lifestyle Living

Downsize for
your leisure
years

22 McCarthy & Stone pic
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Lifestyle Living (previously Ortus Homes) is
our product for customers aged 55 and over

Key features There is a growing need for Graphic removed
W For those aged 55+ low-maintenance and well-
situated bungalows among

- ngh-AQI_Ja“ty, Iowl-malntenance the older population and the
W Prestigious locations, 2/3 bedrooms appropriateness of this form
B Increased space and car parking of housing in later life is

well-proven. The supply of

W Open-plan living bungalows in the UK has also

B Visiting manager on-call been in steady dedline, with
B Typically 20-40 apartments only 2,210" new bungalows
Lif oL duct ! registered with the NHBC

ifestyle Living is our product for in 2016, in comparison to
customers aged 55 and over looking 26,408'in 1986?The particular Ca S€e Stu dy
to downsize into modern, high-quality shortage of bungalows and
and low-maintenance apartments in other houses for older people For Meartir
prestigious locations. Developments means they are likely to attract stamford
typically have fewer, but larger, a premium compared to
apartments than our other core standard housing.
products, with more car parking.

As of 31 August 2017, we had

They are intelligently and attractively 222 bungalows in our land bank.
designed to future-proof later iiving.
Features are incorporated discreetly 1 NHBC, New Home Statistics Review 2016

to achieve an ageless design and
developments typically feature an
enhanced lobby area and an open-plan
feel, with fewer shared facilities. Each 1

apartment has two or three hedrooms,
a fully fitted kitchen and bathroom, plus
an en-suite bathroom and a walk-in New Lifestyle Living

wardrobe. developments sales

As homeowners tend to be more released in FY17 (FY16: 5)

independent, developments have a
visiting manager who is also on-call.

Bungalows

As part of our Lifestyle Living range,

we will shortly deliver our first 100%

bungalow development of 30 units at Units sold in FY17 (FY16: 88)

Wymendham, Norfolk, with construction
starting in FY18.

c.77

Image Of land bank (FY16: 8%) Martin and Marion Irving

! Ocegn House, Carlvon Bay ngn Court, Stamford B
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Our Lifestyle

Management and
Care Services

Providing peace
of mind that we
will look after our
customers and
their properties

Graphic removed
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Our in-house management and
care services are a key part of how
we seek to enrich our homeowners' lives

Graphic removed

Reliable and cost-effective management YourLife Management Services
and maintenance services are important (YLMS') is owned 50/50 by MSMS
to our homeowners. Our team provides and Somerset Care Group, a
homeowners with peace of mind that we leading not-for-profit care provider.
will support themn and look after their it provides management services,
properties over the long term. This is a domestic assistance, catering,
key part of how we seek to enrich our personal care and additional
homeowners’ lives. support in our Retirerment
Living Plus developments.
Providing an in-house management Each developmentis run by an
services solution allows us to establish a Estate Manager who leads a Ca se StUdy
unigue relationship with our customers, team of staff members to deliver
providing personal and efficient services these services, 24 hours a day,
that not only help them, but also support 365 days ayear.
the point of sale and allow us to deliver )
industry-leading standards of customer [ € o Do JEETVIEHI
satisfaction. It also links together our k- t many
expertise in housebuilding and property years ago, n L ined in
managerment. hor

Qur property management business
provides property management,
support and care services across our
two development products, Retirement
Living and Retirement Living Plus, They

also provide property management
services to our Lifestyle Living
developments. C
* 7]

Each Retirement Living development Homeowners (FY16: 12,0004)
typically has a dedicated House Manager '
on-site, five days a week during working
hours managing the day-to-day running

of the development whilst also helping

to facilitate various social activities.

Each Lifestyle Living development has

a visiting Manager who is in charge of all

aspects of property maintenance. Developments under

management (FY16: 264)

.10,860

Additional care and domestic
hours per month (FY16: ¢.8,400)
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Chief Executive's Statement

Operational Review

Grapghic removed

L ]

Clive Fenton, Group Chief Executive Officer

“Momentum is rebuilding,
underpinned by sound
foundations. Workflow is
in place to support delivery
of 3,000 units per annum”

26 McCarthy & Stone plc

Average selling price

£273k

(FY16: £264k)

Build activity commenced on

/3 sites

(FY16: 54)

Land bank equivalent

4.3 years

(FY16: 4.4 years)

Our results

The Group delivered solid progress in its
first full year of trading since re-joining
the Main Market of the London Stock
Exchange in November 2015. Trading
improved consistently throughout the
year notwithstanding the increased
uncertainty in the secondary market
following the General Electionin june
2017, and the Group made good
progress in rebuilding its forward order
book and progressing its workflow.

Revenue increased by 4% 1o £661m
(FY16: £636m) primarily driven by an
increase in average selling prices from
£264k to £273k, reflecting a continuing
improvement in sales mix and quality
of sites. Legal completions were slightly
ahead cof grior year levels at 2,302 (FY16:
2,296) despite a wezkened forward
order book brought into the year and a
lawer level of just 49 first occupations
during the year (FY16: 89). This year's
valumes benefited fram accelerated
off-plan sales rates which improved to
539% (FY16: 50%) and the bulk sale of



126 apartments to PfP Capital as part
of a new strategic relationship allowing
Us Lo access the growing rental market.

Consistent with previous guidance,
underlying operating profit decreased
by 10% to £96m (FY16: £107m) at a gross
profit margin of 20% (FY16: 21%), an
underlying operating profit margin of
15% (FY16: 17%) and an operating profit
of £94m (F¥16: £95m). The reduction

in profitability was mainly driven by the
age and mix of units sold, increased
incentive costs, build cost increases
offset by pricing improvements, some
additional land renegctiation costs as we
repositioned our land bank in the face
of more challenging market conditions
and our continued investment in
regional operaticnal infrastructure

to support our growth strategy.

PP Capital

Over the course of the financial year,

we sought te diversify and enhance

our business model by developing a
strategic relationship with PP Capital.
This represents an exciting new
oppPOortunity to access the growing rental
market and has the potential to improve
capital turn' and enable land investment
in new, previously untapped locations,
This strategic relationship resulted in
the sale of 126 apartments (included
within the total legal ccmpleticns of
2,302) across 27 sites to be held within
a specialist retirement Private Rental
Sectoer ('PRS’) Fund being established
and managed by PfP Capital, the fund
management business of Places for
Pecple. The apartments will be offered
for private open rmarket rent. PfP
Capital aims to grow its assets under
management from £150m to more than
£750m gver the short to medium-term
by acquiring residential units and we
are well placed to provide them with
access to the retirement housing sector,
We intend to develep this relationship
further aver the coming financial year.

Investment and growth strategy
We continue to pursue our strategy

of creating an efficient and scalable
business, capable of building and selling
more than 3,000 units per annum over
the medium-term. There Is significant
demand for our products and we are
confident that we have put in place all
the necessary elernents that will enable
us to achieve our planned growth. We
have a respected brand with 40 years’
experience, a high-quality land bank,

a strong balance sheet with a robust
capital structure and the necessary
organisational capability and platform.
Qur experienced management team

is focused on achieving this goal.

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Market demand

The structural imbalance between
supply and demand within the housing
market continues to provide us with

an exceptional market opportunity.
Despite the recent growth in
housebuilding activity, there remains

2 significant and growing shortage of
housing supply in the UK. This imbalance
is particularly acute in the market for
retirement housing, and McCarthy &
Stone stands alone among the national
housebuilders as the only one that
focuses entirely on this market.

-

Graphie removed

During four decades as the retirement
housing market leader, the Group has
formulated 3 tailored approach to sales,
site acquisition, design, securing detailed
planning consents and construction L
that mainstream housebuilders have
been unable to replicate. We also ensure
that our customers receive the highest
standards of ongeing support through
our management services offering. The
high barriers to entry in our market
ensure that we maintain a unique
position as the only housebuitder
capable of meeting the nationwide need
for high-quality specialist housing for
the growing number of older people
who are looking to move to properties
mcre suited to their needs and lifestyle.

DID YOU
KNOW?

£127k

Our build initiative has
identified savings to the value
of £127,000 per development

Land bank

In total, c.£472m (FY16; £468m) was
invested in land and bulld during the
year. We added a further 75 high-quality
sites with attractive embedded margins
inte the land bank (FY16° 65), equivalent
to €.3,164 additional plots (FY16: ¢.2,614),
with terms agreed cn a further c1,355
plots (FY16. ¢1,700 plots) in line with our
normal land buying model. The lang was
secured with a high level of optionality.

image
1 Humphrey Court, Stafford

At the year end, our land bank

stood at 9,967 plots {FY16: 10,186),
equivalent to 4.3 years’ supply, of
which 2.6 years had detailed planning
consent. As a result, the Group now
has sufficient land under control to
deliver all targeted sales to FY20.

We secured 64 detalled planning
consents (FY16: 60) and started build
on 66 additional sites (FY16: 42). There
is detailed planning in place for 100%
of FY18 planned first occupations and
71% of FY19 pianned first cccupations.

The market for land remains benign
and competition for our typical
brownfield sites remains highly
fragmented. Our business continues
to maintain operational focus and
discipline in the assessment of our
land purchases to ensure that returns
continue to flow to our shareholders.

i See poge 158 for glossary of terms
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Chief Executive's Statement continued

Operational infrastructure

and capability

Our newer regional offices established
in North Lendon, South West, East
Midlands and North West continued to
drive the momentum of therr workflows
during the year. We have high-calibre
senior management teams in place,
cembining McCarthy & Stone experience
with volume mainstream housebuilcer
operational expertise.

Having established these new offices,
we have now ccmmenced the roll-out
of & new 'Divisional’ operational
structure, to manage our nine regions.
The three Dwvisions, under John Tonkiss,
our Chief Operating Officer, will each
consist of three established regions.

This operzational structure is simitar to
many national volume housebuilders
and will provide the framework to run an
efficient business at scale. Our existing
nine regions will be clustered into: a
North Divisicn, covering Scotland, the
North West and North East; a Central
Division, covering Fast Midlands, West
Midlands and South West; and a Sauth
Division, covering North Londan, South
East and Southern. We expect to fill

F McCarthy & Stone plc

Graphic removed

ali the new pesitions from internal
candidates. The establishment of
these new divisions will complete
the platform required to deliver
our planned operational growth.

Strategic initiatives

Qur continued focus an achieving
operational excellence by accelerating
our working capital cycle has allowed
us to deliver further imprevement

in our three key strategic initiatives:
improving sales rates, reducing time
taken between securing land and
starting build and implementing

build programme efficiencies.

Sales initiative

The sales initiative, launched in FY15,
sets out to consistently deliver off-
plan reservations of 50% or more by
the date of first occupation, and then
to reserve out all remaining units
within an average 12 month period.

Qur sales initiative continued to make
good progress during the year. The main
focus has been on enhancing the early
part of the customer journey via website
improvements and the development of
early relationships with enguirers prior

DID YOU
KNCOW?

3%

We achieved an average
of 53% off-plan sales rate
from the 49 sites that
first occupied in FY17

image:
1. Swift House, Mardenfiead



“Workflow on track to
support growth strategy
and deliver ¢.80 new sales
releases and more than 65
first occupations in FY18"

STRATEGIC REPORT

1o site sales launches. New relationship
management teams are now in place in
all regions and are working well. These
improvements have contributed to

an increase in the off-plan sales rate

to0 53% {FY16. 50%) from the 49 sites
(F¥16. 68} that first occupied In FY17.

Anumber of sites achieved significantly
more than 53% of the off-plan sales
rate, for example Jameson Gate,
Partobello, Edinburgh which sold
100% off-plan. A further five sites

sold more than 80% of apartments
off-plan. It is particularly pleasing that
we have been able to achieve these
accelerated sales rates in a challenging
market whilst also improving pricing.

The Group continued to be iImpacted
by the challenging secondary housing
market with the average time to sell
out slightly higher than in the prior
year, This average now stands at

19 months (FY16: 18 months) for

alt sites sold out during FY17.

During FY17, we worked closely with our
third-party part-exchange providers to
improve the terms of the part-exchange
offering. In addivon, we successfully
piloted an in-house part-exchange
scheme on 163 transactions in which
dependent properties are temporarily
taken onto our own balance sheet
pending cnward sale. This resulted

in a cost saving of c.£1m in relation to
the 49 properties re-sold during FY17,
when compared tc the costs associated
with using third-party part-exchange
providers. As at 31 August 2017, we held
114 properties on the balance sheet

at a net carrying value of £31.9m.

Development initiative

Our development initiative, also
launched in FY15, aims to reduce

the time taken between securing

land and build start. This involved

the implementation of a number

of process improvements with
particular focus on ‘ways of working’,
the planning process and increased
standardisation. This enabies the
business to bring forward profitable
developments, accelerate growth plans
and improve capital turn. The initiative
is now embedded in all regions and is
beginning to produce positive results.

A number of changes designed to
accelerate this cycle were implemented
during the year. In particular, we have
focused on local censultations within
the planning process and implemented
our new Datum tool to suppart product

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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and design standardisation and value
engineering. Our target for reducing
the time taken between land exchange
and starting build is 16 manths for
standard sites achieving a first time
detailed planning consent. During FY17,
we saved an average of four weeks per
scheme, with the total time taken from
land exchange to build start averaging
c18.1 months (FY16: ¢19.1 months)

During the year, a Product Approval
Group {'PAG') was established to
enhance our product offering and
identify and resclve persistent

issues. The PAG is made up of senmor
management team members with
representatives from Sales and
Marketing, Management Services,
Development, Construction,
Procurement, Customer Services, and
Heatth & Safety. The PAG meets regularly
to achieve greater standardisation
across the Group, optimise product
selection and improve design.

Build initiative

The build initiative, launched in FY15,
continued to drive improvements to

the build process during the year, to
accelerate build timescales, reduce
build costs and enhance margins.
Specific focus has been placed on
supply chain management to maximise
savings as well as driving towards longer
term benefits via the increased use

of modern metheds of construction.
The Group's framework of critical
controls introduced last year is now fully
embedded across all our regions and

is driving improvements to build cycle
times and budgets. This initiative has
delivered a c.four week (FY16: c.three
week]) time saving from build start to first
occupation and has identified savings
opportunities to the value of £127k per
development in relation to materials
and labour which will help to mitigate
the impact of build cost inflation.

Our product ranges

During the year we repositioned our
product branding in order to capitelise
on our existing strong McCarthy & Stone
brand recognition. This will now be
used in a unified way across our three
products: our Assisted Living product
has been rebranded Retirement Living
Plus and our Ortus Homes product
has been rebranded as Lifestyle

Living. This also allows us to optimise
our marketing spend and create
consistency acress cur product names,
As part of our Lifestyle Living range,

we will shortly deliver our first 100%
bungalow development of 30 units at
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Chief Executive's Statement continued
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Graphicremaved

1. Prime Minister Theresa May with CEQ Clive Fenton at Swift House, Maidenhead

wymaondham, Norfolk, which is now
under construction. There is a growing
need for medern, low-maintenance
and well-connected bungalows

among the older population and the
appropriateness of this form of housing
in later life is well-proven. The supply
of bungalows in the UK has also been
in steady decline, with anly 2,210" new
bungalows registered with the NHBC
in 2016, in comparison to 26,408'

i 1986. The particular shortage of
bungalows and other houses for

older pecple means they are likely

to attract a high level of demand.

We are also exploring the provision

of bungalows and cottages on

larger schemes, opening up exciting
new possibilities for maximising
development potential on certain sites,
as well as providing for completely

new land opportunities. As of

31 August 2017, we had 222 (FY16:
127) bungalows within our land bank.

Our Management Services business
The rapid growth of our Management
Services business continued during the
year, adding 48 new develepments to
its portfolio, which now total 312 (FY16:
264) managed developments. Providing

30 McCarthy & Stone plic

our own management services allows
us te establish a unigue relationship
with our customers, providing personal
and efficient services that not only help
them, but also support the point of sale,
and allow us to deliver industry-leading
standards of customer satisfaction.

Our customers

We are pleased to report that we have,
ance again, achieved the full Five Star
rating in the Home Builders Federation
('HBF) custamer satisfaction survey this
year. This marks the twelfth consecutive
year in which more than 0% of our
customers have said that they would

be prepared to recommend Us to a
friend. We are the only housebuilder

of any size or type to win this award
every year since it was introduced in
2005. This sustained recognition by

our customers of the quality of product
and service we deliver is a strong
endorsement of our continued desire
to design, build, sell and manage the
very best retirement developments.

Quality

The Group was also pleased tc achieve
15 Quality awards, 7 Seals of Excellence
and 1 Regional Winner in the 2017
NHBC Pride in the Job awards, marking

|

2 50% increase in awards from 2016.
The scheme is dedicated to recognising
construction site managers who achieve
the highest standards in housebuilding
and has been instrumental in driving up
standards in the sector for 37 years.

Our employees

Cur performance this year would

nat have been possible without the
dedication, enthusiasm and expertise of
our people. We are building a culture of
excellence that provides opportunities
for development and recognises
achievements by regutarly celebratng
those employees who go the extra mile
for a customer or colleague through
our instant, quarterly and annual

PRIDE awards. ) am also delighted

to report that, in our most recent
employee survey, 87% (FY16: 89%) of
our employees confirmed that they are
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone.

Health and safety

| am also pleased to report that we
have continued to make good progress
with developing a culture of excellence
in health and safety across the Group.
Our vision is not just to achieve health
and safety comphance but tc lead cur
sector with a robust and consistent



Graphic removed

DID YOU
KNOW?

312

Our Management Services
business has 312 developments
in their portfolio (FY )

Image.
2 Wairtisiey Piace, Bishops Waoitnam

safety culture across our organisation.
Our internal monitoring regime is
supporied by a rigerous, Independent
site inspection pregramme including
regular reporting updates to the
Board. During FY17, we received

three BSG Health and Safety awards,
including one award for Best Use of
Technology for our pioneering work
using drones for roof inspection to
reduce the need for work at height.

Housing White Paper

In February 2017, we welcomed the
Housing White Paper “Fixing our
broken housing market”, the country’s
first housing strategy for six years,
it proposed a number of measures
to support housebuilding and we
were particularly pleased to see a
number of positive references to
the need to increase the provision
of specialist retirernent housing.

1 NHREC, New Home Stolistres Review 2016
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The White Paper notes that the
Government will explore ways to
stimulate the market to deliver

new homes for oider people and is
introducing a new statutory duty,
through the Neighbourhood Planning
Act, on the Secretary of State to
produce, for the first time, guidance
for local planning authorities on how
their local development documents
should meet the housing needs of older
people. Guidance produced under
this duty will set clearer expectations
about planning to meet the needs of
older pecple, including supporting
the development of such homes near
local services, and we understand
this will be published shortly.

In addition, the White Paper nates the
Government's new commitment to
explore ways to help older people move
at the right time, including possible
future incentives. We are working

with the Government to provide more
information on how this incentive might
wark, including a possible one-time
Stamp Duty exernption for older people
downsizing. Such policies would help
older people to move, which would aiso
in turn hejp first time buyers onto the
housing ladder and encourage further
demand for retirement housing,

Government consultation on
ground rents

In June 2017, the Government also
launched a consultation on tackling
unfair practices in the leasehold market
with particular reference tc leasehold
housing and unfair escalation clauses
for ground rents. We understand and
support the need for action In this area.
Our ground rents are on fair and stable
terms as they are fixed for fifteen years
and increases are linked to the higher
of 2% or Retail Price Index (RPI'). There
have undoubtedly been cases where
the system has been abused by some,
including with ground rents that double
every ten years, and we understand
why DCLG is considering taking acion
to protect homebuyers. We welcome
this, but have raised concerns about
the further proposals arcund reducing
ground rent income for all leasehold
properties o a zero or peppercorn rent.

Leasehold is a common and widely
accepted form of tenure for apartment
living and has traditionally been

used as an efficient way of managing
apartment blocks and managed estates

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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that contain a number of residents on
the same site, often with competing
voices. With best practice and proper
guidance in place, it can work well, and
has done for a number of years, and
the vast majority of apartments are
on fair terms. Ground rent helps to
keep the freeholder actively involved
in the development and is a key part
of this system. We have responded
accordingly to the Government’s
consultation and we await its cutcome.

Outlook and current trading

The workflow of the business remains
on track to support our growth
strategy. Build activity commenced ‘
on 73 sites guring FY17 (FY16: 54) and
of the c.80 sales releases which the
Group plans to deliver in FY18 (FY17:
52), 96% are now uhder construction.
During the first 10 weeks of the year
17 new sites (FY17: 13) have been
successfully launched and this has
contributed to an improvement in our
forward order book, which currently
stands at £277m (FY17: £250m). First
occupations are planned to increase
to more than 65in FY18 (FY17: 49) and
are expected to be weighted towards
the second half of the year due to the
timing of our build programmes. We
therefore expect the delivery profile
of the Group's profits between H1
and H2 to be similar to that in FY17.

We have started the new financial
year with a high-quality land bank,

a strong net cash position and an
experienced management team in
place. We also have the necessary
regicnal infrastructure and strength
of brand that ensures that we are
uniguely placed to capitalise on the
significant demographic opportunity
available to us. We remain an track
to deliver our strategic growth
otjective of building and sefling more
than 3,000 units per annum and
continue to target a Return On Capital
Employed {ROCE") of 25% when the
business achieves scale.

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer
13 November 2017
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Qur Business Model

The Group has a proven business model of buying land,
securing detailed planning consent and then building, selling and
managing high-quality developments across the UK that are
specifically designed to meet the lifestyle needs of older people

Our customers

Our distinct and growing customer base is at the heart of everything we do

a Target customer age over £0s in Retirernent Living, over 70s » Those who wish to maintain their independence

in Retirement Living Plus and over 55s in Lifestyle Living with support on-hand if, and when, required
s Older owner-grcupiers who are keen to downsize into a Addressing undersupply of hernes dedicated to
attractive and secure housing with shared benefits the needs of our customer base

and companicnship

1. Targeted
\and buying

We buy land and secure detailed
planning consents in locations
where we know our customers

would be happy to live

We provide Our apartments
afirst-class L. . are high quality
customer Our driving ambition and designed
experience, is to enrich the lives around the
enhanced by of our customers. If we needs of older
our specialised succeed in this aim we customers
g?f;\:li%egss will maximise long-term

value for our
stakeholders and
shareholders

Our developments are We build our products
marketed to attract efficiently in a safe
older homeowners environment, using 40

looking to downsize years of experience

The principal risks and uncertainties associated with our Business Model are described,
together with the mitigating actions on pages 56 and 57.

2 McCarthy & Stone pic
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Core elements of our business model

1. Targeted land buying

We buy land in appealing locations

The sites are typicaily brownfield locations, well-located relative to essential services
1IN towns and cities, and attract less competitien from other housebuilders

2. Effective planning
and design

Qur in-house planning team, the ‘Planming Bureau, aims to obtain the best possible planning
consent as quickly as possible by applying directly for detailed planning permission

High-quality apartments designed around the changing needs of older customers

3. Industrydeading
constructionina
safe environment

Efficient and cost-effective construction using 40 years' experience
Industry-leading health and safety standards

4. Unique sales
and marketing

Marketing with a focus on consistency and transparency ensuring that the customer journey
is as straight forward as possible

Sales process focused on supporting our customers and their families fram initial enguiry
through to legal completion

5. Customer-focused
management services

—

Providing the highest quality property management, care and support services in response
to our customers’ and homeowners’ changing needs

~

Graphicremoved

]
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Our Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Strategic aim

We aim to identify sufficient high-quality land opportunities to meet our growth plans over the

medium and long term

Key performance indicators |_
(KPls)

New sites exchanged

/5

(FY16: 65)

Land bank units

9,96

{F¥16:10,186)

Number of years’ supply
within our land bank

4.3

(FY16: 4.4)

Investment in land and build

£0.5bn

(FY16: £0.5bn) |_

KPI - Land bank (units}

Graphicremoved

|

31 August 2017 Arsld B

Owned and unconditional land bank 1,620 2,287
Conditionally contracted land bank 4,509 4,504
6,129 6,791

Comstruction work In progress 2,699 1,883
Finished stock 1,139 1,512
Tatal owned and controlled Jand bank 9,967 10,186
Number of years’ supply based on cormpietions in the financial year 4.3 years 4.4 years

image' 1 Willoughby Place, Bourton-on-the-Water
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Strategic priority
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Investment in
fand and build

Investment in land and build
FY16 FY17

£0.5bn

In FY15 we announced the strategic am
of investing £2.5bn in land and build
over the four years ta FY19 1n support of
cur strategic growth objective.

£0.5bn

Medium-term target

£2.5bn

We have continued to make good
progress with our target of £2.5bn
investment in land and build with a
further £472m invested in land and
build during the year (F¥16. £468m).

Further information on this strategic priority is provided on pages 48 to 51.

Highlights in the year

New sites exchanged

m 75 high-quality sites with attractive
embedded margins added to land
bank in FY17 {FY16: 65), equivalent to
€.3,164 additional plots (FY16: ¢ 2,614
plots), a 15% increase in the number
of sites, and a 21% INcrease 1N the
number of units

w Land secured with a high level of
optionality {71%)

= The market for land remains
relatively benign and competition
for our typical brownfield sites is
still highly fragmented

= The business continues to maintain
operational focus and discipline in
the assessment of its land purchases
to ensure that returns continue to
flow to sharehclders

Land was secured across all
three products.

[ N

Graphic removed

L |

Land bank

m Theland bank as at 21 August 2017
was 9,967 units (FY16: 10,186 units)

s Total cwned and controlied land bank
as at 31 August 2017 represents 4.3
years supply (FY16: 4 4 years)

There is detailed planning consent in

place for:

= 100% of FY18 planned first
occupations

= 65% of FY19 planned first
occupations

Case study: Engagement on planning issues with local communities

Ocean House, Cariyon Bay

Development:
32 Lifestyle Living apartments

The story:

We signed a 24-month option
agreement to purchase the site of
this former hotel in Qctober 2014

This gave us time to address the
planning issues relating to the loss of
the hotel and employment, and 0
arrive at the right quality of design
required for such a sensitive location

Extensive engagement with locai
community, interest groups and the
media meant that the benefits of
providing specialist retirement
nousing were balanced against any
concerns regarding the loss of the
existing use.

Consequently, plans for the 1.7 acre
site were successfully approved an
the first ume of asking by Cornwall
Ceuncil's Planning Committee.

Qpened in July 2017, Ocean House,

Carlyon Bay is a development of 32
high specification two bedroom

-

apartments, less than 300 feet from
the bay itself, giving fantastic views
and access to the beautiful outdoors.
Each luxurious Lifestyle Living
apartment has been carefully
designed to provide the best of
comfortable, modern living for the
aver 55s.

-

Graphic removed

|
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Our Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Graphic removed

Background to our land buying
= Qur sites are typically centrally
located within towns and cities

m Sites range from 0.5t¢ 3.0 acres
Insize

m Less competition for our sites r |

from traditional househbuilders, r j
who tend to be interested in
larger, usually greenfield,
locations
. Graphic removed

= Limited on-site affordable
housing requirements and
mitigated impact of Section 106'
and Community Infrastructure

Levy (CIL)" payments I_ J

= Experienced in-house planning L
team, ensuring a consistent Gary Day, Land & Planning Director

Graphic removed

approach to submission and “ . .
negotiation of planning L J Our differentiated land
applications model ensures that

= Optimised development density moges: we adopt clear land

1 Olwvier Pigce, Wilton

2 Birch Court, Morriston acqujsition criteria and
a strict approval process”

through reduced on-site parking
and amenity space requirements

T See page 158 for glossary of terms
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Effective planning
and design

Strategic aim
Our aim is to operate an efficient and effective planning process and to design
great homes to meet our customers’ ever changing needs and improve their quality of life

KPIs [ T

Detailed planning consents

64

(FY16: 60)

First time planning consents

(FY16: 69%)

Successful planning appeals

64%

(FY16: 42%)

Retained customer
satisfaction rating

Five star HBF | _{

Lifestyle Living annual legal l_
completions

101

(FY16: 88}

Graphic removed
Weeks saved per scheme P

from land exchange to
build start

c.4

(FY16: .17 weeks) L _I

fages. 1 (alica Court, Glossop 2 Blake (ourt, Bridgwater
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Our Business Model continued

Effective planning

and design

[ Bl

Graphic removed

L _

Jadon Silva, Group Product and
Development Director

“Our aim to deliver products
tailored to our customers’
needs has led to a number
of formal product reviews,
offering significant
aesthetic enhancement”

38 McCarthy & $tone plc
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Case study: Shortening development cycle

Tenterden, Kent

Development:
36 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

m Contracts exchanged (subject
to planning). 29 February 2016

= Achieved planning permission:
14 September 2016 (local first
time cansent In 28 weeks from
land exchange)

= Achieved build start: 5 June 2017
(66 weeks or ¢.15.3 months from
land exchange)

The main facters that helped shorten
the development cycle were:
= Designing the building using our

standard apartment types and
standard details to simplify the
design process whilst producing
an external design that was
strongly influenced by the local
vernacular and perceived by the
local community to be in keeping
with the local style

The site-enabling works were
simplified through improved
collaboration (i.e. underground
drainage, car parking design,
retaining walls) to ensure we ceuld
rnove quickly from site acquisition
to the construction of the new
develcprment
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Q

Operational efficiency:
Development initiative

Development cycle
FY16 FY17

€.19.1 months

The development intiative, introduced
in FY15, aims to reduce the time taken
between land exchange and build start.
Anumber of changes designed to
accelerate this cycle were implemented,
focusing on the planning process,
improved local consultations, increased
product and design standardisation and

€181 months

Medium-term target

16 months

value engineering. Qur target far
reducing the time taken between land
exchange and starting build 1s 16 months
for standard sites achieving a first time
detailed ptanning consent. During FY17,
a further ¢ four weeks per scheme have
been saved from land exchange to build
start, averaging at .18.1 months.

N\
\n

Continued product
innovation

(i} Customer satisfaction
The aim is to retain our Five Star
HBF customer satisfaction rating

The Five Star HBF customer
satisfaction rating was retained
for the 12th consecutive year.

Lifestyle Living units sold as a percentage of total completions

FY16 FY17
3.8%

(ii) Expand customer base
Grow Lifestyle Living to c10% of
annual legal completions

4.4

Medium-term target

10 %

Lifestyle Living continued to grow durin
FY17 1o 4.4% (FY16: 3.8%) of annual lega
completions, despite a lower number
of sales releases in the year: four
compared to five sales releases in FY16.

Further information on these two strategic priorities is provided on pages 50 and 51.

Highlights in the year

Planning consents

= FY17 was another strong year for
planning, with detailed planning
consents achieved on 64 sites,
representing ¢.2,473 units (FY16: 60
sites, representing ¢.2,449 units)

= During FY17 we achieved 75%
success on first time planning
consents (FY16: 69%) and won nine
appeals (c.329 units) representing a
64% {(FY16: 42%) success rate. This
compares favourably against the
national average rate of 32%'

Product Appraval Group

During FY17, a Product Approval Group
(‘PAG’) was established to enhance our
product offering, and identify and resolve
issues. Members of PAG includes seniar
managers from Sales and Marketing,
Managament Services, Development,
Construction, Procurement, Customer
Services, and Health & Safety. [t meets
regularly to deliver optimum product
selection and design decision-making.
PAG has led tc greater standardisation
across the Group.

1 Planning lnspectorate Statistics (PINS), August 2017,
based an 17,052 appeais during the year ended
30 june 2017, with 3,578 appeals aflowed

Continuous product improvements

Our am to deliver products tailored

to our customers' needs has ledto a

number of product improvements:

» A Bistro concept kitchen has been
ntraduced into Retirement Living
Plus, providing a more flexible
dining experience

= Our bathrooms have undergone
a significant makeover, offering
significant aesthetic enhancement.
Through improved purchasing
agreements, bathrooms have not
only been enhanced in line with
changing trends, but significant
savings have alsc been identified,
¢ £20.5k per devetopment

w Fiectric car charging points have
been incorporated into the design
concept for our sites

u improved kitchen design, making
better use of space

Standardisation

The Group uses the integrated BIM
(Building information Management)
toof Datum. It contains alt our standard
information ranging from apartment
plans to specifications for individual
building companents.

This information is stored alongside
spealfic project iInformation, incuding
architectural drawings, 30 models,

and specifications. The system enables
a full cost plan to be compiled for each
project from the early development
stages. This helps to ensure greater
predictability of project costs from the
outset. It has been refined during the
year, primarily focusing on increasing
the content and its functicnality.

It has enabled the Group to further
standardise the product, imprave
rebate compliance, and speed up the
development cycle.

More efficient development cycle
During FY17, cfour weeks per scheme
has been saved from land exchange
to build start. This was achieved by
focusing on the planning process, in
particular, local consultations, increased
product and design standardisation,
and value engineering.

Quality of praducts

At the annual Housebuilder Awards in
Novernber 2016 we were pleased to again
receive Best Retirement Scheme for Ramsay
Grange and Lyte Caurt, our combined
Retirement Living Plus and Lifestyle Living
development in Barnton, Edinkurgh.
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Our Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

Strategic aim

We aim te deliver exceptiohal build quality whist maintaining industryleading health and safety standards

KPIs |_ '"|

Build starts in the year

66

(FY16: 42)
Reduction in build cycle

C. 4 weeks

(FY16: c.3 weeks)

Gross profit margin

20%

(FY16: 21%)

Graphic removed

Graphicremoved

Image’
1 Savoy House and Tudor Rose Court, Southsea
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Strategic priority
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Operational efficiency:
Build initiative

Our build initiative continues to drive
improvements to the build process, to
accelerate build timescales, reduce build
costs and enhance margins. Spedific
focus has been placed on supply chain
rmanagement to maximise savings as well
as driving towards longer-term benefits

Build cycle
FY16

€15.3 months

During FY17, the average build cycle was
further reduced by c.4 weeks, down from
15.3 months in FY16, to 14.4 months.

Gross margin was reduced in the year
however, from 21% in FY16 to 20% N FY17,

€14.4 months

via the increased use of medern methods
of construction. The Group's framework
of critical cantrols introduced last year

is now fully embedded across all our
regions and is driving improvements

to build cycle times and budgets.

Medium-térm target

12 months

impacted by the age and mix of units
sold, increased incentive costs, build
cost increases offset by pricing
improvements and some additional land
renegotiation costs.

Further information on this strategic priority I1s provided on page 50.

Highlights in the year

Progress on build activity

FY17 saw a 57% increase in the number
build starts, at 66, compared with

42 in FY16.

During £Y17, 33% of build starts

were non-traditional buiid techniques
(i.e. Porotherrn blocks and ightweight
steel frame) Contributing to an average
build cycle reduction of four weeks.

Health and Safety

Health and Safety remains a top priority

for the Group. A recalibration of the

scoring criteria far the BSG audits in

FY17 resulted in lower average scores

during the year, but now provides

more meaningful feedback than before.

For FY17 we achieved a score of 86%

against the new scoring criteria, During

the year a number of improvements

have been made:

= Health & Safety Committee now
established, chaired by our Chief
Operating Officer

New pioneering processes have

been introduced:

a The education and involvement
of our subcontractors in Health
and Safety

= Theintreduction of & new
apprenticeship scheme

» Design initiative: a national training
programme rolled out to our
designers so they are equipped to
design risk cut of bulldings before
they are built

= Drones are being used for rooftop
Health and Safety inspections

= FEvery region now has their own
dedicated Health and Safety Adviser

= Defibribators are now fitted at every
new site

Pride in the Job awards

The Group was also pleased to win 15
awards at the 2017 NHBC Pride in the
Job awards, marking a 50% increase

in winners from 2016 in addition,

7 site managers also won Seals of
Excellence and 1 Regional Winner.

The scheme is dedicated to recognising
construction site managers who achieve
the highest standards in housebuilding
and has been instrumental in driving up
standards in the sector for 37 years.

BSG awards

a We won three BSG Health & Safety
awards in FY17: BSG Best Use of
Technology for Health & Safety award
for our pioneering work using drones
for rocf inspection to obviate the
need for work at height

s Two Site Manager of the Year awards

Procurement

Good progress was made with cost

saving initiatives dunng the year:

» Total rebates of ¢.£3.0m invoiced
in FY17 (FY16: £1.8m), as a result of
negotiating more favourable supplier
terms and improving compliance for
meeting rebates targets

s 22 procurement tenders completed;
identifying a savings oppaortunity of
£127,000 per development
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Our Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

N T

Graphic removed
Graphic removed

L |

L

|_ _| Case study: Shortening build cycle (build time reduced to 55 weeks)
Freeman House, Canterbury, Kent

Development: To overcome the various issues

i ivi surrounding the complex build of this
>4 Retirement Living apartments development, we changed the build

Graphic removed

|_ J The story: technology to Porotherm light weight
Freernan House, Canterbury, was a clay blocks with a =mm bed joint.

John Tonkiss, Chief Operating Officer complicated four-storey build, facing This technolcgy was known to te

\ o r e . the crickat ground, with various quicker to lay, ighter to construct and

The build initiative balconies 1o alt units, steel frame did not absorb as much rain during

apertures and shared access withthe  the inclement weather. As a result,

continues to drive cricket club and the local Sainsbury's. we delivered the scheme cne month

improvements to In addition, we had to accommodate ahead of programme taking first
: 52 days’ production down-time due occupations an 17 july 2017, resulting
the build prpcess, to cricket matches during the season.  in 55 total weeks or ¢12.8 months
accelerate timescales He build cvcl g from build start to first occupation
v The build cycle commenced in june
and reduce costs’ 2016, with a forecast first occupation
date of 14 August 2017.

fmages
1 Lancaster House, ickenham
2 freeman House, Canterbury

42 McCarthy & Stone plc



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unique sales
and marketing

Strategic aim

We aim to make our sales process as easy as possible for our customers ensuring
that they are fully supported from the initial enquiry right through to legal completion

KPIs

Legal completions (units)

2,302

(FY16: 2,296)

Average selling price (£k)

£273

(FY16: £264k)

Off-plan reservation rate (%)

53%

(FY16: 50%)

Months to reserve out
from first occupation

19

(FY16:18)

Graphic removed
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Our Business Model continued

Unique sales
and marketing

“

Graphic removed

Case study: Accelerating off-plan reservations

Jameson Gate, Portobello, Edinburgh

Development:
42 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

In order to maximise the strong database we had for Jameson Gate, we ensured
our sales team was fully inducted and provided with the tocls required to sell
with confidence. We opted to do an initial survey of our database, which provided
our teams with a detailed insight of the prospects allowing customers to move
guickly through the qualification process to bocking home appointments, from
which reservations were secured. This, along with events for our reservists and
industry networking, helped towards achieving 100% off-plan reservations at
Jameson Gate.

McCarthy & Stone plc

[ B

Graphic removed

L ]

David Bridges, Group Marketing & Customer
Experience Directar

“Our continued investment
in improving the customer
journey, together with
introducing the new
Relationship Manager role
across all regions has had a
significant positive impact
on off-plan sales rates”
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Strategic priorities

In F¥15 we announced the than 3,000 units per annum by
/ strategic target of seliing more FY13 at an ASP of ¢ £300k.
l I I Unit sales

ull FY16 FY17 Medium-term target

Sales growth 2,296 2,302 3,000
Total legal completions were slightly delivering just 42 first cccupations
ahead of the prior year despite {FY16: 69)
ASP
FY16 FY17 Medium-term target

£264k £273k £300k

Increase in ASP reflects a continuing improvement in sales mix and guality of sites

QOur sales initiative was introduced in qul rermaining apartments within
F¥15 to achieve more than 53% cff- 12 months cf first occupation.

plan reservations and then reserve

Average % sales off-plan
Y16 FY17 Mediumn-term target

Operational efficiency 50% 53y 50%
Sales initiatives:

{i) Achieve greater than 50% enquirers prior to site sales Jaunches,

off-plan reservations New Relationship Management teams

Our sales initiative continued to make are now in piace in all regions.

good progress during the year. The These teams have contributed to the

main focus has been on enhancing improvement in the off-plan sales

the early part of the customer journey rate to 53% in FY17, compared with

via website Improvements and the 50% in FY16; our second half levels

developrnent of early relationships with being particularly strong at 58%.

Average time to sell out

FY16 FY17 Medium-term target
18months 19months 12months

(ii) Reserve out remaining apartments hi%her than in the pricr year due to the
within 12 months of first occupation selling out of clder sites. Only one site
The average time to sell out was slightly now remains from FY14 and earlier years.

Further information on these twoe strategic pricrities is provided on pages 49 and 50Q.

Highlights in the year Website redesign Continued investment in sales training

Rebranding Cur website has been redesigned to We have delivered high-mpact training

We refreshed our product branding improve our custormer journey and to Area Sales Managers who are critical

during the year in order to capitalise achieve better search functionality. to sales performance and have setup a

on our strang brand which will now be A new digital agency was also appointed new national training academy.

used in a unified way across our three to support search engine optimisation,

products. Qur Assisted Living product pay per click and online display activity Part-exchange {PX)

was rebranded as Retirement Living Plus ~ ta improve our online efficiency. During FY17, we worked closely with our

and our Qrtus Homes product was third-party PX providers to improve the

rebranded as Lifestyle Living. This will Improved marketing materials terms of their part-exchange offering,

aliow us to capitalise on our existing A more consistent creative style was resulting in an estimated saving of

strong brand recognition, optimise our implemented during the year to deliver c£1m. In addition, we successfully

marketing spend and create greater stronger customer response to media. piloted an in-house part-exchange

consistency across our product names. scheme where McCarthy & Stone
Outsourced call handling now fulfy purchases the customer's property.

A national brand building TV campaign embedded This has resulted in a cost saving of

to be launched in the New Year. Ventrica, our cutsourced call centre, is c.£1min relaticn to 49 properties

driving improved conversion rates tovisits.  resold during FY17, when compared
to the costs associated with using
third-party part-exchange providers.
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Our Business Model continued

Customer experience
and property management

Strategic aim

We aim to enrich the lives of our customers by providing the highest quality property management,
care and support services in response to their changing needs

KPls

-

Number of managed
developments

312

Meals per month

c.60,500

(FY16: €.43,200)

(FY16: 264)

Number of homeowners

c.14,600

(FY16: ¢.12,000+

CQC score (rated “Good")

98%

{FY16; 98%)

Retained five star customer
satisfaction rating

Five star
HBF

Highlights in the year
Customer satisfaction
As the business continued to grow, ocur
management services division remained
committed to maintaining its customer-
focused approach, ensuring its speed of
growth never compromised the guality
of service it provided. The positive
results from a recent customer
satisfaction survey demonstrated this
ethos of excellence. 4,258 homeowners,
inapartments first built and sold more
than 18 months ago, responded to an
independent survey in 2017. Nine out
of ten said they were satisfied with the:
= Mmanagement services on offer
= attention to detail undertaken
» desire to deliver innovative
new services which allowed
homeowners to enjoy a safe and
secure, independent lifestyle at
the developments fooked after by
our management services division

46 McCarthy & Stone plc

Additional care and

domestic hours per month

c.10,860

{FY16: .8,400)

L

Improvements in the

handover process

Over the last year our management
services division has been impraving
and aligning the handover process
from the construction teams to provide
a much enhanced customer experience,
All the regions have now implemented
a new phased occupation protocol,
which locks at the develcpment from
our customers’ perspective.

CQC score

98% of our inspections have been
rated "Good". We are always looking
to develop our people ang improve
our processes in order to provide a
high-quality service.

Qur focus 15 on evidencing that we
pay attention to the detail tc make a
difference to homeowners' lives and
being able to demonstrate that we
always go the extra mile.

Graphic removed

Qur awards

At the annual Housebuilder Awards in
November 2016 we were pleased to
receive Best Customer Satisfaction
Initiative for cur approach to ensuring
that we deliver a five-star service

for our homeowners. The Group has
also won "Best Retirement Scheme”
at the annual Housebuilder Awards
in2016.

McCarthy & Stone’s commitment to
quality and custamer service continues
{0 be recognised by homeowners.

In March 2017, the Group received

the full Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction from the HBF for the

12th consecutive year - making it the
only UK housebuilder, of any size or
type, to achieve this accolade.
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Mark Riddington, Managing Director
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited

“Over the last 12 months
our management
services division has been
improving and aligning the
handover process from
the construction teams
to provide an enhanced
customer experience”

STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Graphic removed
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Case study: Providing care and support to our homeowners

Sharon Gratton, House Manager

Location:

Rockhaven Court, Horwich, Bolton
Development:

45 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

Sharon was a finalist in the On-
Site Staff Member Category at the
ARMA ACE 2017 awards, which
was a fantastic achievernent.
Despite not winning, she was
“highty cormmmended”

Sharon is a shining beacon of what
our House Managers and Estate
Managers do on a daily basis. Frcm
the day she welcorned her first
homeowner, Sharon has made it her
primary objective to ensure everyone
feels welcarmne and guickly settles
inte their new living environment
that promotes independence,
companionship ana security. She is
the first to say that it's been the most
rewarding role in her career so far.

Whilst sustaining an active and
stimulating activities calendar
for homeowners to enjoy seems
straightforward, the amount of
planning involved should not be

underestimated, especially when
factoring in peoples' different health
and mooility needs. For Shargn,

it's more than just a job title. It's

a deeply felt vocation to ensure

the welfare and happiness of the
homeowners under her care.

Whether crganising 2 programme

of stimulating sodial activities,
dealing with emotional distressing
circumstances, routine development
issues or just being 2 “good
neighbour”, Sharon's professionalism,
ermpathy, attenticn to detail and
sense of fun shines through. She is
loved by her homeowners, respected
by her peers and recognised by
visitors for the outstanding job she
has done for the past five years

[ ]

Graphic removed
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Our Medium-Term Strategy

Creating an efficient
and scalable business

ﬁl Sales growth

Our medium-term strategy is to create an efficient
and scalabie business capable of building and selling

more than 3,000 units per annum

To deliver this, we focus on four strategic priorities:

T

[

£

Increased
investmentin
land and build

We aim ta invest £2.5bn
in{and and build over
four years from FY16

to FY19 to support

growth and capture

a larger share of the
retiree market

I
9,

Operational
efficiency

We aim to create a
more efficent and
scalable business by
shertening the werking
capital cyde across our
core activities: sales,
development and build

Q

o
Continued

product
innovation

We aim to meet our
customers’ changing
needs and expand our
customer base through
increasing capacity and
capability and ensuring
ongoing innovaticn
across our products

Focus on financial performance

We operate with financial discipline and an appropriate capital structure
in arder to maximise margins and return on capital employed ('ROCE?}
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 FY17 Pragress in FY17 for FY18
Buld and sell | Legal 1,923 2,296 2,302 w Total legal completions u Deliver strong
more than completions . ., . maintained at FY16 levels upward momenturm
_..I 3,000 units (unics) units units units despite delivering just 49 in forward order
— per annum first occupations this year book supported by
Sales at an average comparedto 6% in FY16 an increased level
growth 3?'!2%88&6 w 126 apartments soid to of sales releases
: PfP Capital as part of a w Continue to secure
Build and sell new strategic relaticnship completion chains
more than 3,000 allowing access to the via effective use
UNIts per annum growing rental market of part-exchange
in the medium ERREEEEEE S R S S Sl e when required
term ASP £245k £264k £273k u3% improvement in ASP
£k reflecting a conunuing = Delver ¢80 new
irprovement in sales mix sales releases
and quality of sites and ¢.65 first
...................................................................... occupations
Revenue £485.7m | £635.9m | £660.9m |« AChiE'VEd 4% revenue growth m Continue to grow
(Em) despite a weakened forward rental opportunit
crder book brought inta PP Y
the year and fewer first
accupations
Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 F¥16 FY17 Progressin FY17 for FY18
£2.5bn Cash £0.4bn | £0.5bn |£0.5bn |wContinuedtoinvestinland m Targetland and
investmentin |investmentin and build throughout the build spend of
land and build |land and build year despite seasonal cash C.£0.6bn- ¢.£0.70n
by FY12 (£bn) availability skewed towards
Investment the second haif of FY17 . Eg;]ugﬂshg iaa;%a
in land and = FY¥17 land and build spend in accordance
build of £0.5bn was on target With our strict site
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" purchase criteria,
£2.5bn investment Land bank 10,087 10,186 9,967 m Land bank stands at 9,967 Securing contract
n land and {units) units units units units and represents conditionality where
build over four 4.3 years supply appropriate
yearsto FY13to n There is detailed planning
supportgrowth in place for 100% of FY18
and capture 2 planned first occupations
larger share of the and 65% of FY19 planred
retiree market first occupations
Sites acquired (90 85 75 m 75 sites acquired during
sites sites sites FY17, reflecting continued

momentum within aur land
acquisttion strategy and the
avallability of high-quality
sites

m Terms agreed on additional

1,355 units, representing a
further 0.6 years supply
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Our Medium-Term Strategy continued

Performance

Strategic Medium-term Objectives

priarity targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 FY17 Progressin FY17 for FY18
improve Capitalturn 1.0x 1.2% 1.1% m The decreaseir FY17 m Continue to improve
capital turn underlying operating profit off-plan sales

o in order to together with an increased rates and target in

maximise level of investment in land excess of 50% off-

0perationa| ROCE and bulld has led o a plan reservations

. reduction in capital turn across all Fy18 first
EfﬁCIency o LIx (FY16 1.2%) occupations

Create an even
more efficient
and scalzble
business to
support planned
Investment and
targeted growth

Sales initiative

w Exceeded our target to
achieve greater than 50%
off-plan reservations,
with 53% off-plan sales
achieved in FY17 In total, 26
developments of the 49 FY17
first occupations exceeded
the 50% target, with six
developments exceeding
80% off-plan sales rates

m Average time taken to sell
out increased slightly to
19 months due to the final
sell-out of older sites

Development initiative

u Time taken between lang
exchange and build start
reduced by ¢ four weeks for
standard sites. Buillg activity
commenced on 73 sites
during FY17 (FY16: b4)

Build initiative

= Datum platform is now
in place to support
standardisation, value
engineering and cost
management

m £3m of rebates invoiced
iNFY17 (FY16: £1.8m)

w22 procurement tenders
completed during
the year, delivering a
savings oppaortunity of
£127k per development

u Target further
reductions in time
1o sell gut

w Continue to roll out
our develcpment
iniative and target
further reductions
in average time
taken from land
exchange to build
start

m Focus on tighter
management
of build cycle
by embedding
consistent working
practices and rolling
out Datum platform
across all new-build
startsin FY18

m Continue to adopt
modern metheds
of construction in
order to reduce
build times further
and pursue
further margin
improvement

m Ensure maximum
rebate compliance
is maintained across
all developments
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl |FY15 F¥ie Fy17 Progress in F¥17 for FY18
{\ Customer Customer 5star 5 star 5star = Five Star HBF customer w Retzin Five Star
Q satisfaction satisfaction satisfaction rating retained HBF customer
v Retain rating for 12th consecutive year satisfaction rating
c . d Five Star HBF m Successfully increased u Continue to
ontinue customer capacity and capabity of increase capacity
product satisfaction Our management services and capability
H . rating business to ensure that of managerment
innovation we can meet the needs services business in
Meet our of customers at all new order to keep pace
customers’ developments. Volurme of with growth in new
changing needs devetopments managed developments
and expand our increased from 264 to 312
customeriase | oo e e e e
Expand Lifestyle Living | 1.0% 3.8% 4.4% u Lifestyle Living now u Grow Lifestyle
customer base | completions represents ¢.7% (FY16; 8%) Living to C.10%
Graw Lifestyle % oftlot_al of land bank of land bank
Living 16 c.10% | completions) w101 (F¥16: 88) Lifestyle Living |m Continued
of annual legal Jnits sold during FY17 with innavaticn in our
completions four new Lifestyle Living core products
developments released for ensuring that we are
sale in FY17 (FY16; five) meeting the needs
of our customers
= Continue to expand
our customer base
through Private
Rental Sector (PRS)
opportunities and
our Lifestyle Living
‘Bungalow' product
Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPt |FY15 FYle FY17 Progress in FY17 for FY18
Improve Underlying £95.3m |£107.2m |£96.2m |=£11.2m{2pptsir operating w Continue to target
underlying cperating margin) decrease as a result high-quality land
operating profit! (Fm) of the age and mix of units with attractive
profit and and underlying; 20% 17% 15% sold, increased incentive costs; margins
Focus on maximise operating and build cast increases offset| .
financial margins profit margin by pricing improvements, - gﬁ;é'zgsttgaemrgg;e
Target (%) some a(_jdmona! land via the build
performance im d renegotiation costs and our e
prove ; b ; nitiative
Target top- ROCE (35% continued investment in our
quartile sector target) regional infrastructure w Maintain strong
e R A B S ARG RERAA Sl Skl balance sheet
margins and ROCE (%) 20% 20% 16% ® 4ppts ROCE arosion 3s a
returns on capital ! and focus on cash
resuit of a decrease in the management
FY17 underlying operating
profit together with an m Business growth to
increased level of investment | achieve operational
inland and build leverage
Net (debt)/ (£44.4m)!1 £52.8m (£30.7m |=Maintained strong net cash
cash {£rm) position due to a disciplined
approach to land and
build spend

T Underhping operating profit hos been reconciled within note 6 to the Consolidated Finoncial Statements
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Financial Review

Operating profit

£94 2m

r —| {FY16: £95.1m}

Underlying operating profit’

£96.2m

{FY16: £107.2m)

Graphic removed

Net cash?

£30.7m

(FY16: £52.8m)

I_ _l TNAV?

Rowan Baker, Chief Financial Officer I ( ? ( 4
[ ] I I I

(FY16: £626.8m}

“The Group balance sheet remains

strong with net cash of £31 million Qurperformance
at the year end to support future ke progress tomareis achieving s
investment in land and build” SEhEant ocs placed o mvestment

inland and build and keeping the
workflow of the business firmly on track.

Revenue
Revenue increased by 4% this year to
£661m (FY16: £636m) primarily driven by
an increase in average selfling prices from
£264k to £273k reflecting a continuing
improvement in sales mix and quality
of sites. Legal completions remained
in fine with the prior year at 2,302
units (FY16: 2,296) despite a weakeneg
forward order book brought inte the
year and just 48 first occupations during
the year (FY16: 63). Volumes benefited
from the accelerated off-plan sales
rates improvement from 50% in FY16
to 53% in FY17 and the bulk sale of 126
apartments to PP Capital as part of the
1 Underiying operatng profit has been reconciled within note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements new strategic relationship allowing us
2 See poge 158 for glossary of terms to access the growing rental market.
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Profit

The Group achieved an underlying
profit befare tax for the year of £84m
(FY16: £105m) and a statutory profit
before tax of £92m (FY16: £93m).

This was achieved at a gross profit
margin of 20% (FY16: 219%3 and an
underlying operating margin of 15%
{FY16: 17%). This reduction in operating
profit margin was driven by the age
and mix of stock sold, an increase in
incentives offered to customers to
close out completion chains in light
of the increased uncertainty in the
secondary market, build cost increases
offset by pricing improvements, some
additional abortive land costs as we
sought to reposition aur land bank
and our continuing investment in
regional operational infrastructure

to support cur growth strategy.

The overheads in the business
continued te be well-controlled with
total administrative expenses for the
year of £37m (FY16: 33my, excluding
exceptional tems and amartisation
of brand. They remain at broadly the
same proporticn of revenue as last
year of 6% (FY16: 5%} and reflect the
investment being made to deliver
the strategic growth of the business.

Capital structure and interest

We closed the year with a tangible
gross asset value (TGAV'?) of £646m
(FY16: £574m), which was a year-on-
year increase of 13%, primarily due to
the continued level of land and build
investment during the year. Similarly,
our tangible net asset value increased
to £676m (FY16: £627m) The Group
continued to maintain a robust financial
position with a net cash balance of £31m
at 31 August 2017 (FY16; £53m) and
negative gearing of 4% (FY16: 8%). This
reflects management’s ongoing focus
on disciplined cash spend in response
to continuing economic uncertainty
and was achieved notwithstanding

the negative cash impact of our new
in-house part-exchange tool which
resulted in £32m part-exchange assets
being held on the balance sheet at the
year end (FY16 £nil). We maintained a
strong balance sheet and appropriate
headroom against our £200m revolving
credit factity (RCF) throughout the year.

The Group incurred net finance
expenses of £2m during the year

(FY16: £2m), benefitng from a full

year of lower interest costs under the
Group's amended RCF and the annual
revaluation of its shared equity debtors.

Exceptional costs

There were no exceptional costs
incurred during FY17. Total
exceptional costs recognised within

STRATEGIC REPORT

the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income guring

FY1€ were £10m, of which £3m

related to IPO adwsor fees and
associated costs and £1m related to
management incentives, restructuring,
redundancy and refinancing costs

Taxation

The effective tax rate was close to
the statutory rate during the current
financial year. The total tax charge

for the year was £18m {(FY16: £19m)
which represents an effective tax rate
of 18% (FY16: 21%) based on a profit
before tax of £92m {FY16: £93m)
Reductions in the rate of corporaton
tax to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 17%
from 1 Aprit 2020 were substantively
enacted on 18 November 2015 and

6 September 2016 respectively.

Earnings and dividend

Adjusted underlying basic earnings per
share decreased by 12% to 14 Z pence
{FY16:16.1 pence) reflecting the lower
level of profit after tax achieved this
year. Basic earnings per share for FY17
were 13.8 pence (FY16: 13.9 pence).
Details of the calculation of earnings
per share can be found innote 12 to
the cansolidated financial statements,

The Directors are proposing a final
dividend of 3.6 pence per share.

This follows the interim dividend

of 1.8 pence per share, giving a total
dividend for the year of 5.4 penice

per share. The propaosed final dividend
reflects our progressive dividend policy
as stated at the [PO. The propesed
dividend is covered 3 times by earnings.
Subject to shareholder approval at

the AGM, the dividend wili be paid

on 1 February 2018 to shareholders
on the register at 5 January 2018.

The total cost of the final dividend
is £19m, resulting in a total dividend
cost relating to the year of £29m
(FY16: £24m)

Risk management

The Group maintains a robust risk
management framework, providing
a clear link between strategy and the
strategic, operational and financial
risks faced by the business. The
approach te risk is set by the Board,
which maintains a close involvernent
in identifying and mitigating risk and
monitors certain key risk indicators at
Board meetings on a regular basis.

As part of managing the financial nisk

in the business, the potential impact of
a downturn in the housing market or
the broader UK ececnomic environment
is regularly evaluated and we have

a number of key risk indicators that

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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1 Swift House, Mmdenhead

are used at Board level in order to
assess this. Our national reach and
diversified nortfolio of land ensures
rthat we are not overly dependent on
particular locai markets er individual
developments. In additicn, cur distinct
business model helps to insulate our
business from a downturn, with land
acguisition normally contracted subject
to planning and also often subject to
commeraal viability or by way of option,
enabling us to review land acquisition
decisions in light of planning cutcomes
and latest market conditions prior

to committing significant capital.

Target returns

Our conunuing investment in land and
build in arder to deliver future growth
together with the lower underlying
operating profit delivered in FY17 led
1o a decrease in ROCE by 4 ppts to 16%
(FY16: 20%) and a reduction in capital
turnto 1.1 (FY16: 1.2x). These metrics
will recover, however, once our growth
plans begin to deliver results. The
warkflow of the business remains firmly
on track as a result of our centinuing
investment for growth and allows us to
target future increases in both margin
and ROCE with the aim of achieving a
ROCE of 25% over the medium-term.

Rawan Baker
Chief Financial Officer
13 November 2017

~op
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Risk Management

How we manage the
risks to our business

Effective management of risk Our risk management process

?s Integral to the SucceSSfUI 1. Identify risk 2. Determine 3. Treat, 4. Monitor risk 5 Rewview risk
|mplementat|0n of our risk appetite tolerate or

corporate strategy. Risk is ansfer sk

managed through a five-step > > > >

risk management process, . .

led by the Board B e KT foyeomls ek A

McCarthy & Stone’s governance

Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation
at Board level

Executive
Leadership Team

First line of defence:

Divisional and regional

management operational controls
andreporting
Site/development
management

Functional Second line of defence:
suppart policies and procedures

Third line of defence:

Risk and Internal Audit internal and external audit

The maintenance of formal risk registers, the identification of key control framewaorks, the monitoring of key risk indicators and the
pursuit of a broad assurance programme provide all levels of management with a clear framework within which to operate.

The Group’s risk management m Ariskinrelation to Government The Board has downgraded the risk
framework requires the maintenance legislation has been increased as assodiated with build programmes
and regular update of Group sk a resuit of the recently announced and build costs as further progress has
scorecards and regional risk registers to government consultation on been made in tightening the control
identify the risks to our business model ground rents environment arcund build costs.

and strategic plan, with the major risks w The Board has also recognised an

reviewed by the Board in the context increased risk in relation to the timing ~ The risk scarecards and registers

of the Group’s appetite for risk. Since of legal completions and profit being are supported by frameworks of key
the beginning of FY17 the Board has skewed towards the year end, which operational and financial controls that
recognised an increase in the following increases the risk in respect of enable risks to be treated, tolerated or
risks: forecasting accuracy and the timing transferred to third parties.

of cash receipts required to fund
further growth
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The risk scorecards and registers are
complemented by the monitaring of a
set of key risk indicators approved by
the Executive LLeadership Team, which
provide early warning of potential issues
and enable management (o react
accordingly. Those risk indicators
establish the risk appetite for each

risk and are monitered at Group and
regional levels,

Assurance 1S provided over the effective
design and cperation of the risk
framework through a formal programme
of assurance activity. This is structured
around three lines of defence:

1.
2.
3.

management assurance, through
operational controls and reporting
functional support in the form of
formal policies and procedures
programme of assurance activity,
including internal and external audit

During FY17 internal audit reviews have
focused on the following key areas of the
business and identified ways of
enhancing the contrel environment:

The selling processes post

first occupation

Building in line with budget and
programme incduding the
implementation of new commercial
and construction key controls
Customer satisfaction

IT project governance in relation

to new initiatives

Overall oversight is provided by the
Board, with individual members of the
Board and the Executive Leadership
Team sponsoring each of the key risks,

Monitoring key business risks

The Directors have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing
the Group, including those that would
threaten 1ts business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity.

Key business risks are formally
identified, reviewed and updated

by the Executive Leadership Team
avery six months using a risk scoring
methodclogy. Each risk is categorised
based on likelihood and potential
impact, Once agreed with the Executive
Leadership Team, the risks are plotted
on a risk heat map and submitted to the
Risk and Audit Committee for approval
and subsequently to the Board.

STRATEGIC REPORT

The risk appetite 15 established by a
bi-annual review of the risk heat map

by the Executive Leadership Team. This
review confirms whether the relative
position of risks is acceptable and if not
what actions need to be taken to reduce
the tikelihood or impact. Arating is given
10 each risk that defines whether the risk
is within the risk appetite and reguires
no further attention, if the risk is
crystallising and therefore action should
be taken before the risk appetite is
breached or whether the risk Is already
beyond the risk appetite requiring
immediate action. The status of each
key risk indicator is reviewed for all risks
beyond the risk appetite and reported
to the Executive Leadership Team and
the Board. As part of this review, the
Executive Leadership Team will review
the actions required and ensure that
progress is being made and conclude
whether the preposed actions are still
sufficient.

The risks attributed to each land
acquisition opportunity are assessed
by local regional management using
predetermined criteria and form
part of the regional submission to
the Group Jnvestment Committee,
which approves each land purchase.
Following iand acqguisition, the
construction and commercial risks
and cpportunities are recorded in a
development risk register. A range

of worst-case to best-case potential
out-turn costs are monitored and
managed throughout the construction
phase, allowing risks to be formally
managed and opportunities realised.

Internal control environment
The core elements of the Group-wide
internal control environment are
organisational structure, cufture and
values, corporate strategy and a key
controls framewaork.

Organisational structure

The Group’s organisational structure

is established around clear divisions of
responsibilities between the Board and
the Executive Leadership Team. The
Board is responsible for the operaticnal
control of the Group, including all
strategic, financial, organisational, legal
and regulatcry matters.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The Executive Leadership Team

is responsibie for the day-to-day
management of the operational
activities of the Group. Each member
of the Executive Leaderstip Team has
a 'leadership tear’ of direct reports,
wha are collectively respaonsible for
the overall sysiem of internal control
across the business

Culture and values

The Group has developed a values
framework which consists of five
cornerstone principles: passion,
responsibility, innovation, determination
and excellence {PRIDE). These are used
as a guide to conduct business from

key decisions to day-to-day activities,

These values are widely communicated
across the business to ensure
alignment with strategic aims and

to actively encourage a culture that
promotes teamwork, involvernent

and empowerment at all levels of the
Group. These values play a key rcle

in recruitment across the business.

Corporate strategy

The corporate strategy principally
focuses on investing £2.5bn inland and
buiid and on increasing the size of the
business over the medium term. The
strategy has been well documented
and communicated both internally

and externally. To support this strategy
the Group has identified five strategic
priorities, as discussed on page 48.

Key controls framework

The key controls framework defines the
Group's most important internal
controis anwhich it places key reliance
in the management of its core business
and reporting on its performance and
progress towards strategic objectives.
The Group operates consistent financial
management, reporting controls and
processes across its nine regions. These
are monitored by the Group Finandial
Controller and her team in arder to
ensure their effectiveness. The key
contrals framework is reviewed and
tested annually with the results
presented to the Board, and is also
subject to internal audit review.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, but are not iimited ta:

Risk area Risk description Mitigating actions
Economic Housebuilding 1s cyclical and reliant on the broader The Group closely monitors industry indicators and
conditions economy. A deterioration in the economic outlook, assesses the potential impact of different economic

including economic growth, inflation, irterest rates and
buyer confidence, could have 3 significant impact on the
Group's financial performance and ability to sell both
retirerment apartments and the properties acquired as
part of the recently introduced in-house part-excharge
scheme.

The uncertainty In the economy and specifically the
secondary housebuilding market following the result
of the EU Referendum and General Election is likely
1o continue in the short to medium-term as Brexit
negotiations continue.

scenarios. Decisions to allocate new capital to land and
build are managed centrally through the Group Investment
Committee, The Group aims to maintair a national and
product spread of developments to ensure that it is not
relant on ore particular locality or product type.

The operation of in-house part-exchange scheme
introduced during the year Is subject te strict controls and
regional limits.

In addition, over the course of the last finandial year, the Group
has sought te enhance the robustness of its business model
by developing a strategic relationship with PfP Capital to
access the growing rental market This will help to offset any
potential impact of a downturn in the seccndary housing
market.

Reputation
and customer
satisfaction

The Group constructs and sells a quality product to an
ageing and sametimes frail customer base and provides
ongoing management and personal care services. Any
issues with the products or services the Group provides
could impact on reputation or customer satisfaction to
the detriment of the Group's business maodel

Adverse national publicity with respect to re-sales,
especially older non-managed propertes and those sold
just prior to the housing market crash in 2008, can result
in tower resale values, which inturn can adversely impact
our ability to sell new retirement spartments.

The Group enforces strict procedures over the hendover of
developments for occupation and the handaover of specific
apartments to individual customers. Ongoing management
and personal care services are provided within a robust
framework of controls which is closely monitcred. The
business has a dedicated customer services team and
tracks customer satisfaction through NHBC, HBF and
internal surveys.

A new in-house estate agency has been established to
support the re-sales process for customers in our managed
developrents on the private market, with the aim of speeding
up the sales process and maximising value cn resale.

Sales
performance

©

The Group's growth plans assume that it can sell its
products at attractive prices. Any velume shortfall or pricing
weakness could have a significant impact on the Greup's
financial performance.

Detailed reporting enables the Group to monitor sales
and pricing at a site and unit leve! and regularly review
performance against expectation with regicnal
management. A strict approval process has been
introduced during the year for awarding discounts and
In¢centives in excess of certain thresholds.

Workflow
management

@

The Group has historically suffered from a bias towards
achieving the majarity of its completians and profit in the
second half of each financial year. Hence, any political
uncertainty or adverse market conditions during this period
could adversely impact the Group’s annual performance.
This was evidenced by the EU Referendurn resultin 2016
and to a lesser extent the General Election cutcome in 2017

The Group is taking action to spread the workflow mare
evenly throughout the year, which is likely to take effect
from FY1S onwards, and continues to seek ways in which
to improve this. Workflow is closely monitored by regionat
management and the Board.

Government
legislation

Like any other business, the Group is affected by changes in
Gavernment legislation. It is possible that the cutceme of the
recent Government consultation on unfair leasehold practices
could adversely impact the Group's business model

The Group closely meonitors Government proposals and
consultations and seeks alternative solutions, including
lobbying Government, submitting censultation responses,
and combining views with other companies in the sector
to mitigate any potential adverse impact on the business
model. The Group has recently carried out an impact
assessment of lower and no ground rents and reviewed
its land appraisal process accordingly.

Build
programmes
and build
costs

The Group's financizl performance is dependent on its
ability to deliver build programmes cn time and cn budget.
Build programme or cost over-runs could result in slower
sales or reduced margins,

Build progress and costs are reviewed regularly by
dedicated regional commercal teams, as well as being
reported to regional, divisionat and Group management.
Independent assurance is provided through a dedicated
commercial internal audit resource. Framework agreements
have been establisned with key subcontractors and
suppliers to provide greater certainty of price and supply. in
addition, the Group has recently implemented a tighter cantro!
framework over higher risk more complex developments.
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Mitga tig graons

Employees

The Group's employees are centraito the achievernent

of the Group's objectives, Fallure to recruit and retain
suffioent staff resource of the right guality could constrain
growth plans.

The Group has putin place attractive reward mechanisms
and provides extensive opportunities for personal
development ang training, both of which are regularly
reviewed against peer housebuilders and other employers
in local markets. Resource requirements are assessec against
annual budgets and recruitment processes are designed

10 ensure talent attraction to deliver the Group's plans,

Carrying value
of land

©

The net realisabie value of land owned by the Group may
deciine due to changes in the property market or other
cenditions, of the Group beirg unable to secure detaled
planning consent on land purchased uncenditionaily.

Whenever possible, contracts to purchase land are via option
agreement or are conditional on the Group cbtaining
detailed planning consent and contain a commercial viability
clause. The Group performs impairment reviews in line with
International Financial Reparting Standards {IFRS)
requirements

Health &
Safety

Corstructior. sites are inherently risky, and could expose
employees/contractors to the risk of serious injury/fatality

Homeowners in the devetopments the Group manages are
ageing and sometimes fraif, with the risk that they can be
more susceptible to injury.

The Group strives for excellence in health and safety and
considers it 1o De a top priority, The Heaith & Safety
Operations Director reports directly to the Executive
Leadership Team, identifying areas of concern, near misses
and acadents. This is supported by a rigorous, iIndependent
site inspection process which routinely assesses and
reports on standards. During the year, the Group aiso
established a Health & Safety Committee, chaired by our
Chief Operating Officer.

Land
acquisition
and planning

Pocr-quality land and/or location could resultin
programme/cost over-runs and gifficulty in selling Failure
10 obtain timely planning permissions will adversely affect
workflow, resulting in fallure to meet targeted growth rates,
future sales and/or cash flow.

Regional land buying teams are in place across all regions
provigding local knowledge and expertise These teams are
targeted on land exchange and completion as part of their
bonus structure,

We acquire land with a high-degree of conditionality

Regional planning teams have the support and oversight
of the Group Investment Carmmittee,

Cyber/data Failure of any of the Groups IT systems, in particular those  The Group maintains central IT systems and has in
relating to customer data, surveying and valuation, could place afully tested disaster recavery programme. Thisis
adversely impact the performance of the Group. supplemented by regular reviews to seek to reduce the nisk
of successful cyber-attacks and a Genera! Data Protection
Regulation {{GDPR'} programme to ensure comphance
Change
° Increased o No change o Decreased
Viability statement apprapriate that cur viability review period is broadly aligned

In addition to making a going concern statement, the
Directors are also required to make a longer-term viability
statement to comply with provision C.2.2 of the UK
Carporate Governance Code 2014.

In response to that, the Directors have assessed the
prospects and financial viability of the Group, taking into
account both its current position and circumstances, and
the potential impact of its principal risks. The Directors
consider a three-year period was appropriate for this
assessment as our capital cycle from land completion to
final sell-out of a development, for FY17 build starts, is
approximately three years, Qur land pipeline also provides
us with sufficient land under control to meet sales targets
for the next three years. Accordingly, we consider it

with the expected longevity of cur owned land supply.

The Group is subject to a number of principal risks (as
set out in more detail above, and the Directors’ viability
statement review considered the impact that these risks
might have on the Group’s ability to meet its targets This
was undertaken through the performance of a single
downside case sensitivity, which reflects a severe but
plausible impact assuming that appropriate steps are
taken to mitigate the impact of the downside.

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year
assessment period.

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Repart and Accounts 57



Corporate Social Responsibility Report

A responsible housebuilder

Graphicremoved

Our focus on enriching the lives of

our homeowners and employees
influences all of our activities,

from identifying and buying |_
suitable land to designing, building,
selling and managing high quality
age-exclusive properties

Graphic removed

Imoges.
T West Midlands Region, Dragon Boat Race
2 Celebrating the opening of Homon Court, Hunstanton
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Introduction

This, our secand Corporate Social
Respensibility ('CSR) report, since
re-joining the London Stock Exchange,
encompasses all the operations from
the land aquisition, planning and
design stage through construction

to management of our occupied
developments. It explains how we
interact with our stakeholders, namely
our employees, our customers, our
homeowners and the communities

in which we operate.

As the UK's leading retirement

housebuilder, cur driving ambition

across our business 1s to enrich

the lives of our homeowners and

employees. We aim (o deliver this Dy:

= crealing a great place to work
which is bath safe and nspiring
for our employees

» minimising the environmental
impact of our activities

= engaging positively with the local
communities in which our
developments are built

= building a culture of excellence in
health and safety across all our
busineass activities

= building safe and vibrant
developments to help older people
lead healthy independent lives
ensuring that they experience
retirement living to the full

Our CSR Committes meets quarterly
and s chaired by Gary Day, our
Executive Land & Planning Director.

It includes representatives from
acress the business - Land & Planning,
Procurement, Construction, Regionat
Management, Health & Safety, HR,
Communications, Management Services
and Legal. The Cormnmittee reports
directly to the Executive Leadership
Team and indirectly to the plc Board.

Qur priorities for FY17 and FY18

The main pricrities of the

Committee in FY17 have been:

= establishing KFPIs

= implementing a framework for
greenhouse gas emission reparting

During FY18 the Committee will focus on:

= continuing to improve our CSR
performance

= refining our CSR reporting framework

STRATEGIC REPORT

Planning and design

We understand that our homeowners
want Lo remain active within their
community and near to local amenities
and public transport links. On average
our homeowners move NG maore

than five miles from their current
home into a McCarthy & Stone
apartment, so cur developments

are clearly helping to meet a critical
and growing local housing need.

We have strict criteria when purchasing
land to ensure the location will suit the
needs and aspirations of customers,
Qur developments are typically built
on centrally located, urban, brownfield
sites which were previously developed
or had an existing established use.

Examples of sites we have purchased
include local authority surplus car parks
or buiidings, police and fire stations,
garages, pubs, care homes and hatels.
In FY17 92% (FY16: 94%) of our land
exchanges were brownfield sites.

We always seek tc optimise the
development density of our sites. This,
combined with a relatively low level of
car ownership and usage amongst our
homeowners, means that we deliver a

highly sustainable form of development.

Community consultation

We consult with local communities,
businesses and other relevant
stakeholders on every new planning
application we bring forward {both pre
and post-submission), including holding
ane-te-one meetings, discussions
with affected parties and public
exhibitions. This gives neighbours and
other interested parties a platform

to voice their opinions, many of

which help to inform our designs

and approach te construction.

During FY17, over 92 (FY16: 133)
consultations and exhibitions were held
with 84.4% (FY16. 79.6%) of attendees
advising that they found them informarive.

Construction

We are aware of the impact that the
construction phase of our activities can
have on the local community. All of our
sites must comply with internal policies
around levels of noise, cleanliness and
presentation and some of our sites

are accredited under the Considerate
Constructers Scheme (CCS').
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Minimising our impact on the
environment

There are clear environmental and
business benefits to designing energy
efficient homes, using responsibly
sourced and efficient materials, and with
the minimum of waste sent to landfill.

Having a clear understanding of where
our money is being spent and how much
waste we Create during the construction
and operaticn of our developments
allows us to make better informed
business decisions whilst ensuring we
minimise our environmental impact.

We are cormmitted to reducing the level
of waste generated by our construction
sites year-on-year as this will bring both
financial and environmental benefits.

Of the 18,821 tonnes of waste generated
on our construction sites in FY17, only
17% (320 tonnes) went to landfill, the
rest being recycled. We continue to work
with our waste management companies
to further improve this figure, as well

as with our suppliers to reduce waste
further up the supply chain.

DiD YOU
KNOW?
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Greenhouse gas emissions reporting

This section has been prepared in
accordance with our regulatory
obligation to report greenhouse gas
(GHG') emissions pursuant to Section
7 of the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Repaort)
Regulations 2013. As a newly listed
company, this is the first year we have
reported our GHG emissions in our
Annual Report

During the period from 1 September
2016 to 31 August 2017, McCarthy &
Stone emitted a total of 16,382 tonnes
of Carbon Dioxide equivalent (tCO,2)
from combustion of fuel and operation
of facilities (Scope 1 direct) and
electricity purchased for cur own use
(Scope 2 indirect: location-based).

The table below shows our GHG
emissions for the year ended
31 August 2017

Greenhouse gas emissions in tCO.e

FY17

Combustion of fuel and

operation of facilities (Scope 1) 8,681
Electricity, heat, steam and

cooling purchased for our own

use (Scope 2 location-based) 7270
Electricity, heat, steam and

cooling purchased for our awn

use (Scope 2 market-based) 2,661

Scope 2 emissions calculated using the market-based
approach using supplier specific emission factors are
calculated and reparted in tCQO,

Methodology

We guantfy and report our
organisational GHG emissions
according to the Greenhouse Gas
Protoco!. Qur sustainability consultart,
Carbon Credentiais, performed the
calculations to convert our activity
data into CO; equivalent using the UK
Gaovernment 2017 Caonversion Factors
for Company Reporting.

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the recent
amendments (o the GHG Protocols
Scope 2 Guidance; we have therefore
reported both a location-based and
market-based Scope 2 emissions
figure. The Scope 2 market-based
figure reflects emissions from
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electricity purchasing decisions that
McCarthy & Stone has made.

When quantfying emissions using the
market-based approach we have used
a supplier specific emission factor
where possible. If these factors were
unavailable, a residual mix emission
factor was used. This approach is i fine
with the GHG Protocel Scope 2 Data
Hierarchy.

We have also chosen to report our
emissions per number of managed
developments (312).

Greenhouse gas emissions in t€0,e

Market-
based

Locauor-
Dased

approach approach

17 Fr17

Total Scope 1 and 2 16,382 11,34
tC0,e per Managed

Development 52.5 364

The ermissians intensity calculanion s based or a figure
of 312 managed developments for the year
1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017

Reporting boundaries

and limitations

We consolidate our organisational
boundary according to the operational
control approach. Emissions for all
significant sites have been disclosed,
which inctudes our offices, construction
sites and developments.

The GHG sources that constitute our
operational boundary for FY¥17 are:

» Scope 1: Natural gas cocmbustion
within boilers, diesel combustion
within generators and road fuel
combustion within vehicles

s Scope 2: Purchased electricity
cansumption for our own use

As this is our first year of reporting we
have been unable to gather sufficient
information on refrigerant consumption
across the organisation, therefore thisis
excluded from our disclosure.

-

Graphic removed

L

Assumptions and estimations

As this is the first year we have reported
our GHG ermissions, our data collection
processes have not been fully
cperational across all areas of reporting.
We have therefore used some
assumptions in order to estimate our
activity data. For example, we did not
have records of vehicle fuel consumption
avallable for management services’
ernployees or company vans. Therefore,
estimations were made using available
data from cther parts of the business.

|

In addition, accurate records of

diesei combustion in generators at
construction sites were not available

in time for reporting, Therefore, an
estimaticn was used based on average
diesel consumption at each site as well
as available records from procurement.

In some cases, missing data has been
estimated using extrapolation of
available data from the reporting period.

Improving performance

We monitor energy consumption on
the developments we manage in detail
to identify opportunities to improve
energy perfermance. We have now
begun the process of coliecting more
accurate data for construction sites
and offices. This will help us to
understand more about cur
consumption and energy Use, and to
reduce our emissions going forward.
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Efficient homes AL 31 August 2017, the Group employed
We design our developments o 2,264 people (FY16: 2,094). This figure
maximise the performance of the excludes subcontractors and agency DID YOU
fabric and materials of the building. workers. Some 59% of employees in KNOW?
The “fabric first” approach is used the main business are employed on ’
for a number of reasons: sites or at developments or as House
= |t prioritises the largest item of Managers with the balance based in
energy consumption in homes; our regional and central offices
maintaining a comfortable internal
temperature Employee communications >
= The energy efficiency is integrated We communicate with our employees 7
into the building and does not require  through a variety of channels including )
occupants to operate complex regular updates and the Group's Online and face-to-face
systems or change their behavicurs quarterly staff newsletter. Group-wide training courses
business updates ied by our Chief completedin FY17
We employ a range of methods across Executive Officer on the business FY16
our “fabric first” approach including: strategy give employees an opporturity
= Maximising air tightness to provide feedback to management.
= [nstalling insulation in walls and
loft spaces
» Optimising solar gain through
openings and shades Employees: as at 31 August 2017 o corme
= Optimising ventilation and using - e -
the thermal mass of building fabrics Directors of the Board
u Addition of photovoltaic cells to - actual number 5 2 7
puildings where practical - percentage 71.4% 28.6%
Customer feedback Employees in senior management positions
We also listen and respond to customer {including Directors of subsidiary companies}
feedback. Qur current work on - actual number 103 27 130
improving kitchens is a good example - percentage 79.2% 20.8%
of this. Around 20% of our negative or
neutral feedback on the NHB% New Total emplayees of the Group
Homes Survey was reiated to kitcnens, (excluding Non-exacutive Directors}
with storage space the most commaon - actual number 756 1,508 2,264
criticism. As a result, we have improved - percentage 33.4% 66.6%

the specification of our kitchens and
implemented an optimised design to
make better use of the storage space.

Atthe end of the financial year 66.6% of all employees were female and 42 7%
were over the age of 50.

Engaging with the community

We do not just consult with Jocal Employee survey

communities at the planning stage Our latest ali-employee survey was carried out in October 2016 The response

- we also engage with them during rate was 86% and, as shown in the table below, demonstrated that our employee
the construction phase. Activities engagement scores continue to de significantly higher than external benchmarks
include visiting local schools or

organising visits to our sites to External benchmarks for the employee survey are provided by the external supplier,
encourage children to understand and are based on responses to the same question from other survey participants.
the dangers of construction sites.

. External
SrepngacHrsoTeEIence 201 Employees survey
;%';,ﬁﬁ%e:g ';Liggfsl EC;- E}I’Ler cb%r;tl::eusesd 1 am proud to work for McCarthy & Stone 87 8% 63
We recognise that attracting and I would be happy to recommend McCarthy &
retaining employees is orly possible Stone as a place to work 79 81 74
if we provide the right working :
environment, appropriate reward and I feel a sense of belonging at McCarthy & Stone 77 76 54
recognition schemes and opportunities | feel valued for the work | do 74 74 44

for persenal development and training. -
{ am dlear about how my role contributes to

McCarthy & Stone's success 90 91 62
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Our values are:

Passion
Responsibility
Innovation
Determination
Excellence

Recognition of achievements

Our values, which were chosen by our
employees, are the standards to which
we hold ourselves accountable and
reflect the way we work, the way we
communicate and the way we act.

DID YOQU
KNOW?

PRIDE awards

in FY17
Y65

We celebrate and recognise empioyees
who go the extra mile for a customer
or colleague through our quarterly and
annual PRIDE awards. Our progress

15 illustrated by our most recent
employee survey, which identified

that 87% of our employees are proud
to work for McCarthy & Stone.

Any staff member can nominate a
colleague for an instant PRIDE award
which is judged by our regional PRIDE
champions. Each quarter, instant

PRIDE winners are then put forward for
quarterly awards with overali winners
being judged on an annual basis During

FY17, 674 PRIDE awards were presented.

imoge

1 Chifdren and teachers from Hucknall Dey Nursery
wisit Whyburn Court, Nottingham
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NHBC Pride in the Job awards

We are extremely pleased that our
standards are recognised externally.

In 2017, 15 of our sile managers were
awarded NHBC Pride in the Job awards,
an impressive 50% increase over 2016.

NHBC Pride in the Job is the industry’s
most prestigious awards programme,
the awards recognise site managers
who achieve the highest standards of
housebullding and who demonstrate
the highest qualities of workmanship,
leadership, technical expertise and
health and safety awareness. 7 of

our site managers have received an
NHBC Seal of Excellence Award.

Apprentices and trainees

We offer aspiring site managers the
opportunity to learn hands-on skills on
our construction sites whilst studying
towards a NVQ qualification such as Level
4 Diploma in Construction and Bullding
Services Management, and Supervisions
and Technical Certificate Level 4 NHC in
Construction and the Built Environment.
We also participate in a Shared Trade
Apprentice Scheme, partnering with
South West-based subcontractors, and
various colleges. We hope that, once
qualified, the apprentices will continue
working for the Group, thus helping

|

to alleviate national shortages in
skilled labour.

We have also offered trainee
contractsin other departments
such as Sales, Finance and Legal.

Opportunities for development

We have an ongoing commitment to
training, and personzl and professional
development, Performance against
objectives is formally reviewed on

an annual basis. As well as setting
objectives, the process includes the
identification and implementation of

a tailored personal development plan,
Improvement pregrammes focusing on
quality, efficiency and customer service
pravide an cppertunity for all employees
to be involved in the development

of our business and products.

Student placement scheme

The Group is also developing the
next generation of housebuilders
through a student placement scheme
run in conjunction with Northumbria
University. As part of the scheme,
which has been running since 1991,
students studying for the BSc Hons
in Construction Project Management
have the opportunity to spend a
year working at McCarthy & Stone.



This works well for both the students,
who gain on-site experience,

and far McCarthy & Stone, with

many students competing for
placements and choosing to become
employees after they graduate.

Four new students started their
placement years with us in August
2016. In total, over 130 people have
completed the scheme with us since
it was launched with several scheme
participants continuing to work for

us after completing their degrees.
Some have risen to senior rcles in the
organisation, including two who are
new regional managing directors.

Employee involvement
Ermpioyees are encouraged to
participate in the success cf the
Group. We currently have two share
schemes which are open o all
employees - a Sharesave plan {SAYE')
and a Share Incentive Plan {('SIP", The
SAYE savings contracts are for either
three or five years. Neither scheme is
subject to performance conditions.

Diversity and inclusivity

We are committed to promaoting policies
to ensure that our employees are
treated equally, regardless of status,
gender, sex, age, colour, race or ethnic
arigin.

We give full considerzation to applications
for employment from people with
disabilities where the requirements
of the job can be adeguately fulfilled
by a person with a disabiiity. Should
any employee become disabled, it is
the Group’s palicy, wherever possible,
to continue the employment of that
person. ltis the Group’s policy to
provide equal opportunities for the
training and career development

of employees with disabilities.

We have recently reviewed and updated
our Equality and Diversity Policy.

Human rights

We support the United Naticns'
Universal Decdlaration of Human Rights
and have policies and processes in place
to ensure that we act in accardance with
principles in relation to areas such as
anti-corruption, diversity, whistlebiowing
and the requirements of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015. All suppliers are
required to confirm compliance with

our Modern Stavery Policy which

was adopted during the year.

STRATEGIC REPORT

House Manager & Estate
Manager of the Year awards

Two years ago we introduced our
Heuse Manager and Estate Manager
of the Year awards to recognise the
amazing work that our people do

in managing our developments.
These awards recognise the House
Manager and Estate Manager who
have excelled in their role and gone
above and beyond to enrich the
lives of colleagues and homeowners
alike, In June our House Manager
and Estate Manager of the Year

for 2017 were announced.

[ ]
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Katring Andrews, House Manager of the Year 2017
and Richard Witsan, Estate Manager of the Year 2017

Building a culture of excellence

in health & safety

Health & safety continues to be one of
our top priorities. In FY17, we relaunched
our Health & Safety Cormmittee, which
meets quarterly. Members of the
Committee include representatives
from Health & Safety, Construction,
Legal, HR, Marketing and Management
Services and is chaired by John
Tonkiss, our Chief Cperating Officer.

The Committee has oversight of all
aspects of the Group's health and
safety management policies and
procedures, as well as regulatory
issues and best practice.

In addition, the Health & Safety
Operations Director reports directly

to the Executive Leadership Team.

As well as the central team who
determine our health and safety
strategy, we have a Group Construction
Hezlth & Safety Manager and

regional Health & Safety advisers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Katrina Andrews, cur House Manager
at Coppice Gate, Dibden Purlieu, has a
long background in customer service
and care, and was appointed as
House Manager at Coppice Gate
when it first opened in August 2076,
Nominations for Katrina commented
on how supportive she is to everyone
around her, how fun she is and how
she has a real passion for working with
people. She commented on how
coming into wark was not like work at
all, and that to make a difference to
people’s lives was the best possible
ob satisfaction.

Richard Wilson has worked for
YourLife Management Services since
March 2014, and received countless
nominations for his fantastic

work, enthusiasm and positivity

as well as always being fair and
approachable te both cclleagues
and homeowners. On accepting his
award, Richard said how lucky he felt
ta have a job he enjoyed so much.

On-site, we emphasise a proactive
approach to health and safety as well as
reinforcing the individual responsibility
that every site worker has for their, and
their colleagues’ health and safety. All
staff (both employees and contractors)
are required to have adeguate health
and safety qualifications before starting
work on one of our sites and all
contractors are required ta hold a valid
Construction Skills Certification S5cheme
Card_ This evidences that the contractor
has the relevant skills required for their
role, including understanding the health
and safety implications of the work they
perform.

We require all of our site managers
and assistant site managers to hofd
Construction Industry Training Board's
(CITB") Site Managerment Safety Training
Scheme qualifications and to be
qualified first aiders. There must be a
qualified first aider on-site at all times
and all incidents must be reported
internally. We believe our rigorous
reporting standards provide us with a
very honest portrayal of our accident
statistics.
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During FY17, we reported 23 incidents
under the Reporting of Incidents
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations (RIDDOR’) to the Health
& Safety Executive. We have been
actively encouraging transparency of
accident reporting and we believe that
the increase in RIDDOR reporting this
year s a reflection of the greater level
of scrutiny placed by the Group on
this area.

We employ the BSG to undertake
independent audits of cur construction
sites throughout the year and it visits
each site every three weeks during the
build process. Although a recalibration
of the scoring criteria for the BSG audits
N FY17 has resulted in lower average
scores, it also provides more meaningful
feedback than before. During FY17

our average score was 86.1% against
the new scoring criteria (FY16: 98.7%).
These audits help the Group move
closer to its goal of achieving a culture
of excellence in health and safety.

Since 2015, the Group has entered its
sites for the NHBC Health and Safety
Awards. These have been running far
eight years, and recognise and reward
the very best in health and safety, with
the aim of driving up standards, and
showcasing and sharing best practice

During FY17, we received two NHBC
Health and Safety commendations
and won three BSG Health and Safety
awards. We won the BSG Best Use
of Technalogy for Health & Safety
award for our pioneering work using
drones for roof inspection to obviate
the need for werk at height. We also
won two Site Manager of the Year
awards in BSG's South West and
Midlands regions respectively.

All our house managers and estate
managers have basic first aid training
and are qualified to make initial
assessments of minor trips and falls.
Any incident invelving a homeowner
on one of our developments merits a
full enguiry performed by our Health
& Safety team with a view to ensuring
that the incident is not repeated.

Key figures from our 2017 Homeowners' Satisfaction Survey

From August 2017, all of our new
developments are being fitted with
automatic external defibrillators.

All offices have a qualified first

aider whose training is refreshed
annually. All staff are also required to
complete a desk-based questionnaire
concerning their desk space and
seating arrangements.

In 2014, we brought our health ang
safety traiming in-house, allowing us

to tailer the courses to our needs. We
have introduced training for staff to
enable them to become increasingly
seif-supportive in their management

of health and safety. During FY17, the
Group delivered 355 in-house training
courses for employees and 178 in-hause
training courses for contractors. In total,
563 people attended safety workshops
and 12 BSG safety surgeries were held.

Living in a McCarthy & Stone
development

Qur Retirement Living and Retirement
Living Plus developments have a house
manager or estate manager on-site
during warking hours or up to 24
hours a day, respectively. Since 2010
these services have been provided in
all new developments by our in-house
management services businesses.
Their role is not only to help deal with
any issues that our homeowners may
have but also to help create a friendly
and communal environment where
the homeowners can, if they wish, seek
companionship and make new friends.
To support this, the Group has set

up a ‘community fund’ which can e
spent at the House/Estate Manager's
giscretion with the aim of engendering
a sense of community within the first
year of each new develocpment.

We are very proud of the work that
our management services businesses
do in promoting social interaction
among our homeowners. More than
27,600 social events were held in our
managed developments during FY17,
averaging more than seven events
per development per month.

Agreed Disagreed

| feel safe and secure in my property 96% 2%
My property is easy to maintain 94% 1%
My property is easy to live in / suitable for my needs 93% 3%
I have good access to local amenities and facllities 91% 3%
| feel 'at home' In my property 89% 3%
| find the cornmunal areas homely and welcoming 85% 5%
I make use of the communal areas to socialise 80% 5%
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Saocial events are organised in our
homecwners' lounges and range from
coffee mornings, film and quiz nights,
music evenings, exercise and craft
classes to local interest talks and events,

Qur homeowners have been especially
supportive of our 40th year celebration
RVS fundraising challenge, helding coffee
mornings and bake-off competitions,

DID YOU
KNOW?

27,600+

Saocial events held in our
developmentsin FY17

(FYIe

1o 8 manths)

Our homeowners tell us what
they think of McCarthy & Stone
In August 2017 we commissioned our
second homeowners’ satisfaction
survey, contacting homeowners in
our developments which have been
open for at least 18 months. We
undertock the survey to see how
our scores compare to the NHBC
surveys, which are undertaken at
eight weeks and at nine months.

Over 4,200 homeowners (51%)
responded and the results compare ver{
favourably with the NHBC survey Qverall
satisfaction had improved slightly from
85% 1o 86%. Feedback around the
guality of life in our developments was,
on the whole, positive as indicated by
the responses shown in the table below.

We wiil use the feedback from

the survey to inform discussions
across the business on how we
can improve the design, layout and
management of our develcpments.

Helping our homeowners to
reduce their carbon footprint
During 2016, we began a roll-out

of smart electricity meters across
cur developments. These allow us
to monitor usage on a real-time
basis, both 1n terms of kWh and cost
of electricity used within shared
areas on a half-hourly basis. As at

31 August 2017, 98 developments
had these smart meters installed,
representing approximately 31% of
the Group’s managed developments.



The data from the new meters has
beenreceived enthusiastically by
homeowners with energy savings
already starting to be seen. Some of
the benefits include: laundry facilities
being used outside of peak hours
when electricity is cheaper; windows
and doors being kept shut when the
heating 1s on; and the heating being
turned gown when not required.

We will start our roll-out of smart
gas meters across the Group's

Retirement Living Plus developments
which Use gas, during FY18

-
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Becoming Dementia-Friendly
In March 2017, we welcomed the
publication of the Dementia-
friendly housing charter that has
been introduced to inform housing
organisations, corporate bodies
and sector professionals on how
housing, its design and supporting
services can help improve and
maintain the wellbeing of people
affected by dementia.

The charter, which we played arole in
drafting, is an important and influential
document that will inspire the housing
sector to make a valuable contribution
to sUpport pecple with dementia.

We have already identified areas
where we can impreve cur products
to make them mare dementia-friendly
and we have made it a priority to
continue to make key changes across
our organisation to help improve the
lives of people living with dementia.
We have introduced "Designing

for Dementia” guidance for our
architects and interior designers.

In October 2016 we circulated our
own Becoming Dementia-Friendly
- Achieving Excellence in our
Developments document te all our
Retirement Living Plus developments.
Qur aim is to encourage staff ang
homeowners to commit to warking
together for people with dementia,
and to provide the families and friends
of people with dementia access to
more structured and perscnalised
support for their loved ones.

-
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1 Prime Minister Theresa May chatting with homeowners at Swaft House, Maidenhead
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Qur subsidiary, YourLife Management
Services Limited, YLMS, 1s a member of
the National Dementia Action Alliance,
which brings together organisations
and individuals across England
committed to improving health and
social care outcomes for pecple living
with dementia, and those who care
for therm. YLMS has produced an
action plan representing cur stance
nationally to achieve better standards
for people living with dementia.

We are striving tc ensure that all of
our developments, both existing and
new builds, will incarporate elements
and prinaples of dementia-friendly
design. We have developed a McCarthy
& Stone guide that promotes a
technology sclution for the needs

of our homeowners. this includes
the new ‘Care Cip’ that can enable a
person to leave a development safe
in the knowledge that we can track
their whereabouts as needed.

The mare our business knows about
dementia, the more we cando to
help and understand the disease.
Appropriate training is therefore vital
and we have redesigned and lengthened
the dementia awareness course
offered to our estate management
teams and our house managers to
help them understand the basics

of dementia, and the response
needed to support people living with
dementia in our developments.

Avirtual dementia tour has been
delivered to all of our estate
management teams. The aim of this
training is for individuals to experience
what it is like to have dementia and

put that learning into practice in their
developments by improving standards.

We are encouraging all of our staff to
become Dementia Friends to learn
alittle bit maore about what it is like
to live with dernentia and then turn
that understanding into action.

QOur overarching aim 1s to meet the
challenge of supporting people with
dementia and their family members.
Through this chalienge, we aim to
create an environment that is inclusive,
accepting and promotes quality of

life for pecple living with dementia.
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Our RVS fundraising challenge [_
Qur desire to support and enrich

the lives of older people has been

the driving force behind our 40th

Anniversary charity partnership

with RVS in 2017 Events have been

held across the business teo raise

money for RVS to support the

fantastic work it does in helping

older people live better at home.

Our employees have participated
in cycle rides, charity waiks,
sponsored events, marathons and

aver a parachute jump in Dubai. Graphic removed

DID YOU
KNOW?

>£200,000

Raised for RVS since
January 2017

; i -

Graphic removed
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We had a dragon boat race in the West We are delighted that we surpassed _I

Midlands region, whilst the North our £130,000 target by early September Graphi d

East region organised a charity ball. 2017 With events still being organised raphic remave
and money still relling in, we are L J

Our homeowners have alsa tremendously proud of, and grateful

been extremely supportive of for the achievements and support

our fundraising challenge and of our employees, our homeowners

have organised events across our and cur suppliers, whe have all

developments during the year. contributed to this wonderful cause.

images:

1. South West Region Sky Dive

2. North London Chartty Waik

3 North West Region of Haydock Races
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CSR KPis

KPI FY17 autcome FY* & putcome
Planning and design

Consultations and exhibitions 92 133
Number of attendees who found this informative 84.4% 79.6%
Construction and environmental

Greenhouse gas emission per managed development - tonnes of Carbon Dioxide equivalent {tCO,e) 52.5 n/a
Waste to landfill 1.7% 5.6%
BSG construction site audit (average score) 836.1%’ 98.7%
Smart meters in our developrnents 31% 22%
Employees

PRIDE awards 674 572
Percentage of fermale Directors 28.6%? 14.3%
Percentage of female employees 66.6% 63.8%
Training courses (empioyees) 13,500+ 8,200
Percentage of employees over 50 42 7% 45.9%
NHBC Pride in the Job awards 15 10
NHBC Seal of Excellence awards 7 2
Health and safety

RIDDOR incidents - construction sites/offices? 23

NHBC Health and Safety awards {commended) 2

BSG Health & Safety award winners 3 2
In-house training courses for contractors 21 178
Customer satisfaction

HBF Five Star award Yes Yes
Annual number of socal activities in our developments 27,600+ 16,500+

1 The reduction s due to o recalibration of the scoring criteria o provige more meamngfil feedback
2 The percentage hos reduced post year end to 25% following the appointment of John Carter

3 Inciudes RIDDCRS in respect of sub-contractars af our sites

4 The number of social activities wos only reported for eight months of Frie

Our Strategic Repert, on pages 4-67 has been reviewed and approved by
the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Clive Fenton
13 Novermber 2017
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Image captions
1. View of Poole Harbour from Horizons

2. Beacon Court, Fife
- 3 Mr & Mrs Mangell, Elm Tree Court, Huntingdon
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John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman
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Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer

johnwas appointed as iIndependent Non-Executive Chairman
of the Group in September 2013 and is alse Chairman of

our Nomination Committee. He was Group Chairman of
Persimman plc, a position he held between April 2006 and
April 2011, having previously been Group Chief Executive
Officer since 1383, He has spent all his working life In the
housing industry and has unrivalled experience of working
within the sector.

Johnis also Chairman of Northampton Saints plc and
a director of Northampton Rugby Footbail Club Limited
and Premier Rugby Limited.

On 9 November 2017, the Company announced John's
intention to retire following the conclusicn of the Company's
AGM on 24 January 2018 and the appointment of Paul Lester
as Chairman Designate.

Clive joined the Group as Chief Executive Officer in February
2014. He has a wealth of both housebuilding and business
experience, having spent almost 30 years with Barratt
Developments plc. He joined Barratt in 1983 and worked

in a number of finance and operaticnal roles befcre

being appeintec to the Group Board in 2003 with overail
responsibility for all operations in the South of England.

He was also responsible for group strategic landg, partnership
housing and retirement homes. More recently he was

Chief Executive Officer of Mount Anvil, a development
company specialising in the residential property market

in central London.

Committees
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee.
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Committees
Member of the Nomination, Disclosure and Allotment
Committees
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John Tonkiss
Chief Operating Officer
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Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer

|

John joined McCarthy & Stone in February 2014 and joined the
Board in November 2015. He was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer on 1 June 2017. John previously held the roles of
Operations Director - North and Business Transformation
Director, and became Group National Operations Director in
September 2016, He is responsible for the Group's nine operating
regions and alsc leads the improvernent change programme to
accelerate business growth, enhance customer experience and
improve operating performance.

John was previously Chief Executive Officer of Human
Recognition Systems, the UK's leading biometric solutions
provider, Prior ta that, he worked for ten years for The Unite
Group, the UK’s largest provider of purpose-built student
acc%rggﬂodat\on, becoming Group Chief Operating Officer
in 2 ‘

Rowan joined McCarthy & Stone in January 2012 and was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 6 January 2017
having previously held the role of Group Financial Controller.
Rowan pleyed alead role in the Company’s successful IPO

in Novernber 2015,

Before jcining McCarthy & Stone, Rowan held various roles in
industry and private practice, most notably at Barclays Bank
plc and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Rowan is a Chartered
Accountant and a Chartered Tax Adwiser.

Committees
Member of the Allotment and Health & Safety Committees.

Committees
Member of the Disclosure and Allctment Committees.
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Frank Nelson
Senior Independent Director
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Mike Parsons
Independent Non-Executive Director

Frank joined the Board in November 2013 and is the Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the Risk and Audit
Committee. He 1s a qualified accountant with 30 years’
experience in the housebuilding, infrastructure and energy
sectors. He was Finance Director of Galliford Try plc from
2000 until 2012 and was also responsible for its PFI/PPP
activities. He was previously Finance Director of Try Group plc
from 1987 leading the company through its flotation in 1989
and subsequent merger with Galliforg.

Frankis currently the Senior Independent Director of
HICL (nfrastructure Company Limited, Telford Homes pic
and Eurocell plc. Frank also acts as an adviser to certain
private businesses.

Mike joined the Board in November 2013 as a Non-Executive
Director and is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
He founded Barchester Healthcare 23 years ago, following

a successful career in advertising. Barchester is one of the
largest independent healthcare providers in the UK.

Mike is chairman of Breezie and Oomph, vice chair of

Care England, the care sector trade assodiation, and a
Non-Executive Director of Connect Physiotherapy. He also
chairs Albion Care Communities, who are developing the
next generation of care homes, and 15 a director of Martha
Flora, the Dutch dementia specialist.

Committees
Chairman of the Risk and Audit Committee, and a member
of the Remuneration and Nomination Commitiees.
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Committees
Chairman of the Rernuneration Committee, and a member
of the Risk and Audit and Nomination Committees.
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Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director
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John Carter
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Geeta joined the Beoard in April 2015 as a Non-Executive
Director She has more than 28 years’ experience in the
housing sector and has recently served as Chief Executive

Officer of Thames Valley Housing Assodiation Limited {TVHA).

Geeta joined TVHA in 2008 and in 2013 was awarded an OBE
for her achievernents to socal housing.

Geeta is a Director of Fizzy Enterprises (a joint venture

with Sitver Arrow, a subsidiary of the Abu Dhabi Investment
Authority) which she launched in 2012, as a branded
market rent proposition. She has 23 years’ experience

in non-executive roles and Nas served on the Boards of
two housing organisations and national and local charities.
Geeta moved to Metropolitan Housing Asscoation as Chief
Executive Officer in October 2017.

John was appointed a Non-Executive Director of McCarthy &
Stone in September 2017, He is currently the Chief Executive
of Travis Perkins plc, a position held since January 2014,
Having joined Travis Perkins in 1378, he was appointed to the
Board in 2001. john has been the driving force behind

the growth of Travis Perkins pic, the No. 1 supplier of building
materials in the UK, and responsible for the growth of 20

UK and European business brands serving retail and B2B
customers with international global sourcing operations.

John managed and integrated a number of key strategic
acguisitions over the past 20 years, including Keyline in 1999,
Wickes in 2005, and the BSS Group. John was previously a
Trustee of the Britsh Research Establishment for three years
from 2013 to 2016.

Committees
Member of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees.

Committees
None.
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74 McCarthy & Stone plc

“l am pleased to present the
Corporate Governance section
of our FY17 Annual Report. We
believe that a solid corporate
governance framework is
essential for upholding our
core business values and
delivering our strategy and it is
my responsibility to promote
high standards of governance
and business practice
throughout the organisation”

We continue to strive to ensure that our practices and
procedures are appropriate fer a publicly listed company
and reflect our commitment to good corporate governance
and effective leadership.

In this section of the Report we explain how we manage our
business and promote high standards of governance across
the Group. We describe our governance structure and explain
how we have applied the main principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016 {'the Code’} and the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (DTR Rules’) over the past year. A copy of the Code
can be found on the Financial Reporting Council’s website:
www.frc.org.uk
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Compliance with the Code

The Company has complied with the main principles

of the Code for FY17 The following paragraphs set out
how we have comptlied. References are to the principles
of the Code.

A. Leadership

The role of the Board (A1)

The Board is responsible for operational control of the Group,
including all strategic, financial, organisational, legal and
regulatory matters and the Directors meet regularly to enable
them te discharge their duties. The Company Secretary (Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary) is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. In addition,
the Directors may take independent professional advice as
required.

There is a formal scheduie of matters specifically reserved
for Board decision which s kept under regular review

Matters reserved for the Board include:
Approval of the Group's objectives, values and standards
Approval of the business model and strategy

Oversight of the Group’s operattons to ensure sound,
competent and prudent management

Approval of major changes to the Group’s structure
and control

Approval of major land acquisitions
Internal controls and a sound system of risk management

Approval of shareholder communications

In accordance with the Code, the Board has established three
formal Board Committees: Risk and Audit, Remuneration and

Nomination. The membership of each of the Committees is in
compliance with the requirements of the Code and the terms

of reference of the Committees are inciuded on our corporate
website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of the responsibilities of each of the Committees

and their activities during the year are set out on the following
pages of this Report. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to each of the Committees.

In addition, the Board has established a Disclosure Committee,
whase role is tg ensure timely and accurate disclosure of
information that we are required to publish in accordance with
our legal and regulatory obligations. It meets on an ad-hoc
basis and its membershig is the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and the Director
of Communications.

The Board has established a sub-committee called the
Allotment Committee, whose role is to approve the allotment
and issue of shares in the Company within the limits
authorised by shareholders at each AGM. The Allotment
Committee, whose members are the Executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, meet on an ad-hoc basis.

The rale of the Executive Leadership Team is to support
the Chief Executive Officer in implementing Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day operations of the business.

It meets each month. As well as the Executive Leadership
Team, the other members of the Executive Board are the
Land & Planning Director, the HR Directer, the Director

of Communications, the Group Marketing & Customer
Experience Dector and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary.

The role of the Executive
Leadership Team is to support
the Chief Executive Officer in

implementing Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day
operations of the business

Decisions on investments and development activities are
made by the Group Investment Committee which meets
weekly and is chaired by the Land & Planning Director, with
major investment decisions being referred on to the Board
for final approval

The governance structure for the Group is set out on page 79
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Patrick Hole
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary

Patrick joined McCarthy & Stone in july 2014. Patrick is
responsible for the legal and company secretarial functions
of the Group. He is a qualified solicitor with more than 20
years' post qualification experience. Patrick was a partner
in a private practice for many years and also has a broad
range of in-house experience, including interim roles

at both DTZ and Keepmoat.

Committees
Member of the Disclosure Committee.

During FY17 there were nine Board meetings and one Strategy
Day. The Directors’ attendance at those meetings, as well as
the meetings of the three main Board Committees, are shown
in the table below,

Risk and

Audit Remuneration  Npminaticn
Dil’ectOl’1 Board Committee Committee Committee
Number of
meetings 9 3 3 1
John White 9/9 n/a 33 11
Clive Fenton 9/9 n/a n/a 11
John Tonkiss 9/9 n/a n/a n/a
Rowan Baker? 7 n/a nfa n/a
Geeta Nanda 8/9 3/3 2/3 1/1
Frank Nelscn 9/9 373 3/3 11
Mike Parsons 9/9 3/3 3/3 11
Nick Maddock? 2/2 n/a n/a n/a

1 Excludes john Carter, whe was appointed post year end
2 Appointed tothe Board on 6 January 2017
3 Resigned on 6 january 2017
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Division of responsibilities (A2, A3)

The Board has adopted role grofiles for the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer, which clearly set out their distinct roles
and responsibilities

), as Chairman, am responsible for leadership of the Board
and for ensuring that the strategic direction and objectives

of the Group are relevant to deliver sharehclder value and to
promote the long-term success of the Group. { lead the Board
inits constructive challenge of the Executive Leadership Team
and ensure that Board discussions are searching and forward-
thinking. ! am also responsible for promoting high standards
of corporate governance and good business practice.

Clive Fenton, our Chief Executive Officer, is respansible for the
day-to-day management of the operational activities of the
Group and the development and innovation of the Group's
business. With the support of the Executive Leadership Team,
he implements the strategies and cbjectives agreed by the
Board to deliver operational performance and success.

Non-Executive Directors (Ad)

The Board currently has four Non-Executive Directors -
Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons, Geeta Nanda and John Carter -
who have all been appainted during the past five years.
Their previous experience of the construction industry,

the housing sector or providing services to the elderly

add valuable skills and input to the Board.

Frank Nelson is the Senior Independent Director.

His responsibilities include the annual eppraisal of my
perfarmance. He adds support to the Chair and deputises
for me in my absence anc is available to communicate with
sharehclders.

B. Effectiveness

Board composition and independence (B1)

The appointment and replacement of the Company's Directors
is governed by the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Companies Act 2006 and the individual service contracts and
terms cf appointment of the Directors. The Articles permit a
maximum of 12 Directors

The Board currently comprises the Chairman {who was
independent on appointment), three Executive Directors
and four Non-Executive Birectors. All of the Non-Executive
Directors are independent. Jjohn Carter is considered o be
independent notwithstanding his directorship with Travis
Perkins plc, a supplier to the Group, as the level of business
between McCarthy & Stone plc and Travis Perkins plc is not
deemed to be material. Relevant safeguards are being put in
place to ensure that John will not influence any consideration
of such business. Short biographical details of each of the
Directors are set out on pages 70t 73.
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ALits meeting in June 2017, the Nomination Committee
considered the independence of the individual Directors

on the Board at that stage and confirmed that there were no
independence issues, notwithstanding the fact that two of the
Nan-Executive Directors, Frank Nelson and Mike Parsons, had
been included in the Company's Management Incentive Plan
which was put in place in 2013 and was wound up in November
2015, Their participation in the plan is a reflection of the
different ownership structure of the Company at that time.
Since Admissicn, the Non-Executive Directors have not

been included in any of the Group’s share plans or bonus
arrangements. John Carter was appointead after the year end
and his independence was reviewed during the Nomination
Committee meeting on 8 November 2017

Appointments and commitment (B2, B3, B7)

The date of appointment of each of the Directors is set out on
page 81 - none of the Directors has served for more than six
years. Nick Maddock, who was Chief Financial Officer, resigned
with effect from & January 2017 and Rowan Baker, who was
the Group Finandial Controller, was promated to the Board as
the new Chief Financial Officer on the same date. fohn Carter
was appointed to the Beard on 1 October 2017,

As announced on 9 November 2017, Paul Lester will be joining
the Board as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman Designate
on 3 January 2018 and, subject to his election by shareholders,
will take over as Chairman from me at the conclusion of the
Company's AGM on 24 |anuary 2018,

Appointments fall under the remit of the Nomination
Committee, which leads the process in selecting any new
Directors before making recommendations to the Board. The
Nomination Committee is working with senior management
10 ensure that satisfactory succession plans are in place.

The Board is satisfied that each
of the Directors has committed
sufficient time and input during
the year to enable him/her to fulfil

his/her duties as evidenced by the
high attendance at all the Beard
and relevant Committee meetings
throughout the year

The Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment
set qut the time commitment expected to fulfil their roles.

The Board is satisfied that each of the Directors has committed
sufficient time and input during the year to enable him/her

to fulfil his/her duties as evidenced by the high attendance at
all the Board and relevant Committee meetings throughout
the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Non-Executive Directors' letters of appointment are
for three-year terms, which can be renewed for a further
two three-year terms.

In accordance with the Code, all of the Directors are reguired
to seek re-election at each AGM. The resoluticns for the
re-election and election of the Board members will be
included in the separate Notice of AGM.

Induction, development and support (B4, B5)

Onjoining the Board, each Director is provided with a full
introduction to the business. In order to assist the Directors
in their ongoing understanding of the Group, some of the
Board meetings are held at the regional offices to provide

an opportunity for the Directors to meet local management
and to visit some of the Group's developments. Papers

are airculated in a imely manner to enable the Directors to
undertake fuli and detailed consideration of the agenda items
in advance of the meeting and each of the Directors has access
to the services of the Company Secretary.

In order to assist the Directors

in their ongoing understanding
of the Group, some of the Board
meetings are held at the regional

offices to provide an opportunity
for the Directors to meet local
management and to visit some
of the Group’s developments

Board evaluation (B6)

An evaluation of the nerformance of the Board, its
members and Committees was carried out during

FY17 by the Nomination Committee and details of the
internal evaluation process and findings are included in the
Nomination Committee section on page 81, It is anticipated
that the evatuation during FY18 will be externally facilitated.

€. Accountability

Reporting (C1)

The Statement of Directors’ Respensibilities is on page 108
The viability statement is on page 57. The report of the
independent auditor is on pages 112 to T17. The statement
on going concern is on page 108. Details of the Board's
arrangements to ensure that the information presented in
this Report is fair, balanced and understandable is set out
on page 109
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Risk management and internal controls (C2)

Detalls of the risk management process and the principal risks
facing the Group are set out on pages 54 to 57. The Board

is responsible for the system of internal controls, which are
designed to manage the business risks faced by the Group,
and for reviewing the effectiveness of those conirols. Business
targets are set within appropriate timeframes; policies,
procedures and control processes for managing the Group's
business activities have been put in place; and key financial
risks are contrelled through clearly laid down authorisation
levels and segregation of accounting duties.

The Risk and Audit Committee,
together with the Internal Audit
function, has identified the principal

risks facing the Group and has
established systems for evaluating
and managing those risks

The Risk and Audit Committee, together with the Internal Audit
function, has identified the principal risks facing the Group and
has established systemns for evaluating and managing those
risks. These systems have been in place for the whole of the
year under review and up to the date of this Report. Further
information can be found on pages 54 to 57

Audit and Auditor {C3)
Details of the work of the Risk and Audit Committee and the
auditor are set out on pages 82 to 85.

D. Remuneration
Details of Executive Directors’ remuneration and the Group's
approach to rermnuneration policy are set out on pages 86 to 105.

E. Relations with shareholders

Although most direct shareholder contact I1s by the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financizl Officer, feedback

is communicated back to the other Directors primarily through
reports to the Board and copies of analysts’ presentations.

All of the Directors who were members of the Board at that
time attended the AGM in January 2017 and it is anticipated
that all the current members of the Beard will attend the
AGM in January 2018 and that the meeting will be organised
in compliance with the Code.

On behalf of the Board

John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman

13 Novemnber 2017
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Governance Structure and Delegation of Authority

The Board of Directors
Chair: John White

The Board 1s ultimately responsible for all activities of the Group. it has adopted a schedule of matters reserved for
its attention and has delegated some of its responsibilities to Committees of the Board. In addition, certain Executive
Committees have been established to cversee some of the operational activities of the Group. All Committees report
back to the Group Board either directly or indirectly via the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Operating Officer.

Principal Board Committees

Principal Executive Committees

Risk and Audit Committee

|<:|
|<:|

Chair: Frank Nelson

See pages 82 to 85 for a report from the
Risk and Audit Committee.

Executive Leadership Team
Chair: Clive Fenton
Supportsthe CEO inimplementing Group

strategy and management of the activities of
the Group.

Remuneration Committee

Chair: Mike Parsons

See pages 86 to 105 for areport from the
Remuneration Committee.

NMomination Committee

Chair: john White

See pages 80 and 81 for a report from the
Nomination Committee.

Disclosure Committee
Chair: Clive Fenton
Responsible for timely and accurate disclosure

of all information required to be disclosed to
meet its legal and regulatory obligaticns.

Allatment Committee

Chair: Clive Fenton

Responsible for the approval of allotments of
shares within the limits approved by shareholders

Group Investment Committee
Chair: Gary Day
Responsible for reviewing and approving all

land acquisitions. Major investment decisions
are referred up to the Group Board

Health & Safety Committee

Chair: John Tonkiss

Responsible for all aspects of health and safety
across the Group including relevant policies
and procedures and regulatory compliance.

CSR Committee

Chair: Gary Day

See pages 58 to 67 for a report from the
CSR Committee.
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“Maintaining the right balance
of skills and knowledge is key to
achieving the Group's strategic
objectives. One of the main
activities during the year was
the selection and appointment
of a new Chief Financial Officer”

| am pleased to present the Nomination Committee's
report for FY17.

Membership and tenure
Members of the Commitiee are appointed by the Board.
The members of the Committee during FY17 were:

john White (Chairman)

Clive Fenton

Frark Nelson

Geeta Nanda (appointed on 24 January 2017)
Mike Parsons

There was one formal meeting of the Committee during
the year which all the members of the Committee attended
Two further meetings have been held since the year end.

Responsibilities and terms of reference

The Nomination Committee’s key duties are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and its Committees,
ensuring that the skilis and experience of the Board remains
appropriate and balanced; to recommend appointments and
re-elections to the Board, successicn planning for the Directors
and senior management; and the annual evaluation process.
The terms of reference, which are available on our website,

were adopted with effect from 11 November 2015.
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Activities during FY17

One of the main activities during the year was the selection
and appointment ¢f a new Chief Financial Officer, foliowing
the announcement in Cctober 2016 of Nick Maddack's
intention to resign. The Committee approved the process
to find his replacement with consideration being given to
both internal and external candidates. Rusself Reyrolds, an
independent external search agency, was appointed to run
the process on behalf of the Group. Following conclusion of
that process, the Committee recommended Rowan Baker as
the preferred candidate to the Board, which subseguently
approved her appointment.

During the year the Carnmittee also carried out the annual
evaluation process. This was done internally and it 1s
anticipated that external facilitators will be used to assist
the process in FY18

The Committee also reviewed the successicon planning,
especially at the main Board and executive and senior
management levels. The Group's Equality and Diversity policy
and the Committee's terms of reference were also reviewed.

Evaluation process and results

The Committee carried out a thorough, in-house evaluation
of the Board and each of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees, as well as the performance
of each of the Directors. This was carried out by way of 2
questionnaire as well as one-to-one meetings between

the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors on the
perfarmance of the individual Directors. The review of the
Chairman's performance was led by the Senior Independent
Director. The effectiveness of the Board was assessed in
respect of its structure, organisation, reperting and
communications. Directors were aiso invited to make
recernmendations on how the performance and operation
of the Board could be improved.

The Chairman was satisfied with the performance and
effectiveness of the Board and its Committees. One of the
areas highlighted for improvernent related to communication
with regional and senior management. As a result, more Board
meetings will be held at the Group’s regional offices and the
number and frequency of presentations from regional
management and function heads will be increased. Anather
area that was highlighted was the need to focus more closely
on succession planning.

Board composition and succession planning
The current composition of the Board is set outin the
table below: Further details are on pages 70 to 73,

Date of appointment

Director Role to the Board
John White Chairman 23 September 2013
Clive Fenton Chief Executive Officer 17 February 2014

John Tonkiss

Rowan Baker
Mike Parsons
Frank Nelson
Geeta Nanda
John Carter

Chief Operating Officer 5 November 2015
Chief Financial Officer 6 January 2017
Non-Executive Director 4 November 2013
Non-Executive Director 18 November 2013
Non-Executive Director 1 April 2015
Non-Executive Director 1 October 2017

Although the Board has been completely refreshed in the past
five years, the Board evaluation process identified that the
composition shoutd be kept under review by the Committee in
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order to ensure that the mix and experience remains relevant
to our business. Following the Board evaluation process, the
Committee commenced the process to appoint two additicnal
Non-Executive Directors to strengthen the current mix

of skills and experience. In June 2017 a beauty parade of three
firms was held to assist with the recruitment process. Zygos,

a firm of independent advisers, was selected, subject to the
Group retaining the right to introduce candidates directly.
Following year end, John Carter was introduced and brought
forward for consideration by the Nomination Committee, His
candidature was recormnmended to the Board, who approved
his appointment in October. john brings with him strong
industry experience, which will help to strengthen the Board.

As announced on 9 November 2017, Paul Lester will be
joining the Board as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman
Designate on 3 january 2018 and, subject to his election by
shareholders, will take over as Chairman from me when | step
down at the conclusion of the Company’s next AGM in January
2018. The Committee undertook a search to identify a suitable
candidate for the role of Chairman. The Company did not
instruct an external search agency or use open advertising
for the search, given the strength of potential internal and
external candidates who had been identified for the role.

The Committee concluded that, after interviewing a shortlist
of three candidates, Paul Lester was the most appropriate
candidate for the rofe. | did not chair or attend any meetings
of the Committee which related to the appointment of my
SUCCESSOr.

The Group is continuing to develop succession plans for
senior and executive management, which are reviewed and
monitored by the Committee.

Retirement and re-election of Directors

In accordance with our Articles of Assaciation and as a
FTSE 250 company, all of our Directors are required to seek
annual re-election by our shareholders. All the Directors
who sought re-election at last year's AGM were re-elected.

As part of its evaluation process, the Committee reviewed the
performance of each of the Directors during the past year and
has recommended that all those Directors wishing to continue
to stand should seek re-election at the 2018 AGM. They
individually and as a Group continue to provide invaluable
experience, challenge and contribution to the leadership of
the Group. john Carter and Paul Lester will also seek election
at the 2018 AGM.

Diversity

The Group has an Equality and Diversity Policy, which commits
us te zero tolerance of unlawful discrimination and encourages
diversity in our workforce, The Committee reviewed the Palicy
during the year and will continue to keep this under review to
ensure that it remains appropriate for the business.

Although the Group has not set specific gender targets,

as we believe that appointments should be based on merit,
we support the principle of diversity, not just at Board level
but throughcut the Group. At year end we had two female
members of the Board {representing 28.6%) and 66.6% cf our
total workforce were female. Further breakdown is provided
on page 61.

John White
Nomination Committee Chairman

13 November 2017
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“The key responsibilities of
the Risk and Audit Committee
are to review the integrity of
the Group's annual and half
year financial statements.
The Committee is confident
that it has carried out its
duties in the year under
review effectively and to

a high standard”

The purpose of this report is to describe how the Committee
has carried out its responsibilities during the year.

In summary, the key responsibilities of the Risk and Audit
Committee are to review the integrity of the Greup’'s annual
and half year financial statements and the relationship with
the external auditor; to monitor our internal controls and risk
management systems and our internal audit activities; and
to provide independent oversight of our business conduct,
including our whistleblowing and anti-bribery procedures.

Membership and tenure

There has not been any change to the members of the Risk and
Audit Committee during the financial year and up to the date of
this report. The members of the Committee are :

¢ Frank Nelson (Chairman of the Committee) Senior
Independent Director

* Mike Parsons, Independent Non-Executive Director

* (eeta Nanda, Independent Non-Executive Director
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t was previausly Finance Director of Galliford Try plc, the
FTSE 250 househuilding and construction group, for 25
years priar ta joining McCarthy & Stone My extensive
financial experience, particularly in the housebuilding and
construction sector, have proved invaluable in chairing
our Risk and Audit Committee.

The Cammittee as a whole has competence relevant to

our business. As stated above, | have spent most of my
career in the housebuilding sector; Geeta Nanda has

more than 28 years' experience in the housing sector and
more than 23 years' experience as a Non-Executive Director
and Mike Parsons has spent the last 23 years working with
businesses providing care and support for elderly pecple

Further details of the background and experience of the
Committee members are set out on pages /0to 73,

Responsibilities and terms of reference
The key responsibilities of the Committee are to:

= Monitor the integrity of the financial statements
and any other formal announcements relating
to the Group's financial position and performance

= Assess whether management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements and to provide advice to
the Board on whether the Annual Report and Financial
Statements are fair, balanced and understandable

* Keep under review, and monitor the effectiveness of, the
Group's internal controls and risk management systerms

« Mcnitor and review the effectiveness of the risk and
internal audit function

« Monitor and review the effectiveness of the services of
the external auditer, including negotiation of the audit fee

» Develop and implement the policy on the supply of
non-audit services by the external auditor

e Review the adequacy and security of the Group's
procedures on whistleblowing, anti-bribery and
corruption and anti-money laundering

The Committee has formal terms of reference which are
reviewed annually to ensure they remain appropriate. Na
changes were made to the terms of reference during the
year. A copy of the full terms of reference can be viewed
on our website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance
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Activities during FY17

There were three Risk and Audit Committee meetings during
the finanaal year, organised te tie in with the annual audit
cycle. The table on page 76 sets out attendance of the
Committee members at those meetings. In accordance with
the Committee’s terms of reference, meetings can also be
atrended, by invitation, by other Directors and members of
the internal audit and external audit teams, when deemed
appropriate The Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Risk
and Internal Audit, the Group Financial Controlier and the
external audit partner attended all three meetings during the
year. The members of the Committes meet with the external
auditor without Executive Directors ar management at every
meeting attended by the external auditor

During FY17 the key areas of focus for the Committee were
as follows:

= In November 2016 we reviewed the FY16 financial
statements and the draft Annual Report. We discussed
the audit with Deloitte, our external auditor, and reviewed
its report and its audit work. The Committee also
considered the going concern and viability statements
of the Group. We also considered and concluded that the
FY16 Annual Report and Financial Statements gave a fair,
balanced and understandable view of the Group's
performance and position

¢ In February 2017 we reviewed the proposed audit fees
and the scepe of the external auditin relation to the
FY17 financial statements

» In April 2017 we reviewed the FY17 half year results,
including the review undertaken by the external auditor,
before recommending that the half year results
annpuncement be approved by the Beard

= AL each meeting we received reports from the Internal
Audit team on Group risks and risk management, and
at the Novemnber 2016 and April 2017 meetings reviewed
the Group risk heat map

* At each meeting we also received reports on the internat
audit programme and findings of internal audits carried
out during the year

* We undertook our annual review of the Group's systems
of internal controls. We continue to monitar thelr
effectiveness throughout the year

= Ateach meetng we received reports on the effectiveness
of our whistleblowing and anti-bribery and corruption
procedures and were advised if any notifications had
been raised under those policies
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Risk and Audit Committee Report continued

¢ During the year we met with the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) which conducted its review of the guality
of Deloitte LLP's audit procedures applied during the
FY16 audit

Significant financial reporting issues

Significant financial reporting 1ssues, judgements and areas
of estimation uncertainty reviewed by the Committee during
FY17 were:

+ Shared equity receivables

The Committee reviewed the accounting treatment of future
receivables due under the shared equity schemes that have
been used over the years by the Group. The assumptions
used in estimating the value of the future recewvables are
reviewed half yearly and relate to the date of the anticipated
future receipt, house price inflation, the discount rate and
the new build premium.

« Cost capitalisation of overheads
The Committee received a propesal from management
analysing the split of overhead costs relating to design,
planning, commercial, construction, procurement and
health and safety between those that could be attrnibuted
to the cost of the developments to inventory and those
that relate to general business overheads to expenses.
The assumptions are reviewed annually with the function
heads before being propcsed to the Committee.

Risk management and internal controis
Cur Risk and Internal Audit function was established in the
summer of 2014 with the following key areas of responsibility

* The design and implementation of a robust risk
management framework across the Group to dentify,
monitor and manage key business risks and te establish
arisk appetite for each key risk beyond which correcuve
action is required

The development of an assurance programme to ascertan
whether the controls around cur key business risks are
designed and operating effectively

Details of how the Group manages the risk process are
set out on pages 54 and 55. The Director of Risk and
Internal Audit reperts at each Committee meeting on
any changes to the risks faced by the business and any
areas for improvement.

An annual internal audit plan, focusing on the key risks to the
business, is reviewed and agreed by the Committee. its cycle
is driven primarily by risks identified in the risk heat map. A
separate commercial internal audit plan has been put in place
specifically to investigate the management of our construction
activities. A separate sales internal audit plan was established
and completed in 2017 to specifically focus on the sales
process of core stock.
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Findings from internal audits and recommended
improvements are reported tc the Committee. | regularly meet
with the Director of Risk and Internat Audit. Other members of
the Committee and the Board will also meet with the Director
of Risk and Internal Audit periodically during the year.

The Board of Directors recognises its overall responsibility
for the Group's system of internal controls and for monitoring
its effectiveness. There is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. However, in
reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls, any internal
control system can only provide reascnable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Risk and Audit
Committee, has remained satisfied that the system of internal
controls continued to be effective in identifying, assessing and
ranking the various risks facing the Group; and in monitoring
and reporting progress in mitigatung the potential impact on
the business. Systems have teen in place for the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Financial Statements. The Board has approved the
statement of the Principal Risks and Uncertainties set out on
pages 56 and 57 of this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors recognises
its overall responsibility for the
Group'’s system of internal controls

and for monitoring its effectiveness.
There is an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks

External auditor
The Committee is responsible for the appointment of the
external auditor, its fee and the scope of the annual audit.

Auditor independence and performance

Deloitte LLP has been our external auditor since FYQ9,

the first audit of the Company. We have had the same Audit
Partner since 2013 but the Audit Director has changed during
that pericd. In line with rotation guidelines a new Audit Partner
will lead the FY18 audit. The next audit tender will take place
no later than the summer of 2018.

The performance, effectiveness and independence of the
auditor and the work it performs are reviewed annually
following completion of the external audit. Deloitte are
required to disclose any significant facts and matters that
may reasonzbly impact on their independence or on the
objectivity of the lead partner and the audit team. In addition,
the Committee considers and approves ali the fees that the
Group pays for audit, audit-related and non-audit services
from Deloitte. Details of the Company's policy on non-audit
services are detailed in the fellowing section. That pclicy was
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drafted in line with the requirernents of the EU Audit Directive
(2014/56/EU) and Audit Regulation (537/2014) which came
into force in the UK on 17 June 2016.

The Audit Committee assessed the performance of the
external auditor and the effectiveness of the external audit
for FY17 tn coming to 1ts conclusion the Audit Committee
reviewed amongst other matters:

» Feedback on the effectiveness and performance of the
external audit from Group, regional management and
the Director of Risk and Internal Audit who were closely
invalved in both the half year and full year reporting process

» Deloitte LLP's fulfilment of the agreed audit plan for FY17

* Reports highlighting the material issues and accounting
judgements that arose during the conduct of the audit

» Deloitte LLP's objectivity and independence during
the process

The Audit Committee concluded that the audit process as
awhole had been conducted robustly and that the team
selected to undertake the audr had done so thoroughly
and professionally. Deloitte LLP's performance as auditor
to the Company during FY17 was therefore considered to
be satisfactory.

Buring the year, the FRC also undertoak a review of certain
aspects of Deloitte LLP's audit of McCarthy & Stone plc for
the year ended 31 August 2016, We have reviewed the FRC's
findings in assessing the performance and effectiveness

of Deloitte |.LP's audit work.

Taking into account our and the FRC's findings in relation to
the effectiveness of the audit process and in relation to the
independence of our external auditor, the Committee is
satisfied that Deloitte LLP's audit continues to be effective and
independent. As a result, the Committee has recommended
to the Beard that Deloitte be proposed for reappointment at
the 2018 AGM.

The Company has complied throughout the reporting year
with the provisions of The Statutery Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014,

Policy on non-audit services

Itis the Group’s practice, whenever possible, to put non-audit
waork out to tender. The Board only appoints Deloitte LLP

to provide non-audit services if the Directors have satisfied
themselves that the auditor's objectivity and independence
have not been compromised. A policy on non-audit services
has been approved by the Committee, which incorporates
the provisions of the EU audit reform.

The external auditor is appointed to provide audit and
audit-related services, including annual audit of the Group,
Parent Company and non-dormant subsidiary financial
staternents as well as the half year review.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The external auditor 1s pronibited from providing services
which involve:

* Bookkeeping and other services relating to accounting
records and corporate financal statements

¢ Design and implementation of financial
mformation systems

» Any valuation that could have a material effect on
the financial statements

* Tax servicesthat depend on a particular accounting
treatment

= Recruiting executives or providing advice on
remuneration packages

= Actuarial services
= Management functions
= |nternal audit services

« Legal, broker, investment adviser or investment
banking services

» Corporate finance or transaction services where the
outcome is dependent on accounting treatment, or on
a contingent fee basis if material to the audit firm, or the
outcome involves a future or contemporary audit judgement
relating to amaterial balance in the financial statements

* Any other work that is prohibited by UK ethical guidance

The external auditor may be sefected to provide any

other services that do not fall within audit and audit-related
services or that are not prohibited, subject to a competitive
selection process.

Fees payable to Deloitte in FY17 in relation to the interim
review, vear end audit and statutery audits of subsidiaries are
detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were nonon-audit fees paid during the year.

Whistleblowing, fraud and anti-bribery and corruption
During the year, the Committee received regular updates from
the Company Secretary on compliance with the polices across
the business on whistleblowing, anti-bribery and corruption,
fraud and anti-money laundering. in addition, the Committee
and the Board reviewed and approved the Group's new
conflicts of interest policy.

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman

13 November 2017
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Directors' Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee Chairman’s Annual Statement

-

L

Mike Parsons, Remuneration Committee Chairman

Graphic removed
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“As Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee,

| am pleased to present,

on behalf of the Board, our
Directors’' Remuneration
Report. This report lays

out the core elements of our
policy and its implementation
during FY17”

The Annual Report on Remuneration is set out on

pages 94 tc 105. It details decisions and actions taken by

the Remuneraticn Committee based on the performance

of the Group and the Executive Directors, the changing
corporate governance landscape and in the context of pay

in the Group as a whole. The Annual Report on Remuneration
is subject to an annual advisory vote and a resolution will be
put ta shareholders at the AGM in January 2018 for its
approval. The wording of the resolution is set out in the
separate Notice of AGM.
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Remuneration policy

In creating our remuneration policy last year, our objective
was to create a policy which supports the Group’s strategf/

to create an efficient and scalable business capable of buillding
and selling more than 3,000 units per annum to enable us (o
target top-guartile sector margins and returns on capital over
the medium term

Our remuneration policy was approved by shareholders

at our AGM on 25 January 2017, receiving over 92.8% of the
votes that were cast. The policy is intended to apply for up
to three years and is therefore designed to incentivise and
motivate the leadership team to implement the Company’s
strategic goals and also to ensure they are aligned with
shareholder expectations. This has been a guiding principle
far the Committee.

We are not proposing any changes to the remuneration policy
for the forthcoming year. A summary of cur Remuneration
Palicy is included at the end of this Remuneration Report on
pages 101 to 104, while the full text of the Remuneration Policy
can be found on pages 63 to 74 of cur FY16 Annual Report.
The FY16 Annual Report can be downloaded from

our website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Remuneration Committee

There has not been any change to the membership of the
Committee during the year and up to the date of this report.
The members are all of the Non-Executive Directors of the
Board, namely:

+ Mike Parsons {Chairman of the Committee, and
Independent Non-Executive Director)

+ (Geeta Nanda {Independent Non-Executive Director)

+ Frank Nelson (Senior Independent Director)

* John White {Non-Executive Director, and Chairman
of the Board)

Other individuals, including the Chief Executive Officer and
external advisers, may be invited to attend meetings of the
Committee. The Campany Secretary acts as Secretary 1o
the Committee.

As well as the Group's remuneration policy, the Remuneration
Committee’s other main responsibilities include the
remuneration and terms of engagement of Executive Directors
and the Chairman; cverseeing any major changes to the
Group's employee benefit structures; approval of any
performance-related schemes, share incentive schemes

and deferred bonus arrangements. The Committee provides
areport to the Board on its activities and decisions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major remuneration events during FY17:

¢ Continued development of our Board
Nick Maddock resigned as Chief Financial Officer on
11 October 2016 and stepped down from the Board
with effect from & January 2017, Rowan Baker, who was
previously the Group Financial Controller, was promoted
to the role of Chief Financial Officer and joined the Board on
6 January 2017 | would like to welcome Rowan to the Board
and cnce again thank Nick for his service.

The Committee appreved the termination arrangements for
Nick and the new terms for Rowan. Nick did not receive any
termination payments; he was not eligible for the bonus
plan in respect of FY16 or FY17 and his LTIP awards lapsed
on his departure.

When Rowan was appointed to the Board, her salary

was set at £225,000 - a conservative level, significantly below
that of her predecessor with the intention that it would be
kept under review and aver time based on perfarmance
would be brought up to a market level. Based cn her strong
performance and development in the rcle to date and her
critical role in delivering the strategy of the business the
Committee determined tc increase her salary to £285,000
effective 1 September 2017, the next planned review will be
in November 2018. The Committee notes that the increased
salary remains below the lower quartile of the FTSE 250 and
housebutlder peers (the two external benchmarks the
Committee uses as a guideline when setting pay for
executives).

On her appointment ta the role, Rowan’s bonus opportunity
was set at 100% of salary in cash, recognising that FY17 was
a transitory year, rather than the policy level for Executive
Directors of 150% of salary. For FY18, Rowan’'s bonus
opportunity will be increased to 150% of salary with
one-third deferral in line with the other Executive Directors.
Rowan's full remuneration terms are set out in the following
Annual Report on Remuneration.

The Committee proposes to increase John Tonkiss' salary by
10% from £300,000 to £330,000 effective 1 November 2017.
The proposed increase recognises his strong performance
and the increased responsibility following his appointment
to the role of Chief Operating Officer in June 2017,
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Directors Remuneration Report continued

The Committee is mindful of the sensitivity to large
increases in base pay levels and considered its proposed
approach carefully in this context. The intention of the
salary increase is to bring the CO0 and CFO's salaries to

a level that the Committee considers appropriate given
their performance and critical importance to the business.
The Committee will continue to monitor Executive Director
salaries and will consider whether further above average
employee increases are required.

Clive Fenton, our CEQ, will receive an increase of 3.2% in
line with the increase for the average employee population.

* Determination of the FY17 bonus payments
The Group completed its first full year of trading since
Joining the Main Market in November 2015 and the
Executive Directors and the broader executive tearm have
delivered performance in line with market expectations
despite continued economic uncertainty following the
outcome of the EU referendum in 2016.

The Group delivered a 4% increase in revenue to £660.28m
(FY16 £635.9m), althcugh underlying operating profit
decreased by 10% to £96.2m (FY16: £107.2m) at a gross
profit margin of 20% (FY16: 21%), reflecting the mix of units
sold, increased costs and our continued investment in
regional cperational infrastructure to support our growth
strategy. As a result, the threshold of £108.6m cperating
profit (equating to 70% of the total bonus opportunity}
was not achieved and na bonus was awarded against

this measure.

During the year the Group invested in land and build

and added a further 75 high-quality sites with attractive
embedded margins into the land bank (FY16: 65), equivalent
to ¢.3164 additional plots (FY16: €. 2,614). As a result, the
bonus target for land exchanges of 3,133 plots was siightly
exceeded resulting in 55% of this element of the bonus
{accounting for 10% of the total bonus opportunity)

being earned.

The Group continued to maintain a robust financial position
with a met cash balance of £30.7m (FY16: £52 8m) at the year
end. Strong cash generation resulted in a positive cash
inflow of £49.2m excluding the balance sheet impact of

the in-house part-exchange initiative, against a target of
£273m. The Executive Directors were therefore awarded
82% of the bonus (accounting for 10% of the total bonus
opportunity) in relation to this measure.

a8 McCarthy & Stone plc

The continued focus on homeowner
satisfaction has led to us in the

twelfth consecutive year being
awarded the Five Star rating for
customer satisfaction by the HBF

The continued focus an homeowner satisfaction has led
o us in the twelfth consecutive year being awarded the
Five Star rating for customer satisfaction by the HBF. This
sustained recognition by our customers of the quality

of product we deliver resulted in achievement of the
customer satisfaction target of 33% (we achieved 93.4%)
and as a result 60% of the bonus in relaticn to this element
twhich accounts for 10% of the total bonus opportunity}
was earned.

The Group continued to maintain a
robust financial position with a net

cash balance of £30.7m at the year
end. Strong cash generation resulted
in a positive cash inflow of £49.2m

In respect of FY17, the bonus for the Executive Directors
was therefore 19 7% of the maximum opportunity This
equates to 29.6% of salary for the CEOQ and COC and
19.7% of salary for the CFO. The Committee believes that
these pay-outs reflect the performance of the Group over
the year.

Remuneration approach for FY18

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees have not been increased
since November 2015. It has been agreed that the Non-
Executive Directors will receive a 3% increase in their basic
fees with effect from FY18. The Chairman, John White, has
waived his increase, There will not be any change to the
level of additional fees paid for the Senior Independent
Director or for Committee membership.

FY18 bonus objectives
The annual bonus plan measures and their weightings for
FY18 will be:

Group profit before tax (70%)
Group full year cash flow {10%)
Group customer satisfaction {10%;)
Group land exchanges {(10%)
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Changes to the FY18 Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Committee reviewed the appropriateness of the LTIP
arrangements and the asscciated performance targets.

As aresult of this review, the Remuneration Committee
proposes to maintain the current guantum of 150% of salary
far the Executive Directors. The approved palicy allows for, but
does not require, an additional post-vesting holding period

to apply to the awards, Whilst this provision was not used for
previous awards, the Committee recognises the importance of
linking executive pay to long-term and sustained shareholder
value and therefore has decided to add a two-year holding
penod for FY18 awards. During the holding period, executives
will not be allowed to sell vested shares (other than for tax
purposes}, meaning the overall time horizon of the FY18
awards will be five years, This approach is in line with the
expectation/preferences of many of our shareholders and
additionally reflects the Government's response to the green
paper on corporate governance and executive pay.

The Remuneration Committee decided to retain the

existing performance measures {earnings per share, return
on capital employed and total shareholder return), which
focus executives on maximising returns to shareholders
through growth in sustainable earnings and efficient capital
management. [n line with the approved policy and previous
awards as detailed on page 91 and 82, threshold performance
will result in 25% vesting against each element, with 100%
vesting at or above the maximum performance target.
However, the Committee proposes to amend the weightings
and targets for the FY18 awards, as detailed on page 92 The
changes we are proposing do net require formal shareholder
approval. However, we believe that it is important to seek the
views of our shareholders. Prior to the publication of our
Annual Report we consulted with our major shareholders and
would like to thank them for their positive engagement during
the process which helped shape these changes.

No other changes are proposed in respect of the remuneration
elements in FY18.

Our goal has been to be thoughtful and clear in the layout of
this report and | fook forward to your support on the
resolution.

I welcome any feedback from the Company’s shareholders.

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 November 2017
WA
Notes

This Report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 to The Large

and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accountis and Reports) Regulations
2008 as amended in 2013, the provisians of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the Listing Rules The Report consists of two sections’

+ The Annual Statement by the Rermuneration Committee Chairman and
associated ‘At a glance'section

- The Annual Report on Rernuneration which sets out payments made
to the Directors and details the link between Group performance and
remuneration for Fy17

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

At a glance

Introduction
In this section, we report on the remuneration cutcormes for FY17, which have been implemented in accordance with our
remuneraticn palicy.

Our remuneration policy was designed to align remuneration of our Executive Directors with Group strategy and 1o drive
continued success within a remuneration framework that meets the shareholder and governance expectations of a FTSE
250 comparny. The Remuneration Pelicy was approved by shareholders at the AGM in january 2017 and is set out in ful
on pages 63 to 74 of our FY16 Annual Report.

Qur core principles of remuneration are:

« To ensure top executives are attracted, retained and mativated to drive the Company forward
* Toincentivise management in creating an efficient and scalable business to support the growth strategy
» To deliver long-term sustainatle value to shareholders

FY17 outcomes
The outcomes outlined in this section reflect the remuneration and performance measures and targets in place during FY317
and their level of satisfaction. These were in line with the Remuneraticn Policy approved last year.

The table below shows the total remuneration paid or payable to each of the Executive Directors in respect of FY17.
These amounts include the bonus amounts payable as detailed in the following table

Total Remuneration far our Executive Directors FY17 FY1&
Clive Fenton - CEO £753,169 £628,024
John Tonkiss - COO £462,231 £324.617
Rowan Baker - CFO! £223,594 n/a
Nick Maddock - former CFO? £133,702 £364,933

1 Rowan Baker became an Executive Director an 6 January 2017
2 Nick Maddock resigned from the Board with effect from 6 January 2017

Annuaf bonus outcomes:

The strategy and KPIs of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there is alignment between performance and reward. The
performance measures used during the year were (g) Group cperating profit (70%), (b} Group full year cash flow {10%); (c) Group
land exchanges (10%); and (d) Group customer satisfaction (10%j.

The table below shows the total bonus payable to each of the Executive Directors in respect of FY17 outcomes. Further details
of how the perfarmance measures for our annual bonus plan and LTIP align to our strategy are outlned on page 63 of the FY16
Annual Report.

Annual bonus outcomes for our Executive Directors FYi7 FY¥16
Clive Fenton - CEQ £143,412 £61,750
John Tonkiss - COO £88,800 £36,400
Rowan Baker - CFO' £29,631 n/a

Nick Maddock - former CFO? - -

1 Rowan Baker became an Executive Director on 6 January 2017
2 Nick Maddock resigned from the Board with effect from & |anuary 2017

Equity exposure of the Board

The Executive Directors are required to build up over a five-year period, and then subsequently hold, a shareholding equivalent to
200% of their base salary. As a result of the IPO in November 2015, Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss have significant shareholdings in
the Company, prowding them with a material stake in the business. Rowan Baker, who was appointed to the Board on 6 January
2017, has not yet met her shareholding requirement. The table below shows their interest in the Company as a percentage of their
salary as at 31 August 2017,

Clive Fenton John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Shareholding requirement 200% 200% 200%
Value of beneficially owned shares 564% 319% 3%
Value of/gain on interests over shares (i.e. unvested/unexercised awards) 255% 253% 132%

The table on page 97 shows the interests of each Executive Director in the shares of the Company at year end.
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implementation of the Remuneration Policy in FY18
For FY18, the proposed remuneration will be as set out below. This is in accordance with our remuneration policy.

Base salary

For FY18, the base salaries for the Executive Directors will be:

Clive Fenton £500,000 (3.2% increase with effect fram 1 November 2017)
John Tonkiss £330,000 (10.0% increase with effect from 1 November 2017)
Rowan Baker £285,000 (26.7% increase with effect from 1 September 2017)

The Committee has increased john's salary by 10% from £300,000 to £330,000 effective
1 November 2017 to recognise his strong perfoermance and the increased responsibifity following
his appointment to the role of Chief Qperating Officer in June 2017,

Rowan was promoted to the Board in January 2017 on a salary below the targeted policy level. The
Committee has increased Rowan's salary from £225,000 to £285,000 effective from 1 September
2017 to recognise her strong performance and development in the role and her critical role in
delivering the Group’s strategy. In accordance with our remuneration policy, the Committee has
flexibility to increase Rowan’s salary from time to time as she gains experience in her role. The
Committee has therefore agreed the above increase to take effect from 1 September 2017 and will
keep her salary under review.

Pension

The maximum contribution into the defined contribution plan or a salary supplement
in lieu of pension will be 20% of gross base salary.

Benefits

Standard benefits will be provided including private medical insurance, life insurance
and a car or car allowance.

Annual Bonus Plan (‘ABP")

Cash and deferred shares

For FY18 the maximum bonus opportunity is 150% of salary.
The performance conditions and their weightings for the FY18 annual bonus are as follows:

* Group profit before tax (70%)

= Group full year cash flow (10%)

» Group customer satisfaction (10%)
* Group land exchanges (10%)

One-third of any bonus earned will be in the form of deferred shares, which will be
deferred for three years.

The precise details of the targets themselves are deemed to be commerciaily sensitive
as they relate to the current financial year. The Committee therefore does not consider
it appropriate to disclose annual bonus targets during the year. However, details of
the performance targets will be disclosed on a retrospective basis in next year's
Remuneration Report.

The Annuat Bonus Plan (ABP") contains clawback and malus pravisions.

Long Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The performance conditions for the FY18 LTIP awards are earnings per share ('EPS"), return on
capital employed {ROCE") and relative total shareholder return ('TSR’} against the comparator
housing group and FTSE 250 (excl. Financial Services and investment trusts). Al three measures
are assessed over a three-year performance period.

Far the achievement of threshold performance, 25% of the element will vest with straight-line
vesting in between to maximum perfarmance. The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisions.
Please see the full Remuneraticn Policy as set out on pages 63 to 74 in our FY16 Annual Report for
further details.

In FY18 an LTIP award up to a maximum of 150% of salary will be awarded to the Executive
Directors. As stated in the Chairman'’s letter, the FY18 LTIP will have a two-year post vesting
holding period during which executives cannot sell vested shares other than for tax purposes.
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FY18 LTIP targets The previous LTIP performance measures and targets were set in line with market practice,
investor expectations and the medium-term business plan following the IPQ. In light of the current
economic and political uncertainty, the Remuneration Committee concluded that a review of the
current structure was appropriate from a business perspective and necessary in order to maintain
the incentive effect of LTIP awards and hence motivate and retain the Executive Directors and
other senior executives over the near future,

The Remuneration Committee decided to retain the existing performance measures (‘EPS, ‘TSR’
and 'ROCE"), which focus executives an maximising returns to shareholders through growth in
sustainable earnings and efficient capital management. In line with the approved policy and
previous awards, threshold performance will result in 25% vesting against each element, with
100% vesting at or above the maximurn performance target. However, the Committee proposes
to amend the weightings and targets for the FY18 awards.

The FY18 LTIP proposed performance measures, weightings and targets are outlined in the table
below alongside those operated in respect of the previous LTIP award in FY17.

Perforrnance measures FY17 weightings and targets FY18 weightings and targets
Earnings Per Share ('EPS’) Weighting: 33.3% Weighting: 37.5%
FY19 EPS FY20 EPS
Threshold: 21.8p Threshold: 21.8p
Max: 27.8p Max: 27.8p
Relative Total Shareholder Weighting: 33.3% Weighting: 25.0%
Return (TSR Measured against housebuilder Measured against two groups {equally
peer group weighted); housebuilder peer index
Threshold: equal to index and FTSE 250 constituents
Max: index + 7.5% p.a. Threshold: equal to index / median
of FTSE 250
Max: index + 7.5% p.a. / upper quartiie
of FTSE 250
Return On Capital Weighting: 33.3% Weighting: 37.5%
Employed ('ROCE") Threshold: 22.0% Threshold: 20.0%
Max: 25.0% Max: 25.0%

Changes to FY18 performance measures and rationale for change:

Increase EPS weighting to 37.5%

» Profitability is a key driver of the business and EPS as a performance measure motivates
and provides a strong ‘line of sight’ to management as they have a greater influence over
the outcome

= The EPS targets are set based on the three-year business plan and analyst consensus

Increase ROCE weighting to 37.5% and reduce threshold target to 20%

» Managements' focus on capital efficiency remains an important performance indicator of the
business and its business plan as set out on IPC. Therefore it is appropriate to increase the
weighting of this measure

= The Committee believes that the maximum target of 25% ROCE remains a suitably stretching
target and that achieving this within the performance period would represent exceptional
performance and hence justify full vesting of this element of the LTIP. In order to improve
alignment with the Company’s business plan for FY20, the threshold target will be set at
20%. The Committee considers this level of performance to be realistic yet challenging,
and representative of the Company’s medium-term business plan
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Reduce Relative TSR weighting to 25% and split comparator group into two groups

Our largest shareholders have a strong preference for shareholder return measures and
relative TSR best reflects how the Company is performing against its peers. Therefore itis
appropriate to retain TSR as a performance measure

The unique business profile of the Company means that while Brexit had an impact on all
housebuilders’ performance, other housebuilders have recovered largely as a result of the
Government’s help-te-buy scheme which is not applicable to the Company. Notwithstanding
this, the Committee feels that housebuilders remain an appropriate comparator group for TSR
but that this should be balanced against the broader market by the introduction of a FTSE 250
comparator group. The use of two peer groups would provide a more holistic assessment of
performance against both a cyclical industry and performance against the broader market,
Constituents of our housebuilder peer group are set ocut on page 95.

The Committee believe that the additional two year holding period and the new weightings and
targets will create the right balance between supporting a successful execution of the three-year
business plan and incentivising the Executive Directors.

NED fees

The fees for FY18 for the Non-Executive Director roles are:

Chairman: £230,000

Board fee: £54,600

Senior Independent Director’s additional fee: £10,000
Committee Chairman fee (per Committee). £10,000
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited)

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration for each Executive Director in respect of FY17 and FY16.
Further explanations of each of the elements are set out below in the following sections of this report.

Base Annual

Name Period salary Benefits bonus3 TIPS Pensions Total
Clive Fenton FY17 £482.917 £30,257 £143.412 None £96,583 £753,169
FY16 £467,617 £27407 £61,750 None £71,250 £628,024
John Tonkiss FY17 £296,667 £24,626 £88.800 None £52,138 £462,231
FY16 £229,445 £15,782 £36,400 None £42,990 £324,617
Nick Maddock! FY17 £105,769 £8,231 - None £19,702 £133,702
FYt6 £288,781 £21,156 - None £54,996 £364,933
Rowan Baker? FY17 £151,641 £6,183 £29,631 None £36,139 £223,594

1 NickMaddockresigned from the Board with effect from & january 2017

2 Rowan Baker was appointed to the Board weth effect from 6 anuary 2017 The amounts in this taole relate only 1o the period sirce she joined the Board and do not
cover the period from 1 August 2016 to 5 January 2017

3 One-third of the anrnual bonus payaple o Clve Fenton and te john Tonkiss 1s 10 the form of deferred shares to the value of £47,804 and £29,600 respectively. These
amounis are Included n the annual bonus figures in this table The shares are deferred for three years and are not subject to any performance conditons. Rowan Baker's
bonus 15 afl cash with no deferred shares

4 NoiTIPswere due or eligible tovestin FY17

5  Comprises the value of Group Personal Pension scheme contribuions and salary supplements in lieu of pensian

Base salar

As reportedyin the Annual Report last year, the base salary for the CEO and the COO were increased with effect from

1 November 2016. The table below shows the base salary for each of the Executive Directars during the year. As Rowan Baker
was only appointed to the Board on 6 January 2017, her salary prior to that date has not been disclosed. Nick Maddaock resigned
from the Board with effect from 6 January 2017

Executive Director Position Period Annual salary
Clive Fenton Chief Executive Officer 11?19112:;11 ;g}g é:;iggg
John Tonkiss Chief Operating Officer :?19112:;1 ;g}g Egggggg
Rowan Baker Chief Financial Officer (current) 6.0117 -31.08.17 £225,000
Nick Maddock Chief Financial Officer {former) 1.09.16 -6.01.17 £300,000

Benefits (audited)

The Executive Directors typically receive private medical insurance, life insurance and cash for car allowance, aithough
the Committee retains the flexibility to provide other benefits. The amounts shown in the table above are the gross
(oefore tax) amounts.

Annual bonus (audited)
The strategy and the KPIs of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there is alignment between performance and reward.
For FY17 the performance conditions and their weightings for awards under the ABP were:

Group operating profit (70%)
Group fuli year cash flow (10%)
Group land exchanges (10%)
Group customer satisfaction (10%)

Under the terms of the FY17 annual bonus, 25% for each element s payable for achieving the threshold performance, 50%

1s payable for achieving target performance, increasing to 100% for achieving maximum per formance. Achievements between
these paints are calculated on a straight-line basis. The maximum cpportunity for Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss was 150% of
salary and one-third of any bonus earned was in the form of deferred shares, which is deferred for three years. Rowan Baker
was appointed in the year and her maximum bonus opporiunity was set at 100% of salary in cash, recognising that FY17 was
a transitional year rather than the maximum pclicy level for Executive Directors of 150% of salary. For FY18, Rowan's bonus
opportunity will be increased to 150% of salary with cne-third deferral in line with other Executive Directors.

The bonus awards payable to the Executive Directors in respect of FY17 were agreed by the Remuneration Committee, having
reviewed the Company's results and the extent to which the performance conditions were met. The resuits are shown in the
following table. As at 13 November, no awards have been granted in respect of FY18.
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Performance targets Annual bonus value achueved
Percentage of
Weighting Maximum maximum
of each Perfarmance weighting Actual performance Clive John Rowan
Performance conditions condition targets required per target performance achieved Fenton Tonkiss Baker
Underlying Threshold £108.6m 17.5%
operating 70.0% Target £113.6m 35.0% £96.2m 0.0% - - -
profit Maximum £123 6m 70.0%
Threshold £2.0m 2.5%
Cash flow 10.0% Target £27.3m 5.0% £49.2m 82.0% £59,694 £36,962 £12,334
Maximum £61.5m 10.0%
Land Threshold 2,781 2.5%
exchanges 10.0% Target 3,133 5.0% 3164 55.0% £40,039 £24792 £8,273
& Maximum 3,446 10.0%
Cust i Threshold 91.0% 2.5%
e 100% Target 93.0% 5.0% 93.4% 60.0% £43679 £27046 £9,024
satistactl Maximum 95.0% 10.0%
Total 100.0% 19.7% £143,412 £88,800 £29,631
LTIP awards (audited)

During FY17 LTtP awards of 150% of salary were granted to Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss, and 106% of salary to Rowan Baker.
The awards were made as nil-cost opticns and the number of shares over which each nil-cost option was awarded was calculated
by reference to the closing price of the shares as derived from the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange on the day
before the date of the award.

These nil-cost options will vest depending on performance against a challenging sliding scale of Earnings per Share {('EPS"), Return
on Capital Employed (ROCE’) and relative Total Sharehiolder Return (TSR’ against a bespoke group of housebuilders The TSR
cornparatar group index comprises the unweighted average TSR of the following housebuilders: Barratt, Bovis, Bellway, Crest
Nicholson, Persimmaon, Redrow and Taylor Wimpey. Alt three measures are assessed over a three-year performance period and
are equally weighted. The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisicns.

The perfermance conditions and targets for the FY17 LTIP awards are set out below. For the achievernent of threshold
performance, 25% of the element will vest with straight-line vesting in between to maximum performance,

Measure Weighting Threshold performance Maximum performance
EPS 1/3rd 21.8 pence 27.8 pence
FY19 ROCE 1/3rd 22% 25%
Relative TSR 1/3rd Equal to Index Index + 7.5% p.a.

The following LTIP awards were made during FY17.

Maximum

Number Basis of % of award percentage of
Grant of shares. award granted Face value vesting at the face value Performance
Exerutive Director date awarded {% of basic salary) of awardz threshold that could vest period3
Clive Fenton 221216 471916 150% £726,750 25% 100% 3years
John Tonkiss 221216 292,208 150% £450,000 25% 100% 3years
221216 40,584 n/a £62,500 25% 100% 3years

Rowan Baker’

27.0117 105,520 79% £176,957 25% 100% 3years

1 Rowan Baker was granted an LTIP award i December 2016 prior to being promated to the Board. She was awarded a top-up LTIP award in January 20717 following
her appointment as CFO The face value of the second award was calculated using the closing share price on 26 January 2617, being £1 677 The combined awards
represent 106% of ner base salary

The face value is calculated using the closing share price on 21 Decemnber 2016 (£1.54) and on 26 January 2017 (£1.677)

The performance period runs for three years from the date of grant Relative TSR will be measured from 22 December 2016 over a three-year peried. EPS and ROCE
will be measured at 31 August 2019

W

As at 13 November, no awards have been granted in respect of FY18.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Pension entitlements (audited)

The Group operates a Group personal pension scherme under which Executive Directors are entitled to receive contributions
of up to 20% of salary. The Group does not currently operate a defined benefit scheme.

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

The Company's Articles of Association restrict the annual fees that may be paid to the Non-Executive Directors in aggregate

to £1.0m. This amount may only be increased by ordinary resclution of the shareholders.

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneraticn and breakdown for each Non-Executive Director.

Nen-Executive Directors! Period Fees Renefits2 Total Roie
John White FY17 £230,000 £2.670 £232,670

FY16 £209,083 £2,334 £211,47 Group Non-Executive Chairman
Frank Nelson FY17 £73,000 £107 £73.107

FY16 £68,360 - £68,360 Senior Independent Director
Mike Parsons FY17 £63,000 - £63,000

FY16 £60,322 - £60,322 Independent Non-Executive Director
Geeta Nanda FY17 £53,000 - £53,000

FY16 £52,283 - £52,283 Independent Nen-Executive Director

1 John Carret was appointed after year end so has not received any remuneration for FY17

2 Benefits relate to outside of policy travel expenditure

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees which applied during FY17 were:

Role Fees
Chairman £230,000
Non-Executive Director’s Board fee £53,000
Senior Independent Director’s additional fee £10,000
Committee Chairman’s additional fee (per Committee) £10,000

The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to participate in the Group's Pension Scheme, ABP, LTIP or the Sharesave Plan,

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

Directors’ interests in share awards (audited)

The outstanding interests in share awards for the Executive Directors as at 31 August 2017 are shown in the table below.
The Non-Executive Directors are not permitted to participate in any of the Group’s share plans or incentive arrangements.

Director/ Number Vested during Lapsed during Exercise Vesting

Plan Date of grant of share awards the year the year price {£) date Expiry date
Clive Fenton - CEQ

LTIP 251115 263,888 - il 251118 251125
LTIP 221216 471916 - nil 2212719 2212.26
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - 1674 280119 28.0719
John Tonkiss

LTip 251115 155,555 - nil 2571118 2511.25
LTIP 22126 292,208 - nil 221219 221226
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - 1.674 280119 28.0718
Rowan Baker

LTIP 251115 22,222 - nil 251118 251125
LTIP 221216 40,584 - nil 221219 221226
LTIP 270117 105,520 - nif 27.01.20 27.01.27
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - 1674 280119 280718
Nick Maddock'

LTIP 251115 166,666 166,666 nil lapsed lapsed
Sharesave 10,1215 10,752 10,752 1674 lapsed lapsed

1 Nick Maddock left the Company on 6 January 2017 and his LTIP and Sharesave optiors lapsed on that date

There were no outstanding ABP share awards as at 31 August 2017.
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Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

The Executive Directors are required to build up over a five-year pertod, and then subsequently hold, a shareholding equivalent
to 200% of their base salary. At the end of FY17 Clive Fenton and john Tonkiss had met their shareholding requirement. Rowan
Baker, who was appointed to the Board on 6 January 2017, has not yet met her shareholding requirement, but she is aware she
will need to increase her sharehalding to meet this requirerment by 6 January 2022. Non-Executive Directors are not subject to
shareholding requirements.

The table below shows the interests in shares in the Company, including unvested awards, for each of the Directors as at
31 August 2017, No opticns were exercised during the year. There has not been any change since the year end.

Shares Shares Shares
Shares subjectto not subjectto Options Options Options benefigially Sharehalding
beneficially performance performance vested but unvested unvested owned as requirement
Directar owned conditions conditions unexercised (LTIPs) {Sharesave) % cf safary! met?
Executive Directors
Clive Fenton 1,651,345 - - - 735,804 10,752 564.1% Yes
John Tonkiss 578,719 - - - 447,763 10,752 319.3% Yes
Rowan Baker 3,789 - - - 168,326 10,752 2.8% Ne
Nick Maddock? 825,361 - - - n/a n/a nfa n/a
Non-Executive Directors
John White 1,650,192 n/a n/a n/fa n/a n/a - n/a
Frank Nelson 173,270 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a
Mike Parsons 173,270 nfa n/a n/a n/a nfa - nfa
Geeta Nanda - n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a

1 Thisis based on a clesing share price of £1.655 and the year-end salaries of the Executive Directors Shares used for the above calculation exclude unvested and
unexeraised options They include shares where the Executive Director has beneficial ownership, shares independently acquired in the market and those held by
a spouse or cvil partner or dependent child under the age of 18 years.

2 Nick Maddaock left the Company an & January 2017. The benefinially owned shares represent his holding on his date of resignation His LTiP ard Sharesave options
lapsed on that date.

Payments to past Directors (audited)
There were no payments in the financial year.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments in the financial year. No payments were made to Nick Maddock for loss of office.

External directorships

Executive Directors may hold positions in cther companies as Non-Executive Directors and retain their fees.

Clive Fenton, John Tonkiss and Rowan Baker do not hold any external directorships.

Comparison of overall performance and pay

The graph below shows the value of £100 invested in the Company’s shares since listing compared with the FTSE 250 index.
The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated by both the movement in share value and reinvestment over the
same period of dividend income.

As the Company is currently a constituent of the FTSE 250, the Committee considers this is an appropriate index. The comparison
is from the date of listing on 11 November 2015 to 37 August 2017,

[ ]

Graphicremoved
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Chief Executive Officer's historic remuneration
The following table shows the total single figure for the role of Chief Executive Officer as well as the annual bonus and LTIP vesting
level achieved for each of the periods covered by the graph on the previous page.

FY17 FY15
CEQ total single figure £753,169 £628,024
Annual bonus payment levef achieved (% of maximum opportunity} 19.7% 10.0%
LTIP vesting level achieved (% of maximum opportunity)' 0% 0%

1 Noaward has vested unger the LTIP

Statement of considerations of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
The pclicy for all employees is determined in terms of best practice and ensuring that the Group 15 able to attract and retain
the best people. This principle 1s followed in the development of our policy.

The remuneration strategy of the Company has been designed to ensure all employees share in its success through
performance-related remuneration and share ownership On IPO the LTIP was introduced for Executive Directors and
other selected members of senior management. Awards under the LTIP will provide alignment between sernior leaders
and our shareholders based on overall performance of the business.

For all emgloyees, the Company has adopted the Sharesave and the Share Incentive Plan ('SIP"). Under these Plans, all employees
have the cpportunity to purchase shares in the Company subject to certain restrictions.

The Company does not use remuneration comparisen measurements nor have employees been consulted directly on the pelicy.
In setting the remuneration policy for Directors, the pay and conditions of other employees of the Group are taken into account,
including any base salary increases awarded.

The Committee is provided with data on the remuneration structure for management level tiers below the Executive Directors,
and uses this information to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group.

Change in Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration compared with employees
The following table illustrates the change in CEQ salary, benefits and bonus between FY16 and FY¥17 compared with other
employees in the Group taken as a whole.

% change FY161o FY17

Base salary Benefits Annual bonus
Chief Executive Officer 2% 10% 132%
Other Group employees 3% 14% 146%

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the relative importance of spend on pay in comparisen to profit distributed by way of dividends.

Fr17 FY16 % changes
Cverall spend on pay including Executive Directors £80.0m £69.3m 13%
Profit distributed by way of dividends £29.0m £24.2m 20%

There were no distributions by way of share buybacks during the year.
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Committee, under agreed terms of reference, responsibility for the policy and for determining
specific packages for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senior management team. Prior to the
establishment of the Committee, remuneration decisions were made by the Board. The Company consults with key shareholders
in respect of the policy and the introduction of new incentive arrangements.

The members of the Committee durng FY17 and up ta the date of this Report are Mike Parsons {Chairman), John White,
Frank Nelson and Geeta Nanda.

The terms of reference for the Committee are avalable on the Company's website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co,uk/
about-us/corporate-governance, and from the Company Secretary at the registered office

Our main respeonsibilities are to:

« Determine and agree with the Board the broad Policy for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senior
management team

= Undertake periodic reviews to assess the appropriateness and relevance of the Policy ensuring alignment with best practice
principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code

= Consider the relative impertance of the Group's expenditure on pay compared to the Group's profits, dividends and tax paid

« Review any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Company or Group and to administer all aspects of
any share scheme

The Committee receives assistance from the HR Director and the Company Secretary, who will attend meetings by invitation,
except when issues relating to their own remuneration are being discussed. The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer
and the Chief Operating Officer attend by invitation on occasion.

Adviser to the Remuneration Committee

Following a selection process carried out by the Board prior to and then following the IPO of the Company, the Committee has
engaged the services of PricewaternouseCoopers (PwC) as independent remuneration adviser.

During FY17 PwC has provided advice, primarily in respect of the remuneration pelicy and LTIP awards.

PwC also provides certain other non-audit services in respect of tax and internal audit to the Group. The Committee is satisfied
that no conflict of Interest exists or existed in the provision of these services and that the advice received from PwC is objective
and independent. PwC is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and is a signatory to its voluntary code of conduct
which is designed to ensure objective and independent advice is given to remuneration committees.

Fixed fees of £36,000 (FY16: £24,000) were paid to PwC during the year in respect of remuneration advice given to the Committee.

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Report and Accaunts -]



Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Shareholder engagement and statement of voting at the AGM

The Committee believes it is very iImportant to maintain an open dialogue with shareholders on remuneration matters.
Shareholders’ views were sought and considered when we set the remuneration palicy last year as well as consulting on the
changes to the incentive arrangements as outlined earlier in this report. The Committee commits to consulting with cur major
shareholders in respect of any future changes to the remuneration policy and any material changes to incentive arrangements.

We put resolutions to approve the remuneration policy, as set out in last year’s Annual Report, and to approve the FY16
Annual Report on Remuneration to our members at our AGM in January 2017. The voting outcome of those two resolutions were;

Total votes cast
FY17 Resolution Votes for Votes against {excluding withheld) Votes withheld

Directors’ Remuneration Policy:

Number of votes cast 320,184,871 24,713,722 344,898,593 3,773,564
Percentage of votes cast 92.8% 7.2%

Annual Report on Remuneration:

Number of votes cast 345,465,429 1,642,446 347,107,875 1,564,283
Percentage of votes cast 99.5% 0.5%
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Summary of remuneration policy
The following table sets out the elements of remuneration permitied under the remuneration policy which was approved by
shareholders in January 2017, The full policy is set out in the FY16 Annual Report on pages 63 to 74,

How it supparts the

STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Element of Company's short and Parformance
remuneration long-term strategic objectives Operation Maximurn opportunities metrics
Basesalary  Provides a base level of Set on appointment and The Committee ensures None.
remuneration to support reviewed annually or when that maximum salary
recruitment and retention there is a change in position levels are set in line with
of Executive Directors with or responsibility. companies of a similar
the necessary experience size to McCarthy & Stone,
and expertise to deliver When determining an operating in a similar sector.
the Group's strategy. appropriate level of salary,
the Committee considers: The companies in the comparator
* Remuneration practices group are the constituents of
within the Group the FTSE 250 and sector peer
» Thegeneral performance organisations of a similar size.
of the Group
» Salaries within the ranges The Committee intends to
paid by the companies in review the comparator groups
the comparator group each year and rmay add or
used for remuneration remove companies from the
benchmarking group as it considers appropriate.
s Any change in scope, Any changes to the comparator
role and responsibilities group will be in the section
» The economic environment headed Implementation of
Remuneration Policy, in tha
Individuals who are recruited or following financial year.
promoted to the Board may, on
occasion, have their salaries set in general, salary increases for
below the targeted policy level Executive Directors are in line
until they become established with the increase for emnployees.
in their role. In such cases
subsequent increases in salary The Company sets out in the
may be higher than the general section headed Implementation
rises for employees until the of Remuneration Policy Executive
target positioning is achieved. Director salaries for that year
and the foflowing year.
Benefits Provides a benefits Executive Directors typically The maximum is set at None.
package in line with receive private medical insurance, the cost of providing the
practice relative to its life insurance and a car or car benefits described.
comparator group to allowance. The Committee
enable the Company retains the flexibility to provide
to recruit and retain other benefits.
Executive Directors
with the experience The Committee recognises the need
and expertise to deliver to maintain suitable flexibility in
the Group's strategy. the benefits provided to ensure it
is able to support the objective of
attracting and retaining personnel in
order to deliver the Group strategy.
Additional benefits may therefore
be offered such as relocation
allowances on recruitment,
Pensions Provides a pension provision The Company offers a Group The maximum contribution None.

in line with practice relative
to its comparator group to
enable the Company

to recruit and retain
Executive Directors with the
experience and expertise to
deliver the Group's strategy.

Personal Pension scheme. The
Executive Directors are entitled
to receive a maximum employer
contribution into the Group
Personal Pension scheme or

a salary supplement in lieu of
pension of 20% of basic salary
per annum.

inta the Group Personal Pension
scheme or 2 salary supplement in
lieu of pension is 20% of gross basic
salary.

The Company sets outin the
section headed Implementation

of Remuneration Policy, in the
following financial year the pension
contributions for that year for each
of the Executive Directors.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

How it supports the
Elerment of Company’s shortand Performance
remuneration long-term strategic objectives Operation Maximum cpportunities metrics

The maximum bonus  An award under the ABP is
(including any part of  subject to satisfying financial
the bonus deferred and strategic/operational
into shares) deliverable performance/personal
under the ABP does performance conditions
notexceed 150% of a  and targets measured over
participant’s annual a period of one financial year.
base salary.

Annualand The ABP provides a The Committee determines
Deferred significantincentiveto  the bonus to be awarded
Bonus the Executive Directors  following the end of the
Plan ('ABP’) linked to achievement  relevant financial year.

in delivering goals that

are closely aligned with  The Company will set out

the Group's strategy in the section headed

and the creation of Implementation of

value for shareholders. Remuneration Policy,

in the following financial

In particular, the ABP year, the nature of the

supports the Company’s targets and their weighting for levels of measures. The Cormmittee will

objectives allowing the  for each year. performance: determine the bonus to be

setting of annual targets * Threshold: 25% of  delivered following the end of

based onthe business  Detalls of the performance maximum bonus the relevant financial year.

strategy at the time, conditions, targets and their * Ontarget: 50% of

meaning that a wider level of satisfaction for the maximum bonus The Committee is of the

range of performance  year being reported on is set ¢  Maximum: 100% opinion that given the

metrics can be used out in the Annuai Report of maximum bonus commercial sensitivity arising

that are relevant on Remuneration. in relation to the detailed

and achievable. The annual benus will  financial targets used for the

The Committee can determine  be paid in cash and bonus, disclosing precise

A rinirmum of 50% of the
bonus shall be based on
financial performance

Percentage of bonus
maximum earned

The Committee has

discretion to defer part
of the bonus earned in
shares under the ABP.

The advantage of

deferral is:

* [ncreased alignment
between Executive
Directors and
shareholders created
through deferred
shares and the
increased equity
stake of management
in the Company

¢ Vesting of deferred
shares are subject
to an Executive
Director's continuing
employment, which
provides an effective
lock-in

that part of the bonus earned  deferred shares.

under the ABP is delivered as
an award of shares.

The maximum value of
deferred shares is 50% of
the bonus earned.

The portion of bonus earned

to be deferred into Company
shares for the year being
reported on will be set out in the

Annual Report on Remuneration.

The main terms of these awards

are:

* Minimum deferral period
of three years, during which
ne performance conditions
will apply

* The participant's continued
employment at the end of the
deferral period unless he/she
is a good leaver

The Committee may award
dividend equivalents on those
shares to the participants to the
extent that they vest.

The Committee has the
discretion to apply a holding
period of two years post vesting
of deferred shares.

The ABP contains clawback and
ralus provisions. Please refer
to page 69 of the 2016 Annual
Report for further details.

targets for the ABP in advance
would not be in shareholder
interests. Targets, performance
achieved and awards made

will be published at the end

of the performance period so
shareholders can fully assess
the basis for any pay-outs
under the ABP.

In exceptional circumstances
the Committee retains the
discretion to:

» Change the performance
measures and targets and
the weighting attached to
the performance measures
and targets part-way
through a performance year
if there is a significant and
material event which causes
the Committee to believe
the original measures,
weightings and targets are
no longer appropriate

* Make downward or upward
adjustments to the amount
of bonus earned resulting
from the application of the
performance measures, if
the Committee believes that
the bonus cutcomes are not
a fair and accurate reflection
of business performance

Any adjustments or discretion
applied by the Committee

will be fully disclosed in the
following year's Annual report
on Remuneration.
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Elementof Company's shart and Performance
remuneration |0f1g—term strategic ohjectives Operatian Maximum apportunities metrics
LTIP The purpose of the LTIP  Awards are granted annually Normal annual The performance conditions

is to incentivise and
reward Executive
Directors in relation to
long-term performance
and achievement of
Group strategy.

This will better align
Executive Directors’
interests with the
long-term interests of
the Group and actas a
retention mechanism.

The use of relative TSR,
Measures the success
of the implementation
of the Group’s strategy
in delivering a return
above our peer group.

The use of three-year
EPS and ROCE, ensures
Executive Directors are
focused on sustainable
long-term financial
performance.

to Executive Directors in the
form of a conditional share
award or a nil-cost option.

Details of the performance
conditions for grants made
in the year and the future
financial year are set out

in the Annual Reporton
Remuneration.

Awards will vest at the end of

a three-year period subject to:

* The Executive Director’s
continued empioyment at
the date of vesting

» Satisfaction of the
performance conditions

The Committee may award
dividend equivalents on
awards to the extent that
these vest,

The Committee has the
discretion to apply a holding
period of two years post
vesting of LTIP awards.

The LTIP contains clawback
and malus provisions.
Please refer to page 69 of
the 2016 Annual Report for
further details.

maximum value of
150% of annual base
salary based on the
market value at the
date of grant set in
accordance with the
rules of the LTIP.

In exceptional
circumstances the
Committee may grant
an award with a
maximum of 200%
of annual base salary.
« 25% of the award
will vest for
threshold
performance
« 100% of the
award will vest
for maximum
performance

There is straight-
line vesting between
these points.

for the FY17 LTIP awards are
cumulative EPS, ROCE and TSR.
The weightings of which are
outlined on page 95.

The Committee may change
the balance of the measures,
or use different measures
for subsequent awards,

as appropriate.

No material change will
be made to the type of
performance conditions
without prior shareholder
consultation.

In exceptional circumstances

the Committee retains the

discretion to:

= Vary, substitute or waive
the performance conditions
applying to LTIP awards if
the Committee considers
it appropriate and that
the new performance
conditions are deemed
reascnable and are not
materially less difficult
to satisfy than the
original conditions

* Make downward or
upward adjustments to
the amount vesting under
the LTIP resulting from
the application of the
performance measures if
the Committee believes that
the outcomes are not a fair
and accurate reflection of
business performance
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

How it supports the

Operaticn

Maximum opportunities

Performance
metrics

Executive Directors are eligible
to participate in both the SIP
and Sharesave.

The Executive Directors are
entitled to participate in any
other all ernployee arrangement
implemented by the Company.

The maximum levels
of participation set by
legislation from time
to time.

In accordance with the
legislation the Company may
impose objective performance
conditions and/or length of
service/hours worked/level of
remuneration to determine the
level of awards made under
the SIP,

Element of Company's short and

remuneration long-term strategic objecuves

All employee The SIP and Sharesave

share plans  are all employee share

-SIP and ownership plans which

Sharesave  have been designed
to encourage all
employees to become
shareholders in the
Company and thereby
align their interests
with shareholders.

Minimum

shareholding

requirement

The Committee has adopted formal shareholding guidelines that will encourage the Executive Directors to build
up over a five-year period and then subsequently hold a shareholding equivalent to a percentage of base salary.
Adherence to these guidelines is a condition of continued participation in the equity incentive arrangements.

This requirement ensures that the interests of Executive Directors and those of shareholders are closely aligned.

Currently the requirement is for all Executive Directors to build up a shareholding equal to 200% of salary.

The Committee retains the discretion to increase the sharehelding requirements.

Executive Directors’ contracts and letters of appointment for Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Date of

Nature

Notice periods

Compensation provisions

Name service contract of contract From company Director for early terminaticn
Clive Fenton 30 January 2014 Rolling 12 months 12 months At the discretion
John Tonkiss 21 January 2014 Rolling 12 months 6 months of the
Rowan Baker 6 January 2017 Rolling 12 months 6 months Committee

Non-Executive Directors

Name Date of letter of appointment
John White 24 September 2013
Frank Nelson 11 November 2013
Mike Parsons 28 October 2013
Geeta Nanda 4 March 2015
lohn Carter 18 Septermnber 2017

The Committee’s policy for setting notice periods is that a 12 month period will apply for Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company {including the Chairman) do not have service contracts. The Non-Executive
Directors are appginted by letters of appointment. Each independent Non-Executive Director's term of office runs for a
three-year period which can be renewed for two further three-year terms. The terms of the Non-Executive Directors’
positions are subject to their re-election by the Company’s sharehalders at the AGM and to re-election at any subsequent
AGM at which the Non-Executive Directors stand for re-election.

All Directors will be put forward for re-election by shareholders on an annual basis.

The service contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registered

office during normal office hours.
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Illustrations of the application of the Remuneration Paolicy

The charts below illustrate the remuneration that would be paid to each of the Executive Directors, based on salaries at the start,
of FY18, under three different performance scenarios {1) minimum; (i on-target; and (i) maximum. The table below these charts
sets out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of these scenarios. The elements of
remuneration have been categonsed into three companents: (i) fixed; (i) annual bonus (deferred bonus); and (iiiy LTIP.

Chief Executive Officer (Clive Fenton) (£'000) Chief Operating Officer (John Tonkiss) (£'000)
Maximum | 30% ]35% |35% J 2130 Maxmum [ 30% Las% i35% ] 1410
Cn-target EG% I 27% ‘ 27% J 1,380 On-target |46% [27% } 27% <-| 915

Minirnum ‘iOO% ‘630 { Minimum | 100% 420
Actual 81% 753 Actual 462

HBrixed MBonus WLTIP B Fixed WBonus MLTIP

Chief Financial Officer (Rowan Baker) (£'000)

Maximum EO% E% [ 35% | 1,216
On-target (i6% ‘E% ‘ 27% i 788

Minimum 351

We have not Included the “Actual” bar for Rowan Baker

Actual as she was only a Director for part of the year

M Fixed HBonus ALTIP

Elernent Description Minimurn Target Maximurm

Fixed Salary, benefits! included Included Included
and pension

Annualbonus  Annual bonus (including  No annual variable 50% of 100% of
deferred shares)? maximum bonus maximum bonus
Maximum opportunity
of 150% of salary

LTIP Award under the LTIP? No multiple year variable  50% ofthe 100% of the
Maximum annual award maximurn award maximum award

of 150% of salary

Notes

1 Based oh FY17 benefits payments as per the Single Figure Taple The actual benefits paid for FY18 will only be known at the ena of the financial year See page 34 for the
Single Figure Table and the accompanying notes.

2 tnaccordance with the regulations share price growth has not been inciuded in addition, dividend equivalents have not been added (g the deferred shares and { T1P awards

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 Novernber 2017

WA ?W/":l__,
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present therr report for the financial year ended
31 August 2017

Corporate governance statement

The information that fulfils the requirements of the corporate
governance statement for the purposes of the FCA's Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules can be found in the
corperate governance (nformation on pages 74 to 105 (all

of which forms part of this Directors’ report) and in this
Directors' report.

Cross-references to other sections of the document
Disclosures that are in other sections include:

Subject matter
Employee diversity and inclusivity
Employee invelvement

Greenhouse gas emissions
Likely future developments

Section and page reference

Strategic report, page 63
Strategic report, page 63
Strategic report, page 60
Strategic report,
pages 56 and 57

Dividends

Annterim dividend of 1.8p (FY16: 1.0p) per ordinary share was
paid on 9 june 2017 to those sharehelders on the register on
28 April 2017, Subject to shareholder approval at the 218
AGM, the Qirectars are proposing a final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 August 2017 of 3.6p (FY16: 3.5p) per
ordinary share This brings the total dividend for the year (o
5.4p (FY16:4.5p).

Directors

The names of the Directors who were Directors at year end
and up to the date of this report are on pages 70 to 73. Nick
Maddock served as a Director unul 6 January 2017 when he
resigned from the Board. Rowan Baker was appointed to the
Board ¢cn & January 2017 John Carter was apgointed to the
Beard on 1 October 2017.

Detalls of the Directors’ interests in the share capital of the
Company are set out in the Diractors’ Remuneration Report
on page 97,

The powers given to the Directors are contained in the
Company's Articles of Association {the ‘Articles’), subject
to the Companies Act 2006, and any directions given by
mempers in general meetings.

The Board, who is ultimately responsible for the management
of the business of the Company, may exercise all powers to
borrow money, to pay interim dividends, to mortgage or
charge any of its undertakings, to issue securities and to give
security for any debt, hability or obligation of the Company

to any third party.
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The appointment and replacement of directors is governed
by the Articles and the Board may appoint any person to
be a director (so long as the total number of directors does
not exceed the limit prescribed in the Articles, which is
currently 12).

Under the Articles, any such director shall hold office only
until the next AGM and shall then be eligible for electian by
the members. In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code
all directors are required to retire and, if they so wish, the

may stand for annual re-election. All current directors wil

be seeking re-election at the 2018 AGM.

The Articles may be amended by a special resolution of the
sharehclders.

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association may be amended in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of a
special resolution of the Company's shareholders.

Share capital and control
Details of the Company’s share capital are cn page 137 in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 37 August 2016 there were 537,314,069.25 ordinary shares
of 8p nominal value in 1ssue. Following approval at the AGM,
the quarter share was bought back and cancelled on

25 January 2077 No other shares have been bought back
and cancelled.

During the year 15,365 new crdinary shares have beenissued
and allotted to satisfy early exercises of options under the
Group's Sharesave Pran by good leaver employees, who are
entitled to exercise their pro-rata options within six months
of leaving the Group.

The Company has cne class of shares: ordinary shares of 8p
nominal value, each of which carries the right to cne vote at
general meetings of the Company and to an equal proportion
of any dividends declared and paid.

Shares may be issued with such rights and restrictions as the
Company may, by ordinary resolution, decide or, if there is no
such resolution or so far as it does not make specific provision,
as the Board may decide.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of our ordinary shares
and there are no shares carrying special rights with regards to
control of the Campany. The Company is not aware of any
agreements between shareholders that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of shares or on voting rights. There
are no specific restrictions on the size of a hoiding or on the
exercise of voting rights which are governed by the Articles of
Association and prevailing legislation. No person has any
special rights of control over the Company's share capitat and
allissued shares are fully paid.
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Resolutions to allot, issue and buy back shares
Shareholder autherity will be sought each year to authorise
the Directors to allot new shares and to disapply pre-emption
rights and to make market purchases of our ordinary shares.

We intend to renew our powers to issue and buy back shares
at each AGM. At cur AGM on 25 January 2017 the Directors
were authorised to 1ssue shares up to 2 maximum nominal
amount of £14,328,360 and empowered to issue shares on a
non pre-emptive basis up to a maximum nominal amount of
£2,149,256 for general use and a further £2,149,256 for use
in connection with an acguisition or other capital investment.

The Directors were alsc authorsed to buy back up to
53,731,406 shares. This authority has not been used.
The Directors are seeking renewat of this authority at
the forthcoming AGM, in accordance with relevant
institutional guidelines.

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 August 2017, we had been notified, in accordance
with the rules set out in the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebock, of the following interests in
our ordinary share capital:

Number % interest
af shares nvating
Name of notifying entity/nature of holding disclosed rights
Anchorage Capital Master
Offshore Limited {indirect)’ 134,695,393 25.07
Prudential plc group of
companies (indirect)? 55,140,163 10.26
The Goldman Sachs Group,
Inc (indirect)y® 52,870,054 9.84
Aviva plcand
subsidiaries (indirect) 3,024,245 0.57
Aviva plc and
subsidiaries (direct)? 31,165,914 5.80
Canada Pension Plan
Investment Board (direct) 29,084,092 5.41
Royal London Asset
Management Lirnited (direct) 27,045,491 5.03

1 Inciudes contracts for difference (CfDs) representing 48,785,237 voting nghts.

2 Includes right to recall 1,059,083 loaned shares

3 Includes open stock loar of 80,314 shares and waos/CfDs representing
42,091,714 voung rights

4 Includes night torecall 4,111,585 loaned shares

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn the period from 31 August 2017 to the date of this report,
we received the foflowing notifications:

% interestin
voting rights

Number of

Name of notifying entity/nature of halding shares disclosed

Anchorage Capital Master

Offshore, Ltd (indirecty 140,595,070 26.17
Prudential plc group of

comparnies (indirecty 70,235,186 13.07
The Goldman Sachs Group,

Inc {indirect)® 54,462,421 10.14
Aviva plc and its subsidiaries (direct) 14,851,688 2.76

1 Includes financial iInstruments representing 48,785,237 voling rights (3 08%)
2 Includes financial instrurnents representing 235,415 voting rights {0.04%)
3 Includes financialinstruments representing 44,433,955 vot:ng rights (8.27%)

Information provided to the Companry under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules is publicly available via the
regulatory information service and on the Company's website.

Significant agreements with change of control
provisions

The Company has in place a revolving credit facility

dated 19 December 2014 (as amended by an amendment
letter dated 10 February 2015 and further amended by a
supplemental agreement dated 23 May 2016). The revolving
credit facility and our joint venture with Somerset Care relating
to YLMS both contain termination provisions that could be
triggered in certain circumstances, including if any person
or group of persons acting in concert gain control of

the Company.

There are no agreements between the Group and its Directors
and empioyees providing for compensation for lass of office or
employment (whether through resignation, purported
redundancy or otherwise) in the event of a takeover bid.

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Group maintains Directors and Officers’ liability insurance
which provides cover for any legal action brought against

the Directors.

The Group has also granted indemnities to each of the current
Directors of the Company and its main trading subsidiary to
the extent permitted by law. Qualifying third-party indemnity
provisions were in force during the year ended 31 August 2017
and continue to remain in force.

Political donations

By way of a special resolution approved at the AGM on
25 January 2017, shareholders authorised the Company
to make political donations and political expenditure up
to a maximum of £100,000. During the year the Group
did not make any political donations or incur any palitical
expenditure. The Directors are seeking renewal of the
authority at the forthcoming AGM, in accordance with
relevant institutional guidelines.

Financial instruments

Details of the Group's financial instruments and its exposures
to price risk, credit risk, liguidity risk and cash flow risk are set,
out in note 30 ta the financial statements on pages 139 to 143.
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Directors’ Report continued

Going concern

The Directors have assessed the Group’s business activities
and the factors likely to affect our future performance in light
of current and anticipated economic conditions. The Directors
are confident that they are satisfied that the Group has
adequate resources in place to continue in cperational
existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements. For this reason, they have
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report and financial statements.

The Directors are also required to provide a broader
assessment of viability aver alonger period, which can be
found on page 57

In making the going concern statement and the viability
statement, the Directors have taken into account the ‘Guidance
an Risk Management, Internal Controls and Related Financial
and Business Reporting' issued by the Financial Reporting
Councal In September 2014

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each person who is a2 Director of the Company as at the date
of approval of this report confirms that:

{&) sofar as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware;
and

{b) the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's auditor 15 aware of that infarmatian.

Annual General Meeting

The 2018 AGM will be held on Wednesday 24 January 2018,
Full details are contained in the Notice convening the AGM,
whuch is being sent to shareholders with this Annual Report.
On behalf of the Board

Patrick Hoie
Company Secretary

13 Novemiger 2017

f /f/fy
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Statement of

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors’ Responsibilities

Financial statements and accounting records
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financal
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reparting Standards ('IFRS's) as adopted by the Eurcpean
Union and Article 4 and have elected to prepare the
Company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards), including FRS 102, the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United
Kingdom and Repuhlic of Ireland, and applicable law.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company and of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing the Parent Company financial statements,
the Directors are required to:

» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

= Make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent

* State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any materizl departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

« Prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

In preparing these financial statements, Internationa!
Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

+ Properly select and apply accounting policies

¢ Present information, ncluding accounting policies, in
a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable informaticn

* Provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficent to
enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity's financial position and finanaal performance

¢ Make an assessment of the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible far keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclese with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and enable

them to ensure that the financial statements comply with

the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company's website. Legislaticn in the United Kingdormn
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Board confirms that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, Is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders (¢ assess the position, performance,
strategy and business model of the Company.

Responsibility statement
The Directors confirm that, to the best of each person’s
knowledge:

= The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of
the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whale

» The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
develcpment and perfarmance of the business and
the position of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal nisks and uncertainties
that they face

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 13 November 2017 and is signed on its behalf by:

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer

13 November 2017

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer

13 Novernber 2017
~

N
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Independent Auditor’s
Report to the Members
of McCarthy & Stone plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion:

= The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 August
2017 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended

« The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS's) as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs as i1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

= The Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Irefand’

* Thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (the 'Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) which
ccmprise:

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Consolidated and Parent Statements of Financial Position

The Consolidated and Parent Statements of Changes in Equity

The Consolidated and Parent Cash Flow Statements

The statement of accounting policies

The related nates 1 to 34 of the Group statements and 1 to 11 of the Parent statements

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of
the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (15A's (UK) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accerdance with the ethical requirements that are relevant tc cur
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements We confirm that the non-audit services
prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Summary of our audit approach

The key audit matters that we identified in the current year related to cost capitalisation of overheads and certain shared
equity receivables We have identified fewer key audit matters in the current year, due to the non-recurring nature of two
key risks identified in the pricr year arising from the Initial Public Offering (1PO") being the accounting treatment applied in
respect of transaction costs and incentive scheme arrangements.

The materiality that we used in the current year was £4.6m {FY16: £5.2m) which was determined on the basis of 5% of
pre-tax profit.

We have performed full scope audits on the Group's four largest entities: McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarthy & Stone
{Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited.

We have performed an audit of select account balances on McCarthy & Stone (Home Egquity Interests) Limited and McCarthy
& Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop review procedures over highly immatenal subsidiaries.
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Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

We have reviewed the Directors statement regarding the appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting contained
within note 1 to the financial statements and the Directors’ statemnent on the longer-term viability of the Group contaned within
the Strategic Report section on page 57.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

= The disclosures on pages 56 and 57 that describe the principal nsks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

« The Directors’ confirmation on page 55 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group,
including those that would threaten its business maodel, future performance, solvency or hquidity

» The Directors’ statement in note 1 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparng them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group and
the Parent Company’s ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements

» The Directors' explanation on page 57 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what pericd they
have done s0 and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to conunue in operation and meet its hiabiliues as they fall due over the period of
their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

= Whether the Birectors’ statements relating to going concern and the prospects of the Company required in accordance
with Listing Rule 9.8 6R(3) are materially inconsistent with cur knowledge obtained in the audit

We confirm that we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.

We agreed with the Directors’ agoption of the going concern basis of accounting and we did not identfy any such material
uncertainties. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement s not & guarantee as to
the Group’s ability to cantinue as a going concern.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionat judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due o
fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the gverall audit strategy; the allocation
of rescurces in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the financia! statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The accounting treatrment of Incentive schemes was
included as a key audit matter in our prior year report but has not been included in 2017 due to now being immaterial to the
financial statements, Similarly the treatment of transaction costs on IPO was spadific to our 2016 audit only and so is not included

this year.

Key audit matter

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit marter

Key observations

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Refer to page 84 (Report of the Risk ond Audit
Commitree} and pages 128 and 129 (Critical
accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertairty),

Inventory comprises land, work In progress

and finished stock. The value of inventory as at

31 August 2017 15 £760.4m (FY16: £685.8m) and
is the most significant item on the Consolidated
Statement of Finangiat Position. Overhead costs
capitalised at 31 August 2017 amountto £23.2m
(FY16: £25.7m) representing 5.1% (FY16: 4.9%) of
stock additions. Amounts released to cost of sales
totaled £20.7m (FY16; £13.2m).

Management perform a detailed exercise to
analyse by department the proportion of costs
relating directly to site development versus general
business overheads.

We consider the allocation and recognition

of averhead costs into inventory to represent an
area of risk and an area where potential fraud
could occur as it reguires a significant level of
judgement identified in:

s |dentifying which costs, based on their nature,
should be capitalised into inventory rather than
expensed

We challenged the reasonableness of the
allocation and the accuracy of costs capitalised
for each category of inventory. Qur work involved
the following:

= Assessing the design and implementation of
relevant controls surrounding the formulation
of the percentages applied

= Liaising with senior departmental management
to understand the process employed in
determining the cost allocation

« Performing sensitivity analysis on the
proportion of costs capitalised in the year

e (Checking the mechanical accuracy of the
calculations to identify any anomalies

» Performing tests of detail over a sample of
costs absorbed to assess whether these are
valued and allocated correctly

« Performing a recalculation based on the final
percentage allocation and audited cost inputs
to establish whether the amounts capitalised
are accurate

We did not identify
any issues to
reportin the
course of our work.
Accordingly, we are
satisfied asto the
reasonableness of
the allocation

and accuracy of
costs capitalised

in the year.
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Key audit matter

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter

Key gbservations

Cost capitalisation of overheads continued
= Determining the proportion of Planning, Design,
Commercial, Construction and Health & Safety

costs incurred i bringing the inventories te their

present locatuon and condition, as per 1AS 2
‘Inventories’

The judgement above impacts the carrying

value of inventory in the Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position and the gross margin recognised
on each apartment sold

Shared equity receivables

Refer to page 84 (Report of the Risk and Audit
Cornmittee), pages 128 and 129 {Critical accounting
Jjudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty)
and page 136 (financial staternent disclosures).

During the year the Group offered shared equity
based arrangements to buyers. The present value
of total shared equity receivables as at 31 August
2017 is £28 9m (FY16: £29.3m). Of this amount,
F£193m (FY16 £18 9m) was attributabie to the New
Shared Equity Scheme.

The Group's assessment and suppaorting calculation
of the New Shared Equity Scheme is dependent

on a number of assumptions, which are inherently
judgemental due tc their forward-looking nature.
Key assumptions indude:

Praperty price projections
Expected maturity date

Discount rate

New build discounts and property
sale premiums

The above assumptions are dependent on
management’s ability to estimate market activity,
future trends and fluctuations. Changes to these
assumptions could result in a material change

in the value of the receivable recognised within

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
and the assaciated movements recorded in the
{Censclidated Statement of Comprehensive (ncome.

We criucally assessed the accuracy of the inputs
and the reasonableness of the assumptions
applied in the Group's fair value model of the
New Shared Equity Scheme. Qur work involved
the following:

= Assessing the design and implementation
of retevant controls over the determination
of the assumptions applied

= Consulting with our internal Real Estate
specialists to challenge the rates and
methodologies applied through comparison
with the market

e Obtaining relevant sector data (e.g. Office for
National Statistics and the latest indices)to
challenge the reascnableness of house price
inflation and new build premiums

+ Performing tests of detail to assess the
integrity of inputs and recalculate the related
fair value adjustments

= Performing sensitivity analysis over the
assumptions both individually and collectively to
understand whether materal differences arise
as a result of changes in these assumptions

+ Comparing the cash received on redemptian
during the year as an indicator of whether
carrying value reflects fair value

e Checking the mechanical accuracy of the fair
value calculation and assessing the adeguacy of
disclosure in the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of IAS1
‘Presentation of Financial Statermerts’

We did not identify
any issues to
reportinthe
course of our work.
Accordingly we are
satisfied as to the
reasonableness
cfthe carrying
valuation of shared
equity receivables
recognised.
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Our application of materiality

we define materiality as the magnitude of misstatermnent in the financial staternents that makes it prokable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evatuating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole to be £4.6m
which 1s based on 5% of pre-tax profit for the year.

Pre-tax profit has been chosen as the basis for materiality as this is the measure by which stakeholders and the market assess the
wider performance of the Group.

We determine performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Group performance materality
was set at £3.2m (FY16; £3.6my), representing 70% of Group materiality for the 2017 audit.

We agreed with the Risk and Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee atl audit differences in excess of £0.2m
(FY16: £0.3m), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also
report to the Risk and Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we dentified when assessing the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group has operations across the United Kingdomn, split between three geographic divisions and nine regicnal offices.
All subsidiaries of the Group are managed from the head office in Bournemouth and are subject to a common control
environment. Our Group audit was scoped by obtairung an understanding of the Group and its environment, including
Group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level,

Based on that assessment, we focused our audit scope on the four largest entities in the Group: McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarthy
& Stone (Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living)
Limited. These entities represent the principal entities and account for 98% (FY16: 98%) of the Group's net assets, 100% (FY16:
100%) of the Group's revenue and 98% (FY16: 28%) of the Group's prafit before tax. They were also selected to provide

an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the risks of material misstatement identified above.

2% 2%

Profit Net

Revenue

before tax assets

@ Full audit scope ® Full audit scope ® Full audit scope
® Specified audit procedures @ Specified audit procedures @ Specified audit procedures

Our audit work on these entities was executed at levels of matenality applicable to each individual Company ranging from £3.5m
to £4.1m which were lower than Group materiality.

We have performed an audit of setect account balances on McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited and
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop review procedures over highly immaterial subsidiaries,

At the Parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion
that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial informaticn of the remaining components
not subject to audit or audit of specified account balances

The Group audit is performed centrally and includes coverage of all mine regional offices within the Group. As part of our audit we

visit a sample of three regional offices each year on a rotational basis with reference to size and cemplexity among other factors
The purpose of these visits is to conduct procedures over selected controls that are in place at each regional office.
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Independent Auditor's Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Other information
The Directors are respensible for the other information. The ather information comprises the infarmation included in
the Annual Repaort, other than the financial statements and our auditer's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informaticn and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our auditor’s report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the finanaial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to regort that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstatements of the other
nformation include where we conclude that:

* Far, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual Report and Financial
Statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in
the audit

« Risk and Audit Committee reporting - the section describing the work of the Risk and Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Committee

« Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the Directors' statement reguired
under the Listing Rules relating to the Company's compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions
specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R{2) do not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Staterment of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free frerm material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Caompany’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to gong concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group ar the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and te issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
15 a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
ar in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements A further description of cur responsitilities for the audit of the financial statements is located an
the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report I1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our aucdit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and far na other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we da not accept or
assume responsipility to anyone ather than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formead.
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Report on other legal and regulatery requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinton the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« The infarmation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
= The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the Parent Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

= We have not received zll the information and explanations we reguire for our audt

» Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us

= The Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also reguired to report if in our opinion certain disciosures of Directors’ remuneration
have not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repert ta be audited is not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Risk and Audit Committee, we were appointed by the shareholders on 25 January 2017
to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 August 2017. The pericd of total uninterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 3 years, covering the years ending 31 August 2009 tc 31 August 2017.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee
Our audit opinion 1s consistent with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee we are required to provide in
accordance with 1SAs (UK).

4303 Crh

Gregory Culshaw ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

13 November 2017
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Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 August 2017

2017 2016
Notes Em £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 660.9 6359
Cost of sales (530.2) {499.5)
Gross profit 130.7 136.4
Other operating income 8 8.9 85
Administrative expenses (38.8) (44.7)
Other operating expenses (6.6} (51
Operating profit 94.2 951
Amortisation (2.0) (2.1
Exceptional administrative expenses 6 - (10.0)
Underlying operating profit 96.2 107.2
Finance incorne 9 1.6 2.7
Finance expense 10 (3.7) 4.9)
Profit before tax 6 921 929
Incorne tax expense 1" (17.7) (19.4)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total comprehensive income 74.4 73.5
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 74.2 731
Nan-controlling interest 0.2 0.4
74.4 73.5
Notes 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above. All trading derives from cantinuing operations.
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 12 13.8 13.9
Diluted (p per share} 12 13.8 139
Adjusted measures
Underlying operating profit 6 96.2 107.2
Underlying profit before tax 6 941 105.0
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position
As at 31 August 2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 4.7 9.7
Intangible assets 14 27.6 256
Property, plant and equipment 15 2.4 23
Investments in joint ventures 17 0.4 0.4
Investment properties 0.2 0.2
Trade and other receivables 19 321 327
Total non-current assets 104.4 107.5
Current assets
Inventories 18 760.4 685.8
Trade and other receivables 19 9.5 7.5
Cash and cash equivalents 28 40.7 119.0
Total current assets 810.6 812.3
Total assets 915.0 919.8
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 25 43.0 430
Share premium 26 101.6 100.8
Retained earnings 600.1 553.5
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 744.7 697.3
Non-controlling interests 1.0 0.8
Total equity 745.7 6981
Current Habilities
Trade and other payables 21 85.4 98.7
UK corporation tax 6.7 8.4
Short-term borrowings 23 - 11.3
Land payables 22 67.4 493
Total current liabilities 159.5 167.7
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 23 8.0 52.5
Deferred tax liability 20 1.8 1.5
Total liabilities 169.3 221.7
Total equity and liabilities 915.0 919.8
Notes 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above.
These financial statements were approved by the Board on 13 Novernber 2017 and signed o its behalf by:
Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Director Director
DY TN
;;( Uyt YNy
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Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 August 2017

Non-

Share Share Retained controlling Tatal
capital  prermium  earnings Total interest equity
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £mn
Balance at 1 September 2015 3814 56.4 1043 541.8 0.7 542.5
Prafit for the year - - 73 731 0.4 735
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 731 732 04 735
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Issue of ordinary shares 49 1048 (19.4) 903 (0.3 900
Capital reduction of share capital and share premium {(343.0) (56.4) 3994 - - -
Share-based payments 31 - - 1.5 1.5 - 1.5
Share issue related costs - (4.0) - (4.0} - (4.0)
Dividends - - (5.4) (5.49) - (5.4)
Balance at 31 August 2016 430 100.8 5535 6973 0.8 6981
Profit for the year - - 742 742 0.2 74.4
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 742 742 0.2 744
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments 3 - - 09 0.9 - 0.9
Dividends 25 - - {285) (28.5) - {(28.5)
Share issue related costs - tax credit - 0.8 - 0.8 - 0.8
Balance at 31 August 2017 43.0 101.6 6001 7447 1.0 745.7

Notes 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above.
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Consolidated

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017 2016
Notes &m £m

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities 28 (3.8) 18.3
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 0.7) (1.5)
Purchases of intangible assets (0.4) {0.4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.1 a1
Net cash used in investing activities (1.0) (1.8)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 86.0
Repayrment of long-term borrowings (45.0) (35.0)
Dividends paid {28.5) (5.4)
Net cash {used in) / from financing activities (73.5) 45,6
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {78.3) 62.1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 119.0 56.9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 40.7 119.0
Nates 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above.

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 121




Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies agplied in the preparation of these consolidated financial staterments are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to alf the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

McCarthy & Stone plc is a Company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act. The Group financial statemenits
consalidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and include the Group's interest in
jointly contrelled entities. The Parent Company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity
and ngt about the Group.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Reparting Standards as adopted by the European Union ('EU IFRS') and have been prepared under the historical cost convention
as modified by financial assets and financial liabilities {including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

Going concern

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through cash in hand and its bank facilities. The Group’s forecasts
and projections, taking intc account reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to
operate within the fevel of its current facilities. After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues to agopt
the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. Further information on the Group’s borrowings is given in note 23.

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the results of the Company and its subsidiaries. For the purposes of
consclidation, subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has the power to govern the finanaal and operating policies
50 as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line
with those used by the Group. All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. The interests of non-controlling
shareholders may mitially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proporticnate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiabie net assets. The choice of measurement 1s made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to
acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is attained (the acquisition date),
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acguirer’s previously held equity interest {if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Goeodwill is not amertised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill

is allocated to the Group's cash-generating unit (CGU") expected to benefit from synergies arising from a business combination.
The CGU to which goodwill has been attributed is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the CGU may be impaired. if the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the CGU, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or recevable and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied stated net of discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty.

The Group recognises revenue when alf the following conditions are satisfied:

* The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods

« The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement (o the degree usuzlly asscdiated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold

* The amount of revenue can be measured reliably

» [tis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity

« The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

122 McCarthy & Stone plc



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income but not yet invoiced is held on the Consalidated
Statement of Financial Position within ‘Trade and other receivables’. Revenue invoiced but not yet recognised in the Consolidated
statement of Comprehensive Income 1s held on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position within ‘Deferred revenue’,

Revenue is classified as foliows:

Unit sales

Revenue represents the consideration received from the sale of leasehold interests in retirement apartments and freehold
interests in houses, cottages and bungalows and is recognised on legal completion. Where the Group comrmits on completion
to provide an additional cash amount above an offer given by a third-party part-exchange provider, this additional cash
amount is recognised as a deduction from revenue. Cash incentives are considered to be a discount from the purchase price
offered to the acquirer and are therefore accounted for as a reduction of revenue.

Freehold reversionary interests (‘FRIs’) and house manager flat freehold interests ("HMFls”)
RIs and HMFIs in respect of developed sites are periodically scld to third parties. Revenue arising from these sales is
recognised only to the extent that the underlying leasehold interest in the retirernent apartment has been contractually sold.

Other operating income
Other operating income includes Management Services income, net rental income, profits arising from the disposal of
undevetoped land sites, VAT refunds and profits ansing from the realisation of shared equity receivables.

Finance income
Reveriue is recognised as interest accrues, using the effective interest rate method, being the rate used to discount the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financiai instrument.

Cost of sales
Costs directly attributable ta the unit sales are included within cost of sales. This inchudes the cost of bringing the inventory
into use and regional marketing costs that are directly attributable to sales, including show flat running costs and estate agent

referral fees.

The gain or loss arising on the sale of part-exchange properties are not included in revenue and are recorded as a reduction to
cost of sales as they are seen as a sales incentive.

Build-related rebates are recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.

From 1 September 2016, the Group has refined its estimate of unit cost when units are sold and the costis released into the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Cost of sales is now recognised on a unit-by-unit basis, by reference to the
forecast future margin across the development. The impact of the change in estimate on gross profit and inventory for the year
ended 31 August 2017 1s an increase of £4.1m (0.8% of cost of sales) being 2 0 6% increase to gross margin

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are defined as items cf income or expenditure which, in the opinicn of the Directors, are material, non-recurring

and unusual in nature ar of such significance that they require separate disclosure. Exclusion of these balances allows review of

the underlying trading position of the Group. These are detailed further in note 6. [

Leases
Lezses are dassified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income an a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a stakeholder retirement benefit scheme.

Aretirernent benefit scheme is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive cbligation ta pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions tc benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income in the years during which services are

rendered by employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in ather years and it further excludes itemns that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
habilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted far using the balance sheet liability method. Ceferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for alf taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temparary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (cther than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit ncr the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, where the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced o the extent that
it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered inthe
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted by the year end. Deferred tax is charged or credited inthe
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when it relates te items charged or credited in other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in cther comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liakilities are offset when there is & legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they retate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorty and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Tangible and intangible assets

124

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss,

Depreciation 1s recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual value over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method, on the following bases:

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3-10years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised in income on the transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership.

The Group has no class of tangible fixed asset that has been revalued. On transition to IFRS the net book values recorded at
1 September 2012 have been applied and these are based cn historic cost or fair value recognised at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets - brand

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost. Brands have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation 1s calcutated using the straight-line methaod to allocate the cost aver their useful lives, estimated at
20 years.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued
internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiabie and unique software products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when all the following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use
Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it

There is an ability to use or sell the software product

It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits
Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the software product are available

= The expenditure attributable to the software product dunng its development can be reliably measured

Directly attributable costs that are capitaksed as part of the software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant averheads.

Other development expenditure that does not meet these criteria is recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in asubsequent year

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which do not
exceed ten years

Development expenditure relating to software has been capitalised and is detailed in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any). Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recaverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of: (i) fair value iess costs to sell; and (i) value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset {or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease to the
extent that the revaluation batance is greater than the impairment loss.

Joint ventures
The Group has a number of contractual arrangements with other parties which represent joint ventures. These take the form
of agreement to share control over these entities. Jaint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as elther joint operations {if the Group has rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, refating to an arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Greup has rights only to the net assets of an
arrangement). When making this assessment, the Group considers the structure of the arrangements, the iegal form of any
separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and drcumstances.

Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of sites in the course of construction and finished stock comprises the cost of land purchases, which are accounted
for from the date of contract exchange, when the Group obtains the effective control of the site, building costs and attributable
construction gverheads. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution, completion and disposal.

Part-exchange properties are stated at fair value, established by independent surveyors, less a provision for costs to sell.

Land inventories and the associated land payables are recognised in the Consalidated Statement of Financial Position from
the date of unconditional exchange of contracts. Where, through deferred purchase credit terms, cost differs from the nominal
amount which will be paid in settiing the deferred purchase terms liability, the initial cost of the fand is discounted to fair value.
The land payable Is then increased to settlement value over the pericd of financing, with the financing element being charged
to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a finance cost.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued

Options purchased inrespect of land are capitalised initially at the cost of the option. Regular reviews are completed for
impairment in the value of these options and provisions made accordingly to reflact loss of value. The impairment reviews
consider the pericd elapsed since the date of purchase of the option given that the option contract has not been exercised at

the review date. Furthermore, the impairment reviews consider the remaining life of the option, taking into account any concerns
over whether the remaining time will allow successful exercise of the option. The carrying cost of the option at the date of exercise
is included within the cost of land purchased as a result of the option exercise,

Expenditure on land without the benefit of detalled planning consent, either through purchase of freehold land or non-refundable
deposits paid on land purchase contracts subject to detailed planning consent, are capitalised initially at cost. Regular reviews

are completed for impairment in the value of these investments, anc provision made to reflect any irrecaverable element. The
impairment reviews consider the existing value of the land and assess the likelihood of achieving detailed planning cocnsent and
the value thereof,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
net of cutstanding bark overdrafts,

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial tiabilities are recognised in the Group’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets

All financial assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where the
purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned. They are initially measured at fair vatue plus transaction costs, except for those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss' (‘FVTPL),
‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS") financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’ The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. The Group held no financial
assets classified as held-to-maturity or AFS during the reporting periods presented herein.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate I1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part cf the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriste, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income Is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL
Classes of financial asset

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e |thas been acquired principally for the purpose cf selling in the near term

* Oninitial recognition it is a part of a pertfolio of identified financiat instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking

s It is aderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial asset other than a finandial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

= Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise

= The financial asset forms part of a group of financia! assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, In accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis

e |t forms part of a contract containing one or mere embedded derivatives and I1AS 39 ‘Financial instruments.
Recognition and Measurement” permits the entire combined contract {asset or fiability) to be designated as at FVTPL
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1. Significant accounting policies continued
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the other operating income line item in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income, Fair value is
determined in the manner described in nate 30.

The Group uses derivative financial (nstruments to reduce exposure to interest rate movemnents. The Group does not issue
or hoid dervative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Shared equity receivables

Shared equity interests arise from sales incentive schemes under which the Group acquires a contractual entitlernent to receive
a proportion of the proceeds of sale of an apartment. These interests are normally protected by a legal charge over the relevant
apartment and/or a restriction on title.

The value of the shared equity receivables changes in response to an underlying variable and therefore is accounted for as a
derivative. The shared eqguity receivables are initially recognised at fair value, being the estimated future amount receivable by
the Group, discounted to present value. The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors’view
of future house price movements and the expected timing of receipts. The Directors revisit the future anticipated cash receipts
from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the anticipated future receipt and the initial fair vatue 1s
credited to finance iIncome/expense.

Loans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active
rmarket are classified as 'loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amertised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interast incorme is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recagnition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabikties or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments
An equity iInstrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct Issue casts.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities’

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed, with Interest expense
recognised on an effective yietd basis.

The effective interest methad is a method of calculating the amertised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Land-related promissory notes
Land-related promissory notes are treated as financial liabiliues and are classified as land creditors or borrowings depending on
the substance of the contractual arrangements.

Share-based payment schemes

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the farr value at the date at which they are
granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of
any non-market-based vesting conditions and no expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a result of a
failure to satisfy a non-market-based vesting condition.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured at fair value. Fair value is estimated inttially at the grant date and at each
reporting period end thereafter until the awards are settled. Market-based conditions are taken into account when determining
fair value.

Further details regarding the schemes are set outin note 31,
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2. Outlook for adoption of future standards (new and amended)
There have not been any new standards and amendments adopted for the first ume for the finandal year ending 31 August 2017,

At the date of approval of the financial statements, the following standards and interpretations which have not been applied by

the Group in the financial statements were in Issue but not yet effective {and in some cases had not yet been adcpred by the EU):

» |FRS 9 ‘Fingncial Instruments’was issued in final form incarporating the impairment, classification and measurement requirements
in July 2074 and is scheduled to replace IAS 39 ‘Finanicial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ for the Group from
1 September 2018. The Group continues to assess the impact and applcation of the new standard. However, we do not currently
expect the standard to have a material impact on our reported results and financial position.

s |FRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers’was issued in May 2014 and amended in September 2015 This standard sets out
requirements for revenue recognition from contracts with customers under a five-step model to appcerucn revenue against
performance obligations within a contract. The Group continues (o assess the impact of the standard and has identified two key
areas, part-exchange properties and FRI revenue, where the standard will impact the timing of recognition and presentation
of balances in the financial statements.

Part-exchange properties - Currently under IAS 18 ‘Revenue’the income and costs associated with part-exchange properties

are recognised on a net basis within cost of sales. Under IFRS 15 the requirement will be to present the non-cash consideration
received from a customer within revenue measured at fair value. The subsequent sale of the property received from the
customer in part-exchange will be accounted for as a separate cantract, with the revenue and costs being recognised in other
operating iIncome and expenditure. The net impact on the Group for FY17 if IFRS 15 was adopted would be a decrease to cost of
sales of £1.0m and net decrease in other incorme of £1.0m.

FRI revenue - Under the Group's current accounting policy, revenue arising from the sale of FRIis recognised only to the extent
that the underlying leasehold interest in the retirement apartment has been contractually sold. Under the new iIFRS 15 standard,
revenue would hkely be recognised at the point of sale to the third party. This would accelerate the recognition of revenue and
eliminate the deferred income balance currently held on the balance sheet.

The full impact of this change on revenue and margins Is still being assessed by the Group.

The above items will have noimpact on the Group’s cash flows. This standard will be applicable to the Group from 1 Septermber
2018.

= |FRS 16 ‘Legses’ was published in January 2016 and 1s expected to be effective for the Group from 1 September 2019, This standard
Is a replacement of the current leases standard |AS 17 Leases’ and brings significant changes to the accounting of leases by
lessees. IFRS 16 requires the recognition of a right-of-use’ asset and a corresponding lease liability on the Balance Sheet of the
lessee. In the Income Statement, the existing operating lease changes, the majerity of which is currently recognised within
operating profit, will be replaced by a depreciation charge against the right-of-use’ asset. Additionally there will be an interest cost
in relation ta the lease liability which will be recognised within finance costs. The IASB has included an optional exemption, far
lessees, for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. The
impact this standard will have on the Group continues to be assessed. However, we do not currently expect the standard to have
a material impact on our reported results and financial position.

o Amendments to |AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows'was issued in January 2016 and will be applicable to the Group from 1 September
2017 The Amendment requires enhanced disclosures of changes in financing liabiities.

e Amendments to IFRS 11 Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations’

e Amendments to |AS 16 Property, Plant and Fquipment’ and IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets”

s Amendments to |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Staterments’”

» Amendments to |AS 27 ‘Fguity Method in Separate Financial Statements”

» Amengdments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28 ‘Saie of Contribution of Assets between an [nvestor and its Associale of joint Venture'.

= Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’

= Annualimprovements to IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle'.

The potential impact of the above standards and interpretations is still being assessed by the Group.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factars that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the periad in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
pericds if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

No critical judgments have been made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies that have a material effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions the Group makes about the future, and other major sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporung period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities at the year end and within the next financial year.

Fair value of shared equity receivables

Shared equity receivables are recognised at the fair value of future anticipated cash receipts that takes into account the
Directors’ view of an appropriate discount rate, a new build premium, future house price movements and the expected
timing of receipts.

Shared equity receivables are reviewed at each reporting date using a varfety of estimates that anticipate future cash flows
from the assets. Further information regarding the assumpticns and sensitivity effects of a reasonable possible change can
be seen within note 30.

Cast capitalisation of overheads

Inventory includes a proportion of design, procurement, construction, health & safety, commercial and planning costs.
Costs associated with these functions are reviewed by management to attribute those costs relating directly to the cost
of the developments to inventory and those that relate to general business overheads to expenses. The assumptions
used are reviewed annually by the function heads befcre being proposed to the Risk and Audit Committee.

Cost capitalisation involves estimates of the proportion of costs that are directly attributable to sites. The key source of
estimation uncertainty in this area relates to the percentage of time spent by our regions on directly attributable site
activities. The percentage of their time which is capitalised ranges between 70-93% for the various functions. Overhead
costs capitalised at 31 August 2017 amount to £23.2m (2016: £257m).

Change of estimate

From 1 September 2016, the Group refined its estimate of unit cost when units are sold and the cost is released to the
Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Cast of sales is now recognised on & unit-by-unit basis, by reference to the
forecast future margin across the development. The impact of the change in estimate on gross profit and inventory for the year
ended 31 August 2017 is an increase of £4.1m (0.8% of cost of sales).

4. Revenue

Cantinuing operations

Year ended 31 August
2017 2016
£m £m
Unitsales 631.8 608.2
FRI revenue 291 277
660.9 635.9

All unit sales revenue arose from the sale of properties and is attributable to continuing operations. All revenue was generated
within the UK. No individual customer is significant to the Group's revenue in any period. All revenue is explained within note 1.

Proceeds received on the disposal of part-exchange properties, which are not included in revenue, were £11.6m {2016 £nil).
These are recognised on a net basis within cost of sales on the basis that they are Incidental to the main revenue-generating
actvities of the Group. The net profit on disposal of these properties was £0.1m (2016: £nil).

5. Segmental analysis

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’establishes standards for reporting information about operarting segments and related disclosures,

products and services, geographic areas and major customers. Operating segments are components of an enterprise about

which separate financial Infarmation is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker in deciding )
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. i

The Group conducts its activities through a single operating segment. Consequently, no detalled segment information has
been presented.

None of the Group's customers represented more than 10% of the Group's revenue generated from the building of retirement
apartments for any reporting period presented herein,
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6. Profit befere tax
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/crediting):

Continuing operations
Year ended 31 August

2017 20186

Notes Em £m

Amortisation of intangibles 14 2.4 2.5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 1.1

Operating lease rental expense 27

Land and buildings 1.4 09
Plant and machinery 2.5 2.3
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 4571 436.0
Staff costs 7 92.6 79.0
Change in fair value of derivatives - 0.3
Share-based payments charge to profit and loss 31 0.9 1.5
Movement in inventary provision (including part-exchange properties) 1.2 (0.3}

Reconciliation to underlying operating profit and profit before tax
The fallowing tables present a reconciliation between the statutory profit measures disclosed cn the Consoclidated Staternent
of Comprehensive Income and the underlying measures used by the Board to appraise performance.

Exceptional items are items which, due to their one-off, non-trading and non-recurring nature, have been separately classified
by the Directors in order to draw them to the attention of the reader.

Adjusted cost items are items which are material and are presented separately within the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The Directors are of the opinion that the separate presentation of these items provides helpful
information about the Group’s underlying business performance. Amortisation of brand has been adjusted in order to reconcile
the underlying operating profit and underlying profit before tax given the Directors de not believe these costs reflect the
underlying trading of the business.

Exceptlonafs Exceptional Adjusted cost
Administrative Amgrtisation
Statutory costs of brand Underlying
Year ended 31 August 2017 Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 94.2 - 2.0 96.2
Finance income 9 16 - - 1.6
Finance expense 10 (3.7) - - (3.7
Profit before tax 921 - 2.0 94.1
Income tax expense (17.7) - (0.4) (18.1)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total
comprehensive income 74.4 - 1.6 76.0
Earnings per share
Basic {p per share} 13.8 - 0.4 14.2
Diluted (p per share) 13.8 - 0.4 14.2
Exceptional Adjusted cost
Administrative Amortisation
Statutory costs of brand Underlying
Yearenced 31 August 2016 Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 95.1 10.0 21 107.2
Finance income 9 2.7 - - 27
Finance expense 10 4.9) - - (4.9)
Profit before tax 92.9 100 21 105.0
Income tax expense {19.4) (0.7} {0.4) {20.5)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total
comprehensive income 735 93 1.7 84.5
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share} 13.9 1.8 04 16.1
Diluted {p per share) 13.9 1.8 o4 16.1

The exceptional administrative costs in 2016 primanly relate to the transaction fees and other costs of listing (E8.5mj). Other costs
recognised within exceptionals relate to redundancy and restructuring costs (£0.9m), Management Incentive Plan payments
{f0 4m) and refinancing and other costs (£0 2m).
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6. Profit before tax continued
Auditor’'s remuneration

Continuing eperations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016
£m £m

Fees payable to the Group's auditor
Annual audit 0.2 0.2
Transaction related audit and advisory services - 07
0.2 09

There were no other non-audit fees payable to the Group’s auditor n the year.
Audit fees in relation to joint ventures audited by the Group's auditor were £3,000 (2016; £3,000).

7. Staff costs
Staff costs for the year include Directors’ emoluments, which are detailed below

Continuing operations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016

£m £m

Wages and salaries 80.4 67.4
Social security costs 8.0 71
Other pension costs 2.6 2.1
Share-based payments 09 1.5
Termination payments 0.7 09
92.6 79.0

The average number of persons, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group during the year was as follows:

Continuing operaticns
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016

Number Number

Office management and staff 902 900
House managers 1,024 827
Construction staff 219 241
2,145 1,968

Staff costs include an average of 823 persans employed during the year from YLMS (2016: 679), a 50% owned subsidiary held
by the Group

At 31 August 2017 the Group employed 2,264 people (2016: 2,094).

Directors’ emoluments
Amounts recognised in respect of Directors’ emoluments:

Continuing operations
Year ended 31 August

7 2016

£m £m

Wages and salaries 1.7 1.5
Social security costs 0.2 0.2
Share-based payments 0.3 06
Other pension costs’ 0.2 0.2
2.4 25

1 Includes salary supplements in lieu of pension

The emoiuments of the highest paid Director was £1.0m (2016: £0.9m), including pensicn contributions of nil (2016: ni).
The number of Directors in the Company pension plan was two (2016: twa).
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8. Other operating income

Continuing operations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016
£m £m
Net rental income 0.3 0.6
Qther income 7.7 59
Non-core business revenue 0.9 24
Land sales profit / (loss) - (0.1
8.9 85
QOther income arises on the services provided by Group subsidiaries to manage certain developments. Non-core business
revenue relates to other income such as customer extras.
9. Finance income
Continuing operations
yearended 31 August
2017 2016
£m Em
Change in fair value of shared equity receivables 1.5 2.5
Interest income received 0.1 0.2
1.6 2.7
10. Finance expense Continu )
nnnnuwng cperatiens
Year ended 31 August
017 2016
Em Em
Loans and overdraft fees 31 3.6
Promissory note interest and fees 01 0.5
Amortisation of refinancing issue costs 0.5 Q.5
Fair value movemnent on interest rate cap . 0.3
3.7 4.9
11. Tax
2017 2016
Notes. £m £m
Corporation tax charges
Current year 17.7 18.6
Adjustments in respect of prior years (0.3) (0.4)
Deferred tax charges
Current year 20 0.3 1.2
177 19.4
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11. Tax continued
The tax charge for each year can be reconciled to the profit per the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as follows:

2017 2016

£&m £m

Profit before tax on continuing operations 921 929
Tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 19.58% (2016: 20.0096) 18.0 18.6

Tax effect of

Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 0.1 1.5
Income not taxable in determining taxable profit (0.1) 0.1
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (0.3) (0.4)
Share aptions timing difference 0.2 -
Other reconciling items {0.2) 0.2}
Tax charge for the year 17.7 19.4

Reductions in the rate of corporation tax to 19% and 18% from 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2020 were substantially enacted

on 18 Navember 2015. A further reduction in the corporation tax main rate from 1 April 2020 to 17% was fully enacted on

15 September 2016. The deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 August 2017 have been calculated based on the appropriate
rate at which the asset/liability will unwind.

12. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calcutated as the profit for the financial period attributable to sharehoiders of the Company divided
by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the period. The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares
during the full year ended 31 August 2017 was 537.3m for the basic and 537.6m for the diluted caiculations, giving a statutory
earnings per share for the year ended 31 August 2017 of 13.8p for basic and 13.8p for diluted.

2017 2016
Profit attributable to shareholders (Em) 74.2 731
Weighted average no. of shares (m) 537.3 525.6
Basic earnings per share (p) 13.8 13.9

For difuted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted to assume the conversion of alt
potentially dilutive ordinary shares. At 31 August 2017, the Company had two categories of potentially dilutive ordinary shares:
3.9m nil cost share options under the LTIP and 4.1m 167.4p share options under the Sharesave plan.

A calculation is done ta determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based on the aggregate of
the exercise price of each share option and the fair value of future services to be supplied to the Group, which is the unamortised
share-based payments charge. The difference between the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value and the
total number of opticns is used in the diluted earnings per share calculation.

2017 2016
Profit used to determine diluted EPS {Em) 74.2 731
Weighted average number of shares (m) 537.3 525.6
Adjustments for
Share options - LTIP (m) 03 0.3
Shares used to determine diluted EPS (m) 5376 5259
Diluted earnings per share (p) 13.8 139
13. Goodwill
£m
Cost
At 1 September 2015 and 31 August 2016 and 2017 1.7
Carrying amount
At 1 September 2015 and 31 August 2016 and 2017 4.7

No impairment losses have been recognised in any of the reporting periods presented herein.
Goodwill arose as a result of an acquisition in 2009 of the assets and liabilities of Monarch Realisations 1 plc {in liguidation).

As the goodwill relates to the business as a whole, it has not been allocated to a specific CGU. For key assumptions in determining
recoverable amounts in goodwill impairment testing, refer to nete 16.

McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts 133




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

14. Intangible assets

Brand Software Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2015 414 39 453
Additions - 0.4 0.4
At 31 August 2016 414 43 457
Additions - 04 0.4
At 31 August 2017 41.4 4.7 46.1
Amortisation
At 1 September 2015 {13.2) 0.4) {13.6)
Charge for the year (2.1} (0.4) (2.5)
At 31 August 2016 (15.3) (0.8) (16.1)
Charge for the year (2.0) (0.4) (2.4)
At 31 August 2017 (17.3) (1.2) (18.5)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2016 26,1 35 29.6
At 31 August 2017 24.1 3.5 27.6

Brand assets represent the McCarthy & Stone brand name purchased as part of the business combination in 2009.
Brand assets have 11 years and 7 months of useful life remaining.

All amortisation charged is recognised in administrative expenses in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

15. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,

fittings and
equipment Total
£m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2015 6.0 6.0
Additions 1.5 1.5
Disposals {0.3) (0.3}
At 31 August 2016 7.2 7.2
Additions 0.7 0.7
Disposals (0.1} {0.1)
At 31 August 2017 7.8 7.8
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 September 2015 (3.4) (3.4)
Charge for the year (1.1 (1.1
Eliminated on disposals 0.2 0.2
At 31 August 2016 4.3) (4.3)
Charge for the year (1.1 (1.1)
Eliminated on disposals - -
At 31 August 2017 (5.4) (5.4)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2016 2.9 29
At 31 August 2017 24 2.4
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16. Impairment testing

During the periods reported in the financal statements, no impairments have been recognised against the Group's assets.
For each reported period, management have performed an impairment review of goodwill, being an indefinitely lived asset.
The Group only has one CGU, being the McCarthy & Stene (Developments) Limited's business, which was acquired in 2009.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to earnings before interest, tax, depreciaticn and amortisation (EBITDA) used as a proxy of free cash flows beyond the budgeted
years as well as the level of capital expenditure required to maintain the existing business into the future. These assumptions

are reviewed and revised annually in light of current economic conditions and the future outlook for the business. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the ume value of maney and the risks
specific to the business; rates used for 2017 are 7.0% (2016: 8 4%)

The forecast pericd employed in the impairment assessment was three years followed by an assessment of cash flows and
growth into perpetuity. The growth rates used are based on management's assessment of the cash flow forecasts over the
medium term. Due to the headroom within the calculation no further growth has been assumed within the perpetuity calcuation,
These are based on conservative estimates of the Group's ability to participate in the growth expected in the industry. Changes in
selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The value of goodwill recognised in the financial statements has been compared to the derived value in use with no impairment
charges arising. The Group has conducted s sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions which are material to the impairment
assessment including the discount rate, the cash flow projections and the terminal growth rate ana concluded no materiat
sensitivity exists in these calculations.

No impairment charges were recorded on items of property, olant and equipment throughout the period covered by these
financial statements.

17. Investment in joint ventures

The Group has a 50% ownership interest in Kindle Housing Limited, which manages affordable housing. Kindle Housing Limited
has 100% ownership interest of ordinary shares in each of Kindle Housing (Worthing) Limited, Kindle Housing (Christchurch)
Limited and Kindle Housing (Exeter; Limited, which rent affordable housing to local key worker employees. As a result the Group
also has a 50% ownership interest in these companies, all of which are registered in England and Wales.

The Group accounts for its interests in these companies using the eguity method of accounting.

The share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the jeintly controlled entities is not matenal.

18. Inventories

2017 2016

Em £m

Land held for development 148.6 236.5
Sites in the course of construction 341.2 201.0
Finished stock 238.7 2483
Part-exchange properties 31.9 -
760.4 685.8

Days in inventory amounted to 582 days in 2017 (2016: 574 days).

Inventory days are calculated by taking year end inventory (excluding part-exchange properties) divided by cost of inventories
recognised as an expense.

19. Trade and other receivables
2017 2016

£m £m

Trade and other receivables due in less than one year
Trade receivables 21 1.5
Other debtors and prepayments 7.4 6.0
2.5 75
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19, Trade and other receivables continued

2017 2016
£m £m

Trade and other receivables due in greater than one year
Secured mortgages 3.2 3.4
Shared equity receivables 289 29.3
321 327

Trade receivables and secured mortgages disclosed atove are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at
amortised cost.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and non-current receivables approximates
their fair value.

20, Deferred tax
The foilowing are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group:

Acceleratedtax  Other temporary Unrelieved

depreciation differences tax losses Tortal

£m £m £m £m
At 1 September 2015 - 0.3) - {0.3)
Income statement charge - (1.2) - (1.2)
At 31 August 2016 - {(1.5) - (1.5)
Income staterment charge - (0.3) - (0.3)
At 31 August 2017 - (1.8) - (1.8)

Deferred tax assets are represented by positive values and deferred tax liabilities are represented by negative values in
the table above.

Deferred tax assets of £0.1min relaticn to capital losses carried forward were not recognised as there is uncertainty as
to whether these losses could be utilised by the Group prior o expiry (2016; £0.1m). These losses have no expiry date.

21. Trade and other payables

2017 2018

£m £m

Trade payables 22.7 268
Other taxes and social security costs 1.9 1.9
Accrued expenses 426 514
Cther creditors and deferred income 18.2 18.6
85.4 98,7

Trade payables and accrued expenses princpally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs.
The average credit period taken for trade purchases was 20 days during 2017 (2016: 21 days). No material interest costs have
been incurred in relation to such payables. The Group policy is to ensure that payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit
terms and to avoid incurring penalties and/or interest on late payments. Other creditars include sales taxes, property taxes,
social security and employment taxes due to local tax authorities. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approximates their fair value.

No trade payables are purchased on extended payment terms.

22, Land payables

2097 2016
£m £m
Land payables 67.4 493

Land payables relate to payment due in respect of land which has been purchased under an unconditional contract,
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23. Borrowings

. 2017 2016

Short-term borrowings Em £m
Promissory notes - 1.3
. 2017 2016

Long-term borrowings £m £m
Loans 10.0 55.0
Unamortised issue costs (2.0} (2.5)
B.0 52.5

Outstanding at 31 August

2017 2016
Maturity £Em £m
Revolving Credit Facility May 2021 10.0 55.0

The Group has in place a £200m revolving credit facility (RCF) initially with a five-year term, maturing December 2019. In May 2016,
an amendment was made to the RCF agreement to improve the commerdial terms and extend the facility’s maturity date from
19 December 2019 to 23 May 2021.

The nominal interest rate of the £200m RCFis 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 1.6% {2016: 1, 3 or 6 menth LIBOR + 1.6%) depending on
the length of the drawdown. As at 31 August 2017, £10m (2016: £55m) was drawn. The RCFis secured by a floating charge over
the assets of McCarthy & Stane plc, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited, McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited,
McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited and McCarthy & Stone Tetal Care Management Limited,

24. Net cash 017 2016
£m £m
Locans 8.0 63.7
Add back unamortised issue costs 2.0 2.5
Cash and cash equivalents {40.7) (119.0)
Net cash (30.7) (52.8)
Add back land-related promisscry notes - (11.3)
Net cash excluding land-related promissory notes (30.7) {64.1)

Net cash is a non-GAAP measure and is calculated as cash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-term borrowings
(excluding unamortised debt issue costs and land-related promissory notes).

25. Share capital
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income There is no limit to authorised share capital.
2017 2016
Allotted and issued ordinary shares £7000 £'000
8p each fully paid: 537,329,434 ordinary shares (2016: 537,314,069) 42,936 42,985
2017 2016
Allotment of shares during the year Number 000 Number ‘000
At 1 September 537.314 1,905,550
Issuance of new shares in relation to the Management Incentive Plan - 43,707
Consolidaticn of share capital - (1,461,943)
Issuance of new shares in relation to primary proceeds from the IPO - 50,000
Issuance to satisfy early exercises under Sharesave plan 15 -
At 31 August 537,329 537,314

Issuance of new shares in relation to Sharesave ('SAYE') plan

During the year 15,365 ordinary shares were issued to satisfy the early exercise of options under our December 2015 SAYE plan
by seven “good leaver” employees. The shares were all 1Issued at 167.4p each, being the exercise price of the SAYE options granted
on 10 December 2G15.
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25, Share capital continued

Dividends on equity shares

The interim dividend of 1.8p (201& 1.0p) was approved by the Board on 4 April 2017 and paid on 9 June 2017 to all ordinary
shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on Friday 28 April 2017. The ex-dividend date was 27 April 2017,
The final dividend proposed by the Board is 3.6p (2016: 3.5p) per share resulting in a total ordinary dividend for the year of 5.4p
(2016: 4.5p). it will be paid on 1 February 2018 to those shareholders who are on the register at 5 January 2018 subject tc approval
at the Company's Annual General Meeting. The ex-dividend date is 4 January 2018. These financial statements de not reflect the
final dividend payment.

26. Share premium reserve 2017 2016

£m £m

Share premium 101.6 100.8

The share premium reserve represents the consideration that has been received in excess of the nominal value of shares in issue.
Movements in share premium are presented within the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

27, Operating lease arrangements

2017 2016
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense during the year 3.9 3.2

At year end the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Within one year 4.3 3.9
In the second to fifth years indusive 6.9 87
After five years 11 2.8
Outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 12.3 15.4

Operating lease payments typically represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties and cars. Rent reviews and
break clauses apply to leased property agreements.

28. Notes to the cash flow statement

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial year 74.4 73.5
Adjustments for
Income tax expense 1 17.7 19.4
Amortisation of intangibles 14 2.4 2.5
Share option charge N 09 1.5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 1.1
Interest expense 10 3.7 4.9
Interest income 9 (1.6) {2.7)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 98.6 100.2
Decrease in trade and other receivables 01 22
(Increase) in inventories (85.9) {99.5)
Increase in trade and other payables 5.4 375
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 18.2 404
Interest received 0.1 0.2
Interest paid (2.9) 41
Income taxes paid (19.2) (18.2)
Cash (used) / generated by operations (3.8) 18.3
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (3.8} 18.3
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 40.7 119.0
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28. Notes to the cash flow statement continued
Cash and cash equivatents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value.

The increase in inventories comprises movements in inventories (including part-exchange properties), offset by the repayment
of promissory notes.

The increase In trade and other payables includes the movement in land payables.

29. Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates & stakeholder defined contribution retirement benefit scheme which is open te all employees.

Other than amounts that are deducted from employees’' remuneration and accrued pending payment to the benefit scheme,
no further obligations fall on the Group as the assets of these arrangements are held and managed by third parties entirely
separate from the Group.

The benefit scheme charge for the year represents contributions payable to the benefit scheme and amounted to £2.6m for
the year ended 31 August 2017 {2016: £2.1m). Unpaid contributions amounted to £0.3m as at 31 August 2017 (2016: £0.2mj.

30. Financial risk management
The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, bank loans and overdrafts, trade receivables, other financial assets and trade
and other payables.

Categories of financial instruments

2017 2016
Em £m
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Shared equity receivables 289 29.3
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 40.7 119.0
Trade and other receivables 2.7 2.2
72.3 150.5
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Trade and other payables 77.2 92.0
Land payables 687.4 49.3
Loans 8.0 52.5
Land-related promissory notes - 1.3
152.6 2051

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital (being debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity) to ensure entities within the Group have a
strang capital base n order to continue as going concerns, to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to provide a basis
for the future development of the business while maximising the return to stakeholders.

The revalving credit faciity imposes financial covenarts, which 1s normal for such agreements, all of which the Group is compliant
with, The Group manages a robust internal forecasting and review process (¢ ensure it operates within these capital
requirements.

The Group does not reutinely make additional issues of capital, other than for the purpose of raising finance for the management
of the cost of capital of the Group or to fund significant developments designed to grow value in the future.

Share-based payment schemes allow senior employees of the Group to participate in the ownership of the Group in order 1o
ensure the senior employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the aims of all shareholders.

Financial risk management

The Group’s finance function is responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury. It co-ordinates access te financial markets
and monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operaticons of the Group through internal reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude. The risks reviewed include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Board is responsible for managing these risks and the policies adopted are as set out on the next pages

McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

30. Financial risk management continued

Housing market risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to macroeconomic risks such as deflation and the cyclical nature of UK property prices.
A deterioration in the economic outlook could have a significant impact on the Group's financial performance and the Group has
the following procedures which mitigate its market-related operational risk:

* The Group closely monitors industry indicators and assesses the potential mpact of different econemic scenarios

+ Decisions to allocate new capital to land and buftd are managed centrally through the Group Investment Committee,
membership of which includes the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Operating Officer and the
Land & Planning Director

= The Group aims to maintain a national and product spread of developments to ensure that 1t s not reliant on one particular
location, development or product

+ The Group undertakes a weekly review of sales, reservations and incentives at regional and Group level

The value of the Group’s house price linked financial assets is sensitive to UK house prices since the amount repayable 1s
dependent upan the market price of the property to which the asset is linked. At 31 August 2017 if UK house prices were 5%
lower for a one-year period and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s house price linked financial assets would
decrease in value, excluding the effects of tax, by £1.1m (2016: £1.1m) with a corresponding reduction in both the result for the
year ang equity.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers (o the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractua! obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has a low exposure to credit risk due to the nature and legal framework of the UK housing industry. As stated in the
Group's accounting policy for revenue recognition, a sale is only recognised upon legal completion and this is accompanied by
full cash receipt in virtually all cases.

In certain circumstances the Group offers sales incentives resulting in a long-term debt being reccgnised under which the Group
will receive a proporticn of the resale proceeds of a property. The Group's equity share is protected by a registered entry on the
title and usually represents the first interest in the property. A reduction in property values leads to an increase in the credit risk
of the Groug in respect of such sales.

The credit risk redating to shared equity receivables is deemed immaterial as the value 1s recovered though subsequent disposal
of the related asset. As a result, management consider the credit quality of these receivables to be good in respect of the amounts
outstanding, resulting in low credit risk. Exposure to house price sensitivity is built into the fair value calculation.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across different regions. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the financial condition of trade receivables.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. There is no materal
concentration of credit risk in respect of ore individual customer.

The carrying amount recerded for financial assets in the financial statements |s net of impairment losses and represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. No guarantees have been given in respect to third parties. In addition, for contracted
rental agreements deposits or advances may be held to mitigate rnisk. The Group also holds legal recourse and can exercise its
right tc recover rental equipment from non-performing customers.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk 15 the risk that the Group will encounter gifficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The
Group’'s strategy in relation tc managing liguidity risk is to ensure that the Greup has sufficient cash flow liguid funds to meet
allits potential liabilities as they fall due. The Group produces cash flow forecasts to monitor the expected requirements of the
Group against the available facilities. The principal risks with these cash flows relate to achieving the level of sales volumes and
prices in line with current forecast.
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30. Financial risk management continued
The maturity of the financial liabllities of the Group at 31 August 2016 and 2017 are as follows:

2016
Carrying Contractual
value cash flows Within 1year 2-Syears S+years
£m Em £m £m £m
Loans 55.0 647 2.0 62.7 -
Other financial liabilities carrying interest 11.3 11.4 11.4 - -
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 141.3 1413 141.3 - -
Total 207.6 217.4 1547 627 -
2017
Carrying Contractual
value tash flows Within 1 year 2-Syears 5+years
Em £m £m £m £m
Loans 10.0 15.2 14 13.8 -
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 144.6 144.6 144.6 - -
Total 154.6 159.83 146.0 13.8 -

Other financial liabllities carrying interest are promissory notes, which attract avalasility and discount fees. Financial liabilities
carrying no interest are trade and other payables and land payables. The timing and amount of future cash flows given in the
table above is based on the year end position.

Interest rate risk management
Interest rate risk reflects the Group's exposure to fluctuations to interest rates in the market. The risk arises because the Group's
RCF is subject to floating interest rates based on LIBOR.

In the year ended 31 August 2017, if UK interest rates had been 0.5% higher or lower, as this 1s a reasonably possible change, and
all other variances were held constant, the Group's pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0.5m (2016: £0.5m). Calculations
have been based on borrowing values at each month end.

Fair value of financial instruments
Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Bank and other loans
Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest flows.

Interest rate swaps
At each period end, the Directers appoint a valuer to perform an external valuation of the fair value of each interest rate swap or
cap ocutstanding

Valuation of Levels 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and liabilities

* The far values of financial assets and financialiiabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices (includes listed redeemable notes, bills of exchange,
debentures and perpetual notes)

* The fair values of other financial assets and financial llabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices fram observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments

» The fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not avallable, a discounted
cash flow analysis is perfarmed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional dervatives. Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted
forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from guoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts. Interest rate
swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves
derived from guoted interest rates
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30.

Financial risk management continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
The fellowing table provides an analysis of financal nstruments that are measured subseguent to initial recognition
at fair value. The grouping into Levels 1 to 2 is based on the degree to which their fair value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs cther than quoted prices included within Level i
that are cbservable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (1.e. derved from prices)
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The financial instruments held by the Group that are measured at fair value all relate to financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss (FVYTPL} using methods associated with Level 3. The sensitivities are not material on assets
held at fair value,

2016

Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets at FVTPL
Shared equity receivables - - 259.3 293
Total financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 29.3 29.3

07

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets at FVTPL
Shared equity receivables - - 28.9 28.9
Total financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 28.9 28.9

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 in the year.

Financial assets comprise shared equity loans secured by way of a charge on the property and an interest rate cap.

Financial assets are recorded at farr value, bemng the estimated amount receivable by the Group, discounted to present day values.

For shared equity receivables the fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes inta account the Directors’ views of an
appropriate discount rate, a new build premium, future house price movements and the expected timing of receipts. These
assurmnptions cover a variety of different schemes and the range of assumptions used are stated below. The assumptions are

reviewed at each period end.

Assumptions 2017 2016

Discount rate 38to4.4% 47t051%

New build premium 5% 5%

House price inflation 0to5.75% 0to 4.0%

Timing of receipt 5told4yrs 5Stol2yrs

2017 2017

Increase Decrease

assumptions assumptions

. by 1% /1 year by 1%/1 year

Sensitivity-effect on value of other financial assets (less)/more Em Em

Discount rate (2.3) 2.6
House price inflation 2.3 (2.1

Timing of receipt {0.4) 0.4

The fair value of the shared equity receivable is based on the external available data. The sensitivity-effect of a 1% change
15 representative of our best estimate of a reasonably possible change.

The Directors review the anticipated future cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the
anticipated future receipt and the initial fair value is credited to finance income.

142

McCarthy & Stone pic



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. Financial risk management continued

At initial recognition, the fair values of the assets are calculated using a discount rate appropnate to the class of assets that
reflects market conditions at the date of entening into the transaction. The Directors consider at the end of each reporting period
whether the initial market discount rate stll reflects up to date market conditions. If a revision is required, the fair values of the
assets are re-measured at the present value of the revised future cash flows using this revised discount rate The difference
between these values and the carrying values of the assets is recorded against the carrying value of the assets and recognised
directly in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 August 2016 and 2017

2016

Shared

equity Interest
receivables rate cap Total
£m £m £m
Opening balance 28.0 0.3 28.3
Additions 05 - 0.5
Disposals (1.7) - (1.7)
Revaluation gains or (losses) recognised in the income statement 25 0.3) 2.2
Closing balance 29.3 - 29.3
2017
Shared
equity Interest
receivables rate cap Total
Em £m £m
Opening balance 29.3 - 29.3
Additions 0.8 - 0.8
Disposals {2.7) - (2.7)
Revaluation gains recognised in the income statement 1.5 - 1.5
Closing balance 28.9 - 28.9
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31. Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment plans

The Group operates a number of share-based payment schemes as set out below:

Lang Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’)

The Group's LTIP is open to key management at the discretion cf the Board. Awards under the scheme are granted in the form

of nil-priced share options. LTIP awards will normally vest, and LTIP Options become exercisable, on the third anniversary of the
date of the grant of the LTIP award to the extent that any applicable performance conditions have been satisfied. LTIP options

will remain exercisable for ten years after the date of the grant. Awards are to be settled by the 1ssue of new shares or acquisition
of shares in the market. The performance conditions for the 2016 and 2017 LTIP grants are earnings per share (EPSY), comparative
total shareholder return {TSR’) and return on capital employed {ROCE) The TSR performance condition is a market-based
condition. In order to value the TSR performance conditions against the FTSE 250 and peer group, a Monte Cario simulation

model Is required which can simulate correlation between companies.

LTIP

Total

Date of grant
Options granted

Fair value at measurement date’ {£)

Share price on date of grant (£}
Exercise price (£)

Vesting period

Expected dividend yield
Expected volatiiity

Risk free interest rate
Valuation rodel

Movements in the year:

21 December 2016

1,933,352

1.32

1.56

3years

n/a

29.21%

0.23% p.a.
Black-Scholes
and Monte Carlo

25 Novermnber 2015
1,930,524

212

2,32

3years

n/a

26.07%

0.8% p.a.
Black-5choles

and Monte Carlo

Options at beginning of the year - 1,816,636 1,816,636
Granted during the year 1,933,352 - 1,933,352
Exercised during the year - - -
Lapsed during the year (57,143} (308,326) {365,469)
Expired in the year - - -
Options at the end of the year 1,876,209 1,508,310 3,384,519

Exercisable at end of the year

* This is the average fair value of the fair values far the three tranches of the LTIP awards during 2017

The weighted average of the average price for the LTIP award s nil.

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the average historical volatility over a period commensurate with the expected
life of the award for the LTIP based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stane are a constituent of post-IPO.

Sharesave plan ('SAYE’)

The SAYE plan is an all-employee savings-related share option plan. Employees are invited to make regular monthly contributions
to a SAYE scheme operated by Link Asset Services. On completion of the contract period (three or five years) employees are abie
to purchase ordinary shares in the Company based on the average closing middle market price over the three days prior

to the award, less 20% discount. There are no performance conditions.
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Wweighted average
SAYE Total exercise price
Date of grant 10 December 2015 10 December 2015
Options granted 2,912,247 1,197,514
Fair value at measurement date {£) 0.68 0.75
Share price on date of grant (£} 2.34 2.34
Exercise price (£) 1.674 1.674
Vesting period 3years Syears
Expected dividend yield 26.20% 28.16%
Expected volatility 26.07% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 0.8% p.a. 1.2% p.a.
Valuation modefl Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
Movements in the year
Options at beginning of the year 2,653,028 1161,675 3,814,703 1.674
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year (15,365) - (15,365) 1.674
Lapsed during the year (740,448) {234,829) {975,277) 1.674
Expired in the year - - - -
Options at the end of the year 1,897,215 926,846 2,824,061 1.674

Exercisable at end of the year

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the average historical volatility over a period commensurate with the expected
life of the savings term for the SAYE options, based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a constituent of post-IPO.

Share incentive Plan (‘SIP’)

The SIP allows sll employees to purchase partnership shares each month from pre-tax pay, which are then held in trust. These
shares can be sold or taken from the SiP or be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open. All plan shares and any
other assets held by the trustees will be held upon trust for the participants; there is therefore no impact to the Group's financial

statements in respect of this plan.

Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan (‘ABP’)

The ABP incorporates the Company's executive bonus scheme as well as a mechanism for the deferral of bonus inte awards
over ordinary shares. The Committee can determine that part of the bonus under the ABP is provided as an awarg of deferred
shares, which takes the form of a £nil cost option. The maximum value of deferred shares is 50% of the bonus earned. All
employees (including the Executive Directors) of the Group are eligible to participate in the ABP at the discretion of the Board.
At 31 August 2017 three Executive Directors were participating in the scheme. For the year ended 31 August 2017, one-third of
the bonus earned by the CEQ and COOQ in the financial year, totalling £0.1m, will be deferred in the form of deferred shares for
three years, during which no performance conditions will apply. The amount deferred will be recognised over the three-year

deferral period.

Total Share-based payment schemes

2017

2016

Analysis of the income charge £m £m
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments
Management Incentive Plan - 0.4
Equity-settled share-based payments
SAYE 0.5 0.4
iTIP 0.4 0.7
0.9 11
0.9 15
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32. Subsidiaries

Company Class of 2017 2016
Name Principal activity number shares % %
McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited Holding Company 06622183 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited Developer 06622231 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone {Equity Interests) Limited Property Investment 05663330 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited Property Investment 05984851 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Investment Properties No.23 Limited* Property Investment 06496130 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Total Care Living) Limited* Property Investment 06069509 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Alnwick} Limited* Property Investment 07517819 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living} Limited Property Investment 06887363 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited Property Investment 06897301 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental Interests No. 1 Limited* Property Investment 06897272 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited Development rnanagernent 07166051 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limited* Holding Company 07165986 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Financial Services Limited* Financial Services 07798214 Ordinary 100 100
Keyworker Properties Limited Property Investment 04213618 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Estates Limited* Property Resale 07165952 Ordinary 100 100
YourLife Management Services Limited Development Management 07153519 Ordinary 50 50
McCarthy & Stone Properties Limited* Dormant 01925738 Ordinary 100 100
The Planning Bureau Limited* Dormant 02207050 Ordinary 100 100
Ortus Homes Limited* Dormant 08658235 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Resales Limited* Property Resale 10716544 Ordinary 100 n/a
Linden Court Limited* Dormant 04322139 Ordinary 1060 n/a

i

* These UK subsigiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set gut within section 4794 oi‘jve Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 August 2017
The darmant companies have taken advantage of the section 394A exemption from preparing individual accounts.

Each of the above shareholdings gives the immediate Parent Company 100% voting rights, with the exception of Yourl ife
Management Services Limited where the parent has 50% voting rights, but the power to appoint the majority of the Directors.
Accorgingly, this gives the Group power over the relevant activities of this entity.

The registered address of all of the above subsidiaries is 4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH8 8A0.

33. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and other related parties
are disclosed below.

Remuneration of key management personnel
The key management perscnnel are the Executive Leadership Team. The remuneration that they have received during the year
is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’

2017

£m £Em

Short-term employee benefits 2.7 25
Social security costs 04 03
Share-based payments 0.4 0.9
Pensicon contributions 0.3 0.2
Termination payment - 0.4
3.8 4.3

Aggregate emoluments of the highest paid Director 1.0 0.9

In 2016, as part of the Management Incentive Plan shares totalling 33,098,147 were issued to key management personnel,
prior to share consolidation. Note 25 details movernents in share capital within the year.

34. Events after the balance sheet date
There were no events after the reporting period that required adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.
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Parent Company

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 August 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017 2016
Nates £&m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 4 439.4 439.4
Total non-current assets 439.4 4394
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 779 104.3
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Total current assets 77.9 104.3
Total assets 517.3 543.7
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 43.0 43.0
Share premium 101.6 100.8
Retained earnings 367.4 394.3
Total equity 6 512.0 538.1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7 5.3 56
Total current liabilities 5.3 5.6
Total liabilities 5.3 5.6
Total equity and liabilities 517.3 543.7
Notes 1 to 11 form part of the financial statements shown above.
There were no recagnised gains and losses for the year other than the profit for the year (2016: nil).
The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Parent
Company profit and loss account. The Company recorded a profit for the year of £0.7m {2016: £1.7m).
These financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (06622199} were approved by the Board on 13 November 2017
and signed on its behalf by:
Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Director Director
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Parent Company

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 August 2017

Share Share Retained

capital premium earnings Total

Notes £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 September 2015 3811 56.4 {2.5) 435.0
Profit for the year - - 1.7 1.7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 17 17

Transactions with owners of the Company

Issue of ordinary shares 6 49 104.8 - 109.7
Capital reduction of share capital and share premium 6 {343.0) {56.4) 399.4 -

Share-based payments 9 - - 1.1 11
Share issue related costs 6 - 4.0 - (4.0
Dividends 6 - - (5.4) {5.4)
Balance at 31 August 2016 43.0 100.8 394.3 53841
Profit for the year - - 0.7 0.7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 0.7 0.7

Transactions with owners of the Company

Share-based payments 9 - - 0.9 0.3
Dividends 6 - - (28.5) {28.5)
Share issue related costs - tax credit - 0.8 - 0.8
Balance at 31 August 2017 43.0 101.6 367.4 512.0

Notes 1 1o 11 form part of the financial statements shown above.
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Parent Company

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2017/

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2016

Notes £m £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 8 28.5 54
Investing activities
Amounts owed in respect of share issuance 6 - (86.0)
Net cash used in investing activities - (86.0}
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 6 - 86.0
Dividends paid 6 (28.5) (5.4)
Net cash from financing activities (28.5) 80.6
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - -
Notes 1 to 11 form part of the financial statements shown above.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

McCarthy & Stone plcis a public limited liability Company incorperated in England. The Registered Office is 4th Foor, 100
Holdenhurst Road, Bournemaouth, Dorset, BH8 8AQ The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing
with the items that are considered material in relation to the finanaal statements, on an ongoing basis and in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis of preparation
The separate Company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost accounting rules and in accordance
with FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland.

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and
loss account. The Company recorded a profit for the year of £0.7m (2016 £1.7m}.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in Group undertakings are included in the Statement of Financial Position at cost fess any provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an ariginal maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
non-market-hased vesting condriions and na expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a result of a failure to
satisfy a non-market-based vesting condition.

The cost of cash-settled transactions 1s measured at fair value. Fair value is estimated initially at the grant date and at each
reporting pariod end thereafter until the awards are settled. Market-based conditions are taken into account when determining
fair value,

Further details regarding the schemes are set out in ngte 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to McCarthy & Stone's shareholders are recognised in the Company's financial statements in the periods
in which the final dividends are approved at the Annual General Meeting, or when paid in the case of an interim dividend.

Financial instruments
Finandcial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's Statement of Financial Pesition when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Finoncial assets

Allfinancial assets are normally recognised and dereccgnised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where
the purchase or sale of a financial asset s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe estabhished by the market concerned. They are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for
those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified as ‘loans and receivables’ The dassification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinakle payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and recervables are measured at amaortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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1. Accounting policies continued
Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables’ The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as foans and recelvables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as erther finandal liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as *other financial liabilities”.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction cests.

Other financial fiabilities are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest methad is a method of calculating the amortised cost of & financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cests directly attributable to the 1ssue of new ordinary shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Related parties

The Company discloses transactions with related parues which are not wholly owned within the same Group. Where appropriate,
transactiens of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the Directors, separate disclosure is necessary to
understand the effect of the transactions on the financial statements.

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in nete 1, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an cngoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the pericd in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods

There are no specific critical jJudgements or key assumptions the Company makes about the future, or other major sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that are deemed to have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the year end and within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

3. Staff costs
The Company had no employees during the period covered by these financial statements. Costs relating to time incurred by
Directors for Group activities are recharged to McCarthy & Stone plc

4. Investments in subsidiaries

zZ017 2076
Cost £m £m
1 September 4394 419.7
Additions - 19.7
At 31 August 439.4 4394
Net book value 439.4 439.4

Investments in subsidiary undertakings relate to a 100% ownership interest in McCarthy & Stone {Develcpments) Limited,

The Group's subsidiary undertakings for the period that are significant for the period and traded during the period are listed
in note 32 to the consolidated financfal statements.

5. Trade and aother receivables

2017 2016
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 77.3 104.3
UK corporation tax 0.6 -
77.9 104.3

Amounts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2.2%
(2016: 2.2%)} at the year end date.

6. Shareholders’ funds

The mavements of the share capital, share premium and equity reserve accounts are disclosed in note 25 and 26 ta the
consalidated financial statements.

Dividends within the year are disclosed within note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

7. Trade and other payahles

2017 2016
Em £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 53 5.6
5.3 5.6

Amounts payable to McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2.2% (2016: 2.2%)
at the year end date.
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8. Notes to the cash flow statement

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2016

Notes £&m £m
Profit for the financial year 0.7 17
Adjustments for

Interestincome (1.9) (2.6)

Share option charge 0.9 141
Income tax expense 0.2 0.4
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (0.1) 0.6
Decrease / (increase} in trade and other receivables 5 27.0 {0.8}
(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables 7 (0.3) 3.4
Operating cash flows befare interest and tax paid 26.6 3.2
Interest received 1.9 26
Tax paid - (0.4)
Cash generated by operations 28.5 5.4
28.5 5.4

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

9. Share-based payments

Following the IPC of the Cornpany in Novermber 2015, the Company entered intc new share incentive plans. Details of share

awards granted by the Company to employees of subsidiaries, and that remain outstanding at the year end over the Company’s

shares, are set cut in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements

The Company recognised an expense of £0.9m relatng to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the year

(2016. £1.1m).

10. Financial instruments
The Companry has the following financial instruments:

217

2016

£m £m
Financial assets
Loans and receivables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables 773 104.3
Cash and bank balances - -
77.3 104.3
Financiaol liabilities
Loans and payables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 5.3 5.6
5.3 5.6

The Company has no derivative financial instruments. The fair value of the financial instruments is equal to thair carrying values.

11. Related party transactions

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly owned within the Group.

See note 33 to the consclidated finandal statements.

Remuneration to key management personnel has been disclosed within note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
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Warning to
shareholders

154
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Share fraud includes scams where investors are called out of
the blue and offered shares that often turn cut to be worthless
ar non-existent, or an inflated price for shares they own. These
calls come from fraudsters operating in ‘boiler rooms' that are
mostly based abroad. While high profits are promised, those
who buy or sell shares in this way usually lose their money.
These callers can be very persistent and extremely persuasive.
They may even claim to be calling on behalf of the Company.

The Financial Conduct Authority (FCAY has found most share
fraud victims are experiencad investors who lose an average
of £20,000, with around £200m lost in the UK each year.

Protect yourself

You are advised to be extremely wary if you are offered
unsclicited investment advice, discounted shares, a premium
price for shares you own, or free company cr research reports
You should take these steps before handing over any money:

Get the name of the person and organisation
contacting you

Check the Financial Services Register at
http://www.fca.org.uk/ to ensure they are authorised

Use the details on the FCA Register to contact the firm

Call the FCA Consumer Helpline on: 9800 111 6768 if there
are no cantact details on the Register or you are told they
are out of date

Search the FCA’'s list of unauthorised firms and individuals
to avoid doing business with.

REMEMBER: if it sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

If you use an unauthorised firm tc buy or sell shares or
cther investments, you will not have access to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial Services Compensation
Scheme (FSCS}if things go wrong.

Report a scam

If you are approached about a share scam you should tell the
FCA using the share fraud reporting form at:
www.fca.org.uk/consumers/report-scam-unauthorised-firm
where you can find out about the latest investment scams.

You can also call the Consumer Helpline on: 0800 111 6768

If you have alreacly paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Action Fraud on: 0300 123 2040
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istorical
. »
statistics

FY17 Fy1a FY15' Fyta'
Legal completions 2,302 2,2962 1,923 1,677
Gross average selling price £273k £264k £245k £222k
Revenue £660.9m £635.9m £485.7m £387.8m
Profit before tax £92.1m £92.9m £80.9m £571m
Shareholders' funds £908.9m £319.8m £762.3m £477.2m
ROCE 16% 20% 20% 17%
Tangible gross asset value £645.7m E574.1m £513.5m £451.2m
Tangible net asset value £676.4m £626.8m £469.1m £402.3m
Basic earnings per share 13.8p 13.9p 13.5p4 nfa*
Dividends for the year 3 5.4p 4.5p nit nil
Number of shares in issue 537,329,434 537,314,069 n/a® n/a®
Number of shareholders 863 705 n/a® n/a®

o =

Excludes three commerciat unis

Dwvidends were nat paid in FY15 or FY14

IS

prior years have not been adjusted

g

o

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements
Some of the information in this docurnent may contain projections or other forward-looking statements regarding future events
or the future financial performance of McCarthy & Stone plc and its subsidiaries (the Group). You can identify forward-looking

staterments by terms such as ‘expect’, ‘believe’, ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘intend’, ‘will, ‘could’, ‘may’ or ‘might, the negative of such

FY15 and F¥14 financial statements were produced prior to our Stock Exchange listing which took place on 11 November 2015

The dwidends in respect of any financiat year are the interim dividend which has been paid and the final dividend which has been proposed

The number of shareholders prior te our listing on 11 Nevermnber 2015 has not been disclosed on the grounds of irrelevance

The figure for the £¥15 EPS was recalculated in the FY16 Annual Report and adjusted to reflect the 4 1 consolidation of our share capital that took place in FY16,

The Company’s share capitai at 31 August 2015 and 31 August 2014 was 1,905,54%,751 ordinary shares of 20p each As part of the preparation for listing, the nominal
value of the shares was reduced to 2p; addinionai shares were allotted and the shares were consolidated on a 4 1 basis becaming ardinary shares of 8p nominal value

terms or other similar expressions. McCarthy & Stone plc (the Company) wishes to caution you that these statements are only

predictions and that actual events or results may differ matertally. The Company does not intend to update these statements

to reflect events and circumstances occurring after the date herecf or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Many
factors could cause the actual resuits to differ materially from those contained in projections or forward-locking statements of

the Group, induding among others, general economic conditions, the competitive environment as well as many other risks
specifically related to the Group and its operations. Past performance of the Group cannot be relied on as a guide to future

performance.
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General
i nfo rm atio n McCarthy & Stone plc is a public Company limited by shares and

registered i England and Wales, registered number 06622199,
Qur registered and head coffice s situated at:

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road

Bournemouth

Dorset

BH3 BAQ

Telephone: 01202 292480

Corporate website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
Consumer website: www.mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Email: investor-relations@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Our ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange
(premium listing} and we are in the FTSE 250 Index.

Legai Entity Identifier (LEI):
213800CEJ40Q5YPUBZ37

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN):
GBOOBYNVDO082

Ticker Symbol: MCS

Advisers

Legal adviser Registrar

Allen & Qvery LLP Link Asset Services
The Registry

Financial adviser 34 Beckenham Road

Rothschild Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU
Financial and corporate

communications Statutory auditor
Pawerscourt Deloitte LLP
Banker

HSBC Bank plc

Joint corporate brokers
Deutsche Bank
Peel Hunt

Contact details for our registrars, Link Asset Serwvices:

Calls from the UK: 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per
minute, plus any network extras;
lines are open Monday to Friday
from %am to 5.30pm, excluding
UK public holidays).

Calls from outside the UK: +44 208 639 3399

Email: enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk
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3 Divisions & 9 Regions

—

STRATEGIC REPORT

North West

unit 3, Edward Court
Altrincham Business Park
Altrincham

WAT4 5GL

Tel: 0161 941 6255

West Midlands
Ross House

Harry Weston Road
Binley Business Park
Coventry

CV3 2TR

Tel: 02476 441199

South West

First Floor, Blackbrook Gate 1
Blackbrook Park Avenue
Taunton

TA1 2Px

Tel: 01823 200500

L
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Scotland

Unit 11000, Academy Park
Gower Street

Glasgow

G571 1PR

Tel 0141 420 8300

Graphic removed

Head Office

4th Floor

100 Holderhurst Road
Bournemouth, Dorset
BHS 8AQ

Tel: 01202 292480

Naorth East
Aspen House
Wykeham Road

Northminster Business Park

Upper Peppleton

York
Y026 6QW

Tel: 01904 444200

East Midlands
Qrion House
Orion Way
Kettering

NN15 6PE

Tel: 01536 220 700

_
Southern

Southern House

1 Embankment Way
Ringwood

BH24 1EU

Tel: 01425 322000

North London
Prospect Place

85 Great North Road
Hatfield

ALS SDA

Tel: 01707 446000

South East

2 Genesis Business Park
Albert Drive

Wcking

(GU21 BRW

Tel: 01483 908600
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Glossary

‘ASP

‘BSG’

r

‘Capital turn

ol
‘CIv

‘Company’

‘cqQc’

'DCLG’

'EPS’

‘FRI

‘FTSE’

‘Gearing’

‘Group’

PO’

‘Land bank’

‘LIBOR’

average selling price - the average
price agreed for sales of apartments
in the year after deducting list price
discounts and part-exchange top-ups

the Building Safety Group is a not-for-
profit organisation which specialises
in providing Health, Safety and
Environmental advice for the
construction industry

calculated by dividing revenue by
the average opening and closing
tangible gross asset value in the year

cash generating unit

the Community Infrastructure Levy
of the Community Infrastructure
Lewy Regulations 2010

McCarthy & Stone plc

the Care Quality Commission is an
executive non-departmental public
body of the Department of Health
which regulates and inspects health
and social care services in England

the Department for Communities
and Local Government

profit attributable to ordinary
sharehoiders {excluding exceptional
itemns) divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue
during the financial year

freenhold reversionary interest -

the freehold of each of the Group's
developments in England ang Wales
which include the future income
stream of ground rents which can
be sold to third parties

the Financial Times Stock Exchange

gearing is calculated by dividing
net debt by net assets

the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries and subsidiary
undertakings

Initial Public Offering

includes owned sites and
exchanged sites

the London interbank offered rate
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‘MSMS’

‘Net assets’

‘Net debt/cash’

‘NHBC’
‘PRS’
‘ROCE’

‘Section 106"

'TGAV’

‘TNAV*

‘TSR’

‘Underlying
profit before tax’

‘YLMS'

McCarthy & Stone Management
Services Limited - a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company that
provides management services
to homeowners in the Group’s
Retirement Living and Lifestyle
Living developments

net assets is calculated as total assets
less total liabilities

cash and cash equivalents less
long-term and short-term borrowings
{excluding unamaortised debt

issue costs)

National House Building Council
Private Rented Sector

return on capital employed - calculated
by dmiding underlying operating profit
by the average opening and closing
tangible gross asset value in the year

the legally-binding agreements or
planning obligations entered into
between alandowner and a local
planning authority, under section
106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990

tangible gross asset value - calculated
as TNAV [ess net debt/cash

tangitle net asset value - calculated
as net assets excluding goodwill and
intangible assets

total shareholder return-is a
measurement of the performance
of the Group’s share price since the
IPO. It combines the share price
appreciation and dividends paid

to show the total return to the
sharehoiders expressedas a
percentage

calculated by adding amortisation
aof brand and exceptional
administrative expenses to profit
before tax

YourLife Management Services
Limited - a subsidiary of MSMS
owned 50/50 by MSMS and Somerset
Care Group Limited, that provides
management services, domestic
assistance, persaonal care and
additicnal support to homeowners

in the Group's Retirement Living Plus
developments
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— Retirement living to the full —

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road
Bournemaouth

Dorset

BHS 8AQ

Tel: 01202 292 480

Website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk Twitter: twittercom/mccarthystone
Email: investor-relations@mccarthyandstone.co.uk Facebook: facebock.com/mccarthystone
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